
AGENDA
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

MARCH 17, 2020 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 

A. ROLL CALL:
1. Roll call of all City Commissioners.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

C. MINUTES:
1. Consider approval of the minutes from the March 3, 2020 Board of

City Commission regular meeting

D. PUBLIC HEARING:
1. Consider approval of a land use plan amendment, first

consideration of Ordinance 1336 related to a zoning amendment,
and preliminary plat for Longhorn 2nd Add

2. Consider approval of the preliminary plat for Lakewood 9th Add.
Replat of Lot 1, Block 4

3. Consider approval of Ordinance 1314 related to outdoor seating

E. BIDS:

F. CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Consider approval of monthly bills
2. Consider the following requests to approve budget amendments

and transfers:
i. Fire Department
ii. Assessing Department
iii. Municipal Court
iv. Building Inspection Department
v. Business Development & Communications Department
vi. Human Resources Department
vii. Administration Department
viii. Utility Billing Department
ix. Finance Department
x. Public Works
xi. Planning and Engineering Department
xii. Water Treatment Plant
xiii. Wastewater Treatment Plant
xiv. Information Technology
xv. Police Department

C ITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

March 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 

3. Consider allowing the fire department to apply for an Assistance to 
Firefighters Grant

4. Consider payment of bills for Morton Mandan Public Library /
Downtown Parks Project

5. Consider approval of Zander Addition minor plat
6. Consider approval of a Main Street Initiative Community Action plan 

and allowing an application for Partners in Planning matching funds
7. Consider allowing the planning department to apply for an AARP 

Community Challenge Grant
8. Consider appointment of Kelbi Pritchett (8th Grade) to Mandan 

Youth Commission 

G. OLD BUSINESS:

H. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Abatement applications for Infinity Ventures Inc.
2. Abatement applications for JDS  Holdings LLP

i. Abatement application 65-6119750
ii. Abatement application 65-6119700

3. Abatement application for HM4 LLC
4. Consider appointments to Mandan Visitors Committee
5. Memorial Highway Preliminary Engineering Presentation
6. Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans &

Specifications and Resolution directing advertisement for bid for
Street Improvement District No. 215, Project No. 2019-05 (Midtown
East), 215A Project 2020-04 (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B
Project 2020.05 (Grounds Maintenance Parking Lot)

7. Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans &
Specifications and Resolution directing advertisement for bid for
Street Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 2019-12
(Northwest Area)

8. Consider the approval of plans and specifications, Engineers
Report, and authorize the call for bids for the 2020 Municipal
Sidewalk Improvement Project 2020-02

I. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:
1. Consider approval of the second and final consideration of

Ordinance 1335 related to zoning application procedures
2. Consider approval of a resolution renewing the listing agreement

for numerous city properties

J. OTHER BUSINESS:
1. Census 2020 Announcement

K. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS:

1. April 7, 2020
2. April 21, 2020
3. May 5, 2020



 Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

March 17, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 

L. ADJOURN



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 1 of 11 
The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on March 3, 2020 in 

the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.  Mayor Helbling called the 
meeting to order.  
 
A.       ROLL CALL:  
1.        Roll Call of All City Commissioners.  Present were Mayor Helbling and Commissioners 
Braun, Rohr, Davis and Larson. Department Heads present were, Finance Director Welch, Fire 
Chief Nardello, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, Business Development and 
Communications Director Huber, Principal Planner Van Dyke, City Administrator Neubauer, 
Human Resource Director Cullen, Director of Public Works Bitz, Assessor Markley, Deputy 
Police Chief Flaten, Building Official Ouradnik and Attorney Brown.  Absent: Police Chief 
Ziegler. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   
 
C. MINUTES: 
1.         Consider approval of the minutes from the February 18, 2020 Board of City Commission 
regular meeting. Commissioner Larson stated that under New Business item No 1. Consider cost 
share with Morton County related to engineering services to develop interactive, web based 
flood mapping - she was not present when that item was voted on.  The minutes will be corrected 
to reflect that she was absent during the vote for that item.  Commissioner Larson moved to 
approve the minutes with that correction.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call 
vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes;   Commissioner Larson: Yes; 
Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed.  
 
D.       PUBLIC HEARING:   
1.        Consider approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1335 related to zoning 
application procedures.  City Planner Van Dyke presented a request for the approval of the first 
consideration of Ordinance 1335 related to zoning application procedures.  He said that the 
proposed zoning text amendment surrounds application procedures for zoning applications in the 
City of Mandan.  The current application procedures are located throughout the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances and are not easily identifiable.  The application procedures have been created in 
conjunction with the Zoning Ordinance Workgroup that includes several departments, planning 
and zoning commissioners, the Morton County Planning Director and legal staff.  The 
amendments are being proposed for the following reasons:  
       (1) Clarity of procedure is important to the applicant; City staff overseeing and facilitating 
the process; and general public to ensure the integrity of due process.  
       (2) Consolidating procedures of land use applications related to zoning creates efficiency for 
staff by reducing the amount of labor resources required to explain said procedure to prospective 
applicants.  
       (3) Future staff may more easily understand the various land use application procedures 
related to zoning if it is clearly outlined in a step-by-step procedure.  
      (4) Various nuances of each land use application procedure are more easily compared when 
consolidated in one section and share the same organizational structure.  
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 2 of 11 
Planner Van Dyke said that the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 
Ordinance 1335.  He provided a flowchart that showed a very clear process, step-by-step to 
complete an application and what needs to happen for zoning ordinances.  He stated that this 
does not change any current process but that it will make it clearer and it will provide continuity 
for future applications submitted.  This has been sent out to all the contractors so they are aware 
of the process and they can discuss it with their clients as to what needs to happen when.   
 
Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing for the approval of the first consideration of 
Ordinance 1335 related to zoning application procedures.  He invited anyone in the audience to 
come forward to speak for or against the Ordinance 1335 related to zoning application 
procedures.  A second announcement was made for anyone in the audience to come forward to 
speak for or against Ordinance 1335. A third and final announcement was made for anyone in 
the audience to come forward to speak for or against Ordinance 1335 related to zoning 
application procedures.  Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1335 related to 
zoning application procedures.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; 
Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
E.        BIDS:  
 
F.        CONSENT AGENDA   
1.        Consider approval of a funding assistance application through the N.D. Department of 
Commerce for census outreach.   
2.        Consider proclaiming March 2020 Colorectal Cancer Awareness Month in Mandan ND.   
3.        Consider approval of the NDDOT Bridge Inspection and Load Rating Services 
Agreement.   
4.        Consider approval of an Engineering Service Agreement with KLJ for the Downtown 
Street Improvement District, #217.   
 
Commissioner Larson moved to approve the Consent Agenda items 1 through 4 as presented.  
Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor 
Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
G.        OLD BUSINESS: 
1.         Consider entering into an agreement with Condrey and Associates for completion of a 
salary study that encompasses all City of Mandan departments.  HR Director Cullen presented a 
request to enter into agreement with Condrey and Associates for the completion of a salary study 
that encompasses all City of Mandan Departments.  During the last City Commission meeting, 
there was discussion about the salary study proposal and it was postponed to gather more 
information relating to conducting a benefits survey.  She reported that Condrey provided a 
quote of $12,500 for completion of a benefits survey. When inquiring on details of the benefit 
survey, she said she was informed that it is a separate survey from the salary survey. While the 
surveys are sent out at the same time, the results are kept completely separate. Condrey also 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 3 of 11 
noted that the benefits survey would decrease the response rate from roughly 90% down to about 
50%. The results of the benefit survey will only tell us where we are leading or lagging within 
the market. It will not tie into the overall compensation picture. Condrey recommended not doing 
the benefit survey if the City of Mandan knows where its weaknesses are in the benefit package. 
She stated that it would be more beneficial to retain the $12,500 and put it towards the salary 
study or use it to address the weaknesses in the current benefit package.  She provided a chart 
showing the top 10 cities in ND to compare the ratio of benefits expenses to the total 
compensation costs (salaries + benefits).  Further, the family health insurance vesting schedule 
seems to be an area of concern that she hears about most frequently in regards to the benefits 
package. She reported that the City has lost several new hires over the last year that needed 
family health insurance but could not afford the monthly premium. She explained that new 
employees who need family health insurance coverage are expected to pay $1,039.92 per month 
out of their own pocket during their first year of employment.  She provided data showing how 
the health insurance benefits convert into an hourly rate. The employer paid portion would be 
added to the employee’s hourly rate. The employee paid portion was included to show how the 
family vesting schedule affects the employer paid portion. The difference is the hourly rate that 
would actually be added to the employee’s hourly rate. She explained that single health 
insurance coverage equates to an additional $4.23 per hour to an employee’s hourly rate. For 
family health insurance coverage after seven (7) years of employment, adds an extra $10.23 per 
hour to an employee’s hourly rate. If the employee needs family health insurance coverage 
during his/her first two years of employment, it decreases the hourly rate by $1.77 the first year, 
and $.57 the second year.  If the salary study is approved at this meeting, Condrey & Associates 
said the schedule of activities would remain the same.    
  
Director Cullen stated that if Condrey’s proposal is accepted, their timeline to complete the 
project would start in March 2020 and conclude in June 2020 with a follow up provided July 
2020-2021. Finance Director Welch provided information that the funding source would be the 
General Fund 2019 Budget for the amount of $42,500.   
 
Commissioner Davis stated that the outline provided has been explained in depth.  He said that 
Mandan is within the top tier for benefits in the state.  He agreed with Director Cullen’s 
recommendation to do the benefit study in-house.  Director Cullen said that the League of Cities 
has information available to accomplish a benefits study if conducted in-house by the City.  
Mayor Helbling stated that he is not in favor of studies and that if there are issues within the city, 
we should concentrate on that area and address it and be fair to our employees.  Commissioner 
Braun commented that he concurs with Mayor Helbling and also, in previous years, Finance 
Director Welch has been in contact with similar size counties with regard to wages and benefits.  
He agreed that the study can be done in-house, rather than being conducted by an outside 
contractor.  Commissioner Rohr commented that when studies are done, he has seen over the 
years, that comparisons are made and when cleaning up pay plans, things get off-kilter over time.  
You have to make sure that whatever pay plan is followed is fair and consistent with finance 
operations.  He agreed that if you have staff within your system that is capable of doing an 
internal study, that it should be considered.  Commissioner Larson agreed with the comments 
made and stressed the importance of having a fresh look at what we are doing within our own 
departments and are appropriate.  It has been a long time since a thorough salary compensation 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 4 of 11 
process has been looked at over time and she stated she is in support of Director Cullen’s 
recommendation.  
 
Mayor Helbling stated that the salary study portion cost is $42,500.  Attorney Brown stated that 
when considering professional services such as this, it is not unusual to waive the public bidding 
requirements.   
 
Commissioner Davis moved to approve the City Commission waive the public bidding 
requirements for the selection of a human resources consulting firm to complete a salary study, 
job description review, and classification analysis. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  
Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  
Yes; Commissioner Braun:  No; Mayor Helbling: No.  The motion passed. 
 
Mayor Helbling pointed out that he appreciated the view of other commissioners stating that it is 
good to have a competitive discussion occasionally such as this one.  He extended a thank you to 
Director Cullen for her research done on this matter.   
 
Commissioner Larson moved for the approval of the proposed contract with Condrey and 
Associates to complete a salary study, job description review, and classification analysis for the 
City of Mandan.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 
Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  No; 
Mayor Helbling: No.  The motion passed. 
 
H.        NEW BUSINESS 
1.         Consider appointments to the Mandan Youth Commission.  
City Administrator Neubauer presented a request to appoint individuals to the Mandan Youth 
Commission (MYC).  He explained the background of this event, wherein the City Commission 
created the MYC in 2012 and the MYC was active for a few years and then became dormant. In 
discussions with representatives from Mandan Public Schools the City would like to resurrect the 
MYC. Mandan Public Schools extended an invitation to students at the High School and Middle 
School to find interested students.  Subsequently ten  (10) applications were received which 
included these students: Michaela Kuntz, 6th ; Hayden Mehlhoff, 7th; Andaleen (Andi) Nelson, 
8th; Tenisyn Brugh, 9th; Abby Eckroth, 10th; Kahleesia Chapman, 10th ; Lyseaunna Ressler, 10th ; 
Alexandria Dirk, 10th; Austin Horn, 11th and Breanna Horner,11th  to the Mandan Youth 
Commission.  Administrator Neubauer stated that the request before the Commission is to 
reinstate the Mandan Youth Commission and to appoint the ten students interested in sitting on 
the MYC.  The purpose of the MYC is to have students involved in local government.  The first 
meeting will be held in March at the Brave Center and parents of the students have been notified 
of their student’s appointment to the MYC.  Several of the students were in the audience and 
came forward to be introduced.  Mayor Helbling commented that this is an opportunity for 
students to become involved in the community.  Commissioner Larson extended a welcome to 
the students who stepped up to participate in this organization and stated she is looking forward 
to mentoring them in the future.   
 
Commissioner Larson moved to approve appointing the following individuals to the Mandan 
Youth Commission; Michaela Kuntz, Hayden Mehlhoff, Andaleen (Andi) Nelson, Tenisyn 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 5 of 11 
Brugh, Abby Eckroth, Kahleesia Chapman, Lyseaunna Ressler, Alexandria Dirk, Austin Horn  
and Breanna Horner to the Mandan Youth Commission.  Commissioner Braun seconded the 
motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 
Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
2.         Consider approval of the resolutions and supporting documents necessary for Street 
Improvement District No. 215A, Project No. 20-04  (Public Works Parking Lot).  
Planning and Engineering Director Froseth presented a request to move forward with the 
resolutions necessary to approve the Public Works Parking Lot Street Improvement District 
project.  He stated that the Public Works Department staff approached City Engineering staff 
about including the work necessary to construct a parking lot and other hard surfaces as part of 
the improvements at the Public Works main facility. The plan would include these improvements 
as part of the Mid-Town East project’s scope of work with those costs being assessed to the City 
only. In order to do so, an amendment is required to the City district boundaries and scope to 
include this work. The total project cost would be assessed to the City only. By including the 
scope as part of the Mid-Town East project it will mutually benefit the Mid-Town East 
assessments scope and the Public Works scope because more work in a contract generally 
reduces each item per unit cost on the bid. This work is estimated at $1,200,000. This will create 
a new district 215A, a sub-district of the main district and other resolutions necessary.  Mayor 
Helbling inquired of the Public Works Facility as shown on the map, what is the plan if there is 
more work done to the roads adjacent to Public Works and they are not included in this drawing?  
Director Froseth said that the Southside District Project is still open so the roads that surround 
the Public Works site are within that district, so if there are adjustments those would go through 
the Southside Project.  The Southside Project is due to be completed this year so if there are 
adjustments those would have to be made before that project closes.   
 
Commissioner Larson cautioned the Commission on the importance of being very clear on this 
district assessment on behalf of the residents so they are informed if they are in either of those 
special assessment districts mentioned.  This request is not to tack on to the assessments going to 
the home owners, however, this will go directly back to Public Works and will not be going back 
to those districts, it is just to add this one project to that bidding process.  Director Froseth stated 
that is correct and furthermore, it will slightly help the costs within the Mid-Town street 
improvement district and may expedite the Mid-Town project.   
 
Finance Director Welch pointed out that in order to pay for these special assessments, these 
assessments will be added to the City’s share of special assessments mill levy over the 
assessment period so it will be part of the levy which everyone pays on their property tax.     
 
Commissioner Davis moved to approve the resolution creating the district, approve the 
engineer’s report, approve the feasibility report and approve the resolution of necessity for Street 
Improvement District No. 215A, Project No. 2020-04  (Public Works Parking Lot). 
Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor 
Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 6 of 11 
3.         Consider approval of the resolutions and supporting documents necessary for Street 
Improvement District No. 215B, Project No. 20-05 (Grounds Maintenance Building at the 
Cemetery).  Planning and Engineering Director Froseth presented a request to move forward with 
the resolutions necessary to approve the Grounds Maintenance Parking Lot Street Improvement 
District project No. 215B to construct a parking lot and other hard surfaces needed at the Public 
Works Grounds Maintenance Facility adjacent to the City Cemetery. The City plans to include 
these improvements as part of the Mid-Town East project’s scope of work with those costs being 
assessed to the City only. In order to do so an amendment is required to amend the district 
boundaries and scope to include this work.  He clarified that this will include pavement around 
the entire building. The total project cost would be assessed to the City only.  Including the scope 
as part of the Mid-Town East project will mutually benefit the Mid-Town East assessments 
scope and the Public Works scope because more work in a contract typically helps to reduce 
each item per unit cost on the bid. This work is estimated to cost about $130,000.  
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the resolution creating the district, approve the 
engineer’s report, approve the feasibility report and approve the resolution of necessity for Street 
Improvement District No. 215B, Project No. 2020-05  (Grounds Maintenance Parking Lot).  
Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor 
Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
4.         Consider approval of the resolutions and supporting documents necessary for Street 
Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 2019-12  (Northwest Area). Planning and 
Engineering Director Froseth presented a request to move forward with the resolutions necessary 
to approve the Northwest area Street Improvement District project.  He reported that City  
Engineering staff has been working on this street improvement district project that will address 
the poor street conditions located in the northwest part of the City. The areas of focus includes 
the streets north of Old Red Trail Highland Road starting at Highland Road on the east and 
ending with Old Red Trail at the Intersection with 56th Avenue on the west. It does not include 
all streets within this area, rather strategically selected streets and construction methods to 
address those streets will give the City best value to extend life of the streets. In areas where the 
pavement is in poor condition a reconstruction may be the best value for those segments.  The 
Engineering Department held a public meeting on this project on Thursday, February 27, 2020. 
There were approximately 450 properties drawn within the district that were invited to attend the 
meeting held at the Red Trail Elementary School. Over 50 residents attended. A brief review of 
the presentation was given. There were several Divisions determined and he explained how the 
project will affect the Divisions.  The assessment for Division 1 is estimated to be under $6,700 
after the 20% buy down is applied as was set in January for local street improvement districts.  
Divisions 2-4 were reviewed and followed by Divisions 5-8.  He explained that assessments are 
not fully determined until the project is complete and all costs come in and there is further 
discussion however the residents are informed of possible estimate of costs at this point.   
 
If the necessary resolutions and associated documents are approved at this meeting the project 
plans will be brought to the next Commission meeting before the 30-day protest period will start 
wherein letters of protest will be accepted. In addition to the state requirement of posting in the 
Mandan News, the information will be posted on the City of Mandan our website and letters will 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 7 of 11 
be sent to property owners with their individual estimate of assessment. After the 30-day protest 
period transpires, the results of the protest will be brought to an April City Commission meeting 
to determine sufficiency. Concurrently, it is being proposed to start the advertisement for bids 
with the intent to bring that request to next Commission meeting.  Information to determine 
sufficiency of protests will be presented to the City Commission meeting on April 7, 2020 and if 
determined insufficient, bids would open during the week of April 13, 2020 for consideration at 
the April 21, 2020 City Commission meeting.  Most of the project will be completed in 2020 
with minor carryovers such as chip seal to be completed in 2021.  At the public hearing held 
there was a question/answer period and Director Froseth reviewed some of those questions for 
the City Commission to be aware.  The estimated construction cost is about $2.5 million. He 
pointed out the cost savings step specific to this district is to design and inspect this project out of 
the City Engineering office instead of hiring a consultant to help with it. There is an estimated 
cost savings of roughly 10% to approach it this way. This particular district is less complex and 
therefore less time-consuming on the design side because the engineering staff is not proposing 
underground improvements. The total project cost that would be divided among district 
participants if no other funding support is obtained is estimated at $3.1 million. With Municipal 
Infrastructure Funds (formerly Prairie Dog Funds) buy down at a rate of 20%, that amount would 
be reduced by $616,000 and would come to about $2,464,000.   
 
Commissioner Rohr inquired if any of this project would qualify for state or federal funding.  
Director Froseth presented a map, explaining that Old Red Trail, an arterial road, would qualify 
for federal funds, however it has not been a top priority of Metropolitan funds (MPO).  
Commissioner Rohr encouraged looking at whatever sources are available to help the residents 
living in that area.   
 
Commissioner Braun commented that if the plan is to fix the road now, there are no funds 
available to the residents however that is one of the amenities of living in a city is that you have 
to expect to pay for streets, services, lights, etc.  If the plan is to go back in that area in 5-6 years 
to reconstruct the roads, that is another burden on the property owners who live in that area.   
 
Mayor Helbling commented that he attended the recent public meeting and stated that he has a 
concern assessing 54 property owners $21,000 in specials to rebuild the street.  He inquired as to 
what funds could be available to apply towards this project since the City has projected to spend 
all of the Prairie Dog Funds through the processes put in place with the 20% buy down. There 
are the other projects that are in line with that buy down so there is no money available there and 
the City Sales Tax Fund is being tapped into for other projects throughout the City. The only 
resolution to help pay for this project, or any other project that comes in under budget would be 
if there are any Prairie Dog Funds leftover that could be applied towards this project - if that’s 
even a possibility.   The project(s) may be protested out and that will delay the project(s) into the 
future. He invited any residents present at this meeting to come forward to speak to this matter, 
noting that typically that has not been the process in the past; however, given the depth of this 
project, he felt it necessary to allow residents to comment should they wish to do so.  
 
Mark Landeis, 5901 Horseshoe Bend Roughrider Addition came forward to speak.  In particular, 
Special Assessment, District 7, Old Red Trail. He suggested if an overlay were put on that road, 
that would help the situation for a while.  He brought up one problem that has not been discussed 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 8 of 11 
tonight and that is the truck traffic on that road.  This is not a residential street, it’s an arterial 
road. The trucks head use this road to get to the industrial park. They come off Hwy 25, follow 
County Road 139, then proceed to Old Red Trail City portion. That is a big contributor to that 
road being destructed over the years. A suggestion at the meeting was to place load restrictions 
but they were told that is not appropriate but there was no reason given why.  It will require 
coordination with the county for the road restrictions, coming off Hwy 25 and County Road 139.  
Another concern is the assessment district for that project.  Since it is arterial road, and used for 
commercial, it is not fair the residents pay for this.  He and other neighbors feel the assessment 
district should include the commercial properties.   
 
Mayor Helbling commented that the district could not be expanded without starting over which 
would involve all the legal processes and legal notices and that would take this project out of 
year 2020.  Mayor Helbling inquired of Director Froseth that if road restrictions were placed 
would that take it out of the Urban Roads with the MPO?  Director Froseth replied that question 
came up at the meeting and his reply was to not put load restrictions on an arterial road.  He was 
not clear if putting road restrictions on Old Red Trail would take it out of an arterial 
classification or not.  Because it is an arterial road the trucks should be allowed to use it.  Mayor 
Helbling stated that the City needs to find someway to buy down that portion of Old Red Trail. 
Commissioner Davis stated that the policy of 20% buy down, was set as a precedent with the 
Southside Project, and now questions if there are different ways to buy down the Prairie Dog 
fund.  Is there a sliding scale for different properties for buy down?  Could it be adjusted for this 
project?  Mayor Helbling commented there is a way to do that but there are only so many Prairie 
Dog Funds and Sales Tax Funds available and those have been designated out.  He said it would 
be preferred to find a buy down for the 54 residents.  Commissioner Davis summarized what will 
happen when the next district comes up for review?  Maybe the districts should be looked at 
individually rather than all of them at “20%”?  Commissioner Larson suggested taking District 7 
out, what would be the potential for continued repair for Old Red Trail until it could be properly 
addressed with state or other funding?  Director Froseth stated that it would be as much as the 
current practice, putting something in the hole as they are recognized.  Commissioner Davis 
inquired if some of the commercial properties could be factored in without starting over?  Mayor 
Helbling commented that the City would have to find money internally do accomplish that – to 
expand the district.  Director Froseth replied that it would have to be a separate action to amend 
the district right now because of the legal description of the district being discussed. Any 
amendment to the district could not be done on the fly right now.  Mayor Helbling recommended 
that if this project goes forward, that a further look internally will be necessary to see what the 
City can do to buy down the Old Red Trail section before obtaining bids to try to bring the costs 
down.     
 
Mr. Landeis stated that he is in agreement that the project is needed and that he is not protesting 
it out, rather he came forward to point out concerns.  He also stated that in the Roughrider area 
the residents are still paying over $1,000 a year in specials from a 2014 project, that needed to 
also be done, but there are still specials out there to be paid.  Director Froseth provided an 
answer to a previous question having to do with what the assessment was for Division 7, and 
after the 20% buy down it would be about $884 per parcel (that’s total).  
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 9 of 11 
Ken Bollinger came forward to speak and stated that he has been living in this area since 1982.  
He said he does not mind doing some of the streets in the district but when he goes down to 
Roughrider and turns off he only uses that road a dozen times a year and he does not think he 
should pay for a road that he doesn’t use.  He inquired how the city decides where to start and 
stop the road repairs and who is to pay for it. 
 
Mayor Helbling stated that when Old Red Trail was reconstructed to the west, everything north 
of 40th Avenue East was assessed for that 40th Avenue and west was not. Director Froseth stated 
that they were both in that District but they were on different tiers.  West of 40th Avenue at that 
time had half the costs east of 40th Avenue.  The logic in the dividing point with this project is 
west of 40th gets an overlay and the east does not.  This is the proposal and is debatable and 
changing the size of the district will not be determined tonight.  
 
Mayor Helbling extended a thank you to everyone attending this meeting and the public hearing 
meeting and for voicing concerns.  He commented that the City Commission has been working 
to resolve the issues and concerns brought forward.  
 
Commissioner Larson stated she lives in this neighborhood and commented that special 
assessments are hard to deal with and present a challenge.  She agreed with the recommendations 
presented and the importance of looking for additional ways to buy down this project.  She 
suggested looking at recent projects and scaling back on some of them and named a few.  She 
wants to entice economic development but the need to take care of residents should come first.  
Commissioner Davis commented that with the Prairie Dog fund, some coffers are available and 
that now is the time to strike on the top to do these projects, because for upcoming sessions, the 
legislature might not do this again.  Commissioner Rohr commented that the City relies on 
external resources to help out for these projects. Mayor Helbling commented that consideration 
may be given to raising taxes city wide in the future in order to meet costs.  He stated that the 
City Commission will do what they can to come up with addition funds or considering taking 
funds out of existing projects.    
 
Commissioner Larson moved to approve the resolution creating the district, approve the 
engineer’s report, approve the feasibility report and approve the resolution of necessity for Street 
Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 2019-12  (Northwest Area). Commissioner Davis 
seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 
Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion 
passed. 
 
I.         RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
1.        Consider approval of a resolution adopting the Arrive 2045 Metropolitan Transportation 
Plan (MTP). Rachel Drewlow, Bis-Man MPO, presented a request on behalf of the Bismarck-
Mandan MPO, along with consultant Wade Kline from KLJ, to hold a public hearing and to 
present a request for the adoption of the final Arrive 2045 MTP.   She explained that Arrive 2045 
is the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) for the Bismarck-Mandan Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (BMMPO) which encompasses the City of Bismarck, City of Mandan, City of 
Lincoln and portions of Burleigh County and Morton County. The MPT is a long-range 
transportation planning tool that covers a planning horizon for the future 25 years.  As a master 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 10 of 11 
document it will help set up federal transportation spending for the next five (5) years.  Likewise, 
it must be presented to the governing boards of all BMMPO jurisdictions for their review and 
approval. She invited Wade Kline to present. 
 
Wade Kline, of KLJ, provided a slide presentation (via telephone conference call assisted by 
Rachel Drewlow).  He stated that the City of Mandan staff has been involved with the Arrive 
2045 effort throughout its development from its beginning of the RFP to the final document 
review.  The process included multiple steering committee meetings, three public meetings, a 
study website, input/review by local, state and federal partners, and monthly progress updates to 
the BMMPO Technical Advisory Committee and Policy Boards.  He presented both the short 
range and long range plans in particular, the financial plan.  The focus is to get the short range 
federal funds.  Overall, the mid and long range list is felt to be balanced as is the urban program.  
There is no immediate financial impact for the City.  Impact would occur if the City pursued a 
transportation project through the BMMPO’s annual solicitation and was awarded federal funds 
by NDDOT.  The City of Mandan staff would assist in the implementation of the 2020-2045 
MTP through the annual project solicitation process.  The Arrive 2045 MTP was presented to the 
City of Mandan Planning and Zoning Commission at their February 24, 2020 meeting.  The 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the Arrive 2045 MPT. 
 
Ms. Drewlow opened the public meeting for any questions.  Commissioner Larson inquired 
about the financial plan and what analysis has been done for Mandan versus Bismarck as far as 
population is concerned?  Mr. Kline explained that the urban program is not to be sub-allocated 
based on population anymore rather it is based on which projects meet the highest criteria so that 
is what is followed. On the regional system there are the three phases of Memorial Highway that 
will unfold over the next 5-8 years and overall it is balanced when looking at the needs faced by 
each region.  Mayor Helbling commented that he believes it has been a fair process overall and 
supports the programs.  Director Froseth commented that for the two major programs, Urban 
Roads and Urban Regional, he believes Mandan has been a beneficiary with a lot of funds going 
to principle arterials; and that regarding the urban roads, it has been a little different, that might 
have some catch up on minor arterials wherein Mandan has not benefited as much in recent 
history.  Ms. Drewlow said that the Executive Summary gives a breakdown of the projects that 
have been selected for potential funding spaced out over the next eight (8) years. 
 
Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing and invited anyone in the audience to come 
forward to speak for or against the approval of a resolution adopting the Arrive 2045 
Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP). A second announcement was made for anyone in the 
audience to come forward to speak for or against the resolution. A third and final announcement 
was made for anyone in the audience to come forward to speak for or against the approval of a 
resolution adopting the Arrive 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP). Hearing none, this 
portion of the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve Arrive 2045, the 2020-2045 Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan by Resolution of Adoption.   Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  
Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  
Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of March 3, 2020 

Page 11 of 11 
J.         OTHER BUSINESS: 
1.        Census 2020 Announcement. 
City Planner Van Dyke announced that this is a reminder to keep the public informed of census 
activity and reiterated the importance of everyone in North Dakota to be counted in the 2020 
census. Beginning this month all households will receive notice to complete the census for 
everyone living in their home. Census Day is April 1, 2020.  Data collection begins March 12, 
2020 and continues through July 2020. This is the first year responses can be submitted online, 
but the option to mail or call in responses will be available. The Morton Mandan Public Library 
will have computers available for the public to respond online. Census data is used to help better 
our community and region and it also helps determine funding provided by federal and state 
agencies for social services and infrastructure projects.   
 
2.           Commissioner Davis announced that he will not run for another term as City 
Commissioner.   
 
K.        ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no other business to come before the Board, Commissioner Rohr motioned to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:40 pm.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  The motion 
received unanimous approval of the members present.   
 
 
 
 
   
James Neubauer 
City Administrator 
 

 Tim Helbling, Mayor 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
 
  



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of a land use plan amendment, first 
consideration of Ordinance 1336 related to a zoning amendment, and preliminary plat for 
Longhorn 2nd Add.   
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  
 
The applicants seek to amend the land use and transportation plan of the City, rezone 
their property, and obtain approval for the preliminary plat of Longhorn 2nd Add.   
 
Land Use and Transportation Amendment 
 
The land use designation is currently rural residential.  The applicant would like to amend 
the land use and transportation plan to accommodate the existing use of commercial and 
expand that to apply to adjoining property owned by Mr. and Mrs. Alvina which is 
presently a platted residential subdivision – Longhorn 1st Add. Replat (See Exhibit 2).   
 
No roads were constructed to serve the platted subdivision and many of the lots created 
are encumbered by transmission line easements that would likely prohibit any future 
residential construction as it is platted currently.   
 
The proposed land use amendment would keep the rural residential designation for any 
lands adjacent to the property subject to this application.  Central Dakota Humane Society 
plans to expand their operations in the coming years and this would allow them to grow 
in-place rather than move from the existing location.   
 
There are presently industrial uses across 37th St. to the north.  This land is located 
outside the extra-territorial area of the City.  The applicants have consulted with P&Z 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: February 25, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Land Use Plan Amendment, First Consideration of 

Ordinance 1336 related to a Zoning Amendment, 
and Preliminary Plat for Longhorn 2nd Add.   

Public Hearing No. 1 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Land Use Plan Amendment, First Consideration of Ordinance 1336 related to a 
Zoning Amendment, and Preliminary Plat for Longhorn 2nd Add.   
Page 2 of 3 
 
Director Natalie Pierce who has informed the Morton County P&Z Commission of this 
application.   
 
The proposed land use aligns with the existing use in the area to the north and on part of 
the subject property.   
 
Staff is recommending approval due to the existing character of area near the intersection 
of 37th St. and 1806 N., to establish a commercial node accessible by neighboring 
residents, and its adjacency along a future minor arterial.  (A commercial node at this 
location would be similarly spaced as those planned for in other areas of the City/ETA).  
The rationale for the land use amendment is summarized in Exhibit 5.   
 
Zone Change 
 
The applicants seek to change the zoning from A-Agriculture and R-7 Residential to CB-
Commercial and A-Agriculture (See Exhibit 3).  The CB-Commercial zoning designation 
would accommodate the existing use of kennel and allow for the expansion onto 
adjoining land in the future.  The CB-Commercial zoning district would apply to the 
same area that is being proposed through the amendment to the land use and 
transportation plan.  The A-Agriculture zone would apply to the remainder of property 
and align with the neighboring land to the south.  The applicant would like to preserve 
this land as A-agriculture at this time to ensure the ability to farm.    
 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the rezone with 
RESTRICTIONS as follows: 
 
CB-Commercial:  
• Kennel 
• Dog Daycare 
• Animal Hospital or Clinic 
• Pet Grooming 
• Pet Hospital or Clinic 
 
A-Agricultural:  
• Field crop farming;  
• Commercial flower growing;  
• Fruit growing;  
• Tree, shrub or plant nursery; and 
• Livestock raising or feeding  
 
Preliminary Plat 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Land Use Plan Amendment, First Consideration of Ordinance 1336 related to a 
Zoning Amendment, and Preliminary Plat for Longhorn 2nd Add.   
Page 3 of 3 
 
The preliminary plat shows two lots (See Exhibit 4).  One lot will be served by a 40’ 
access easement.  No access lines have been required along 1806 N. and along 37th St. to 
ensure the same access point is utilized for both proposed lots.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the preliminary plat as proposed in Exhibit 4 with the 
following requirements: 
 
37th St. right-of-way will dedicate additional right-of-way as needed to meet arterial road 
width as planned for 37th. St. in the future.     
 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended unanimous approval of the land use and 
transportation plan amendment, zone change, and preliminary plat subject to minor 
relaxation of some restrictions applied to the CB-Commercial zone change.  These are 
incorporated into the DRAFT ordinance contained in Exhibit 6.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Application 
Exhibit 2 – Current-Proposed Future Land Use Map 
Exhibit 3 – Zone Change Map 
Exhibit 4 – Preliminary Plat 
Exhibit 5 – Resolution Amending Mandan Land Use and Transportation Plan 
Exhibit 6 – DRAFT Ordinance 1336 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Ordinance 1336 has been reviewed and approved by both City 
Attorney Brown.     
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Planning and Zoning Commission approved the 
amendment to the land use and transportation plan as outlined in Exhibit 5, recommended 
approval to the change in zoning as outlined in Exhibit 6, and approved the preliminary 
plat presented in Exhibit 4. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the amendment to the land use and 
transportation plan as outlined in Exhibit 5, the first consideration of Ordinance 1336 as 
outlined in Exhibit 6, and approve the preliminary plat as presented in Exhibit 4.   
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT 1
CITY OF MANDAN 

Development Review Application 

Minor Plat ($300) ✓ Zone Change ($600) 

✓ Preliminary Plat up to 20 acres ($400) Planned Unit Development ($700) 

Preliminary Plat more than 20 acres ($450) ✓ Land Use and Transportation Plan Amendment ($1,000) 

Final Plat up to 20 lots ($400) Vacation ($500) 

Final Plat 21 to 40 lots ($550) Variance ($400) 

Final Plat more than 40 lots ($700) Special Use Permit ($450) 

Annexation ($450) Stormwater submittal ($300) 

Masterplanned Subdivision (not accepted without Stormwater 2"
0 

& subsequent resubmittal ($50) 

preliminary plat) ($250) 

Appeals to Administrative Denials (Variance to Non-
zoning/Non-subdivision regulations) ($250) 

SummaryofRequest (Add separate sheet(s) as necessary) 

Replat Longhorn 1st Add. Replat, and combine with Aud. Lot "A" of NE1/4 Sec. 9 T139N-R81W 

Engineer/Surveyor Property Owner or Applicant 

Name Name 

Mark Isaacs/Toman Engineering Co Central Dakota Humane Society 
Address Address 

501 1st St NW 2104 37th St 
City 

]No 
State I sas2

;4 
City 

IND 
State lsas;~ Mandan Mandan 

email email 

mark@tomanengineering .com 
Phone I Fax 

Phone 

I 
Fax 

701-663-6483 701-663-0923 
If the applicant is not the current owner, the current owner must submit a notarized statement authorizing the 

applicant to proceed with the request. 

Location I Type I Existing Zone I ProposedZone I Project Name 

ICity I ✓ IETA I I New I ✓ I Addition I A & R7 CB Longhorn 2nd Addition 

Property Address Legal Description 

N/A All of Aud. Lot "A" of NE1/4, Section 9 & 
Current Use 

Industrial (Humane Society)/R7(Longhorn) Longhorn 1st Addition Replat 
Proposed Use 

Lot 1-Expansion of Humane Society/Lot 2-No Change Section 10 I Township 139 I Rangea1 

Parcel Size I Building Footprint 

I 
Stories 

I 
Building SF 

I 
Required Parking 

I 
Provided Parking 

21.07 AC± 

D 

000 Date I 
Notice in paper Mailed to neighbors P&Z meeting 

Approved Approved with conditions : 

Denied 

Updated 1/1/2020 X:\O. Administration\Application Documents\Development Application - January 1, 2020.docx 



' 

CITY OF MAN DAN 

Development Review Application 

Minor Plat ($300) ✓ Zone Change ($600) 

✓ Preliminary Plat up to 20 acres {$400) Planned Unit Development ($700) 

Preliminary Plat more than 20 acres ($450) ✓ Land Use and Transportation Plan Amendment (.$1,000) 

Flna l Plat up to 20 lots {$400) Vacation ($500) 

Fina l Plat 21 to 40 lots ($550) Variance ($400) 

Fina l Plat more than 40 lots ($700) Special Use Permit ($450) 

Annexation ($450) Stormwater submittal ($300) 

Masterplanned Subdivision (not accepted without Stormwater 200 & subsequent resubmJttal (·$50) 

preliminary plat) ($250) 

Appeals to Administrative Denials (Variance to Non-
zoning/Non•subdivision regulations) ($250) 

Summary of Request (Add separate sheet(s) as necessary) 

Rep!at Longhorn 1st Add. Replat, and combine with Aud. Lot "A" of NE1/4 Sec. 9 T139N-R81W 

Engineer/Surveyor Property Owner or Applicant 

Name Name 

Mark Isaacs/Toman Engineering Co Elmer & Alvina Madler 
Address Address 

501 1st St NW 3740 Highway 1806 
Qty 

IND 
State 

I s85
2
;4 

City 

IND 
State I ~p 

Mandan Mandan 58554 
emall email 

mark@lomanengineering .com 
Phone I Fax 

Phone 

! 
Fax 

701-663-6483 701-663-0923 
If the applicant is not the current owner, the current owner must submit a notarized statement-authorizing the 
applicant to proceed with the request. 

location Tvpe histing Zone 

Cit ✓ ETA ✓- Addition A & R7 

NIA 
Current Use 

Industrial (Humane Society)/R7(Longhorn) 
Pro osedUse 

Lot 1•Expansion of Humane Society/Lot 2•No Change 
Buildingfootprint Stories BulldlngSF 

21 .07 AC± 

Proposed Zone 

CB 
·Project Name 

Longhorn 2nd Addition 
le al Description 

All of Aud. Lot "A" of NE1/4, Section 9 & 

Longhorn 1st Addition Rep lat (incl. Entzel Drive) 

Section 10 Township 139 Range 81 

Required Parking Provided Parking 

Date 

Notice in paper Mailed to neighbors 

Ap roved Approved with conditions: 

Denied 

Updated 1/1/2020 X!\O. Adminlstration\Application Documents\Development App!icatlon - January 1, 2020.doc)j 



January 27, 2020 

City of Mandan 
Planning & Zoning 
205 2nd Ave. NW 
Mandan, ND 58554 

Attn: John Van Dyke 

RE: Amendment to Mandan Land Use Plan 
Longhorn 2nd Addition Preliminary Plat 
TECo #4470 

The Cen t.raJ Dakota Hwnane Society has entered into a Purchase Agreement with Elmer and 
Alvina Madler for the purchase of all of Longhorn 151 Addition Rep lat Lying in and Bejng Part of 
the NWl/4 of Section I 0, Tl39N-R81 W. This property lies within the City of Mandan 2 mile 
ETA. We are hereby requesting a land use amendment. 

Madler's property (Longhorn !st Addition Replat) lies adjacent to the Central Dakota Humane 
Society Complex north of Mandan, which opened in 1994. 

Currently, the Society is planning to expand their facility, create safe and open walking trails 
within the property and enlarge their outside facility areas. This makes the adjacent property 
ideal because of its location. 

Longhorn I st Addition Rep lat is currently zoned R7 and the Central Dakota Humane Society 
property is Zone A. Part of the Purchase Agreement is to secure a zone change approval prior lo 
the land sale. 

Central Dakota Humane Society and the Madlers have submitted applications for Preliminary 
Plat, Zone Change and Land Use Amendment approvals. Trus is for all of the Longhorn l st 

Addition and Humane Society prope1ty which will be combined into 2 lots. The request is for a 
Zone Change to CB Co1mnercial for the entire property. 

Zoning as it exists today is: 
To the North (3i11 St.) which lies in Morton County is zoned Industrial (See attached 
exhibit). 
To the West (1806) the land is currently zoned Agriculnu-al and Rmal Residential (See 
attached exhibit). 
The property to the East is shown as land for Public Use on the current Regional Land 
Use Plan. 

With the proposed Zone Change request the properties use will remain as they are today. Tbe 
request as submitted will enhance the Central Dakota Humane Societies property to expand and 
fulfill our mission statement. 



Th property as proposed (Longhorn 2nd Addition both platting and z ning will blend into the 
existing area as it ha ver the la t 26 years and continue to erve the community. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

c Toman Engineering o. 
nc Zoning Maps 

I Map 



H
W

Y
1806

N

SIOUX ST N

37th ST

E
N

T
Z

E
L 

PL
1-Rural

Residential

1-Greenway
corridor

1-Low
Density Res

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

Proposed Future Land Use

Commercial

Unchanged - Rural Residential

N
0 375 750 1,125 1,500

Feet

Longhorn 2nd Add. Current and Proposed
Future Land Use

EXHIBIT 2

Ma 
Dr:C,111 

b 

18 ■ 1QF ..... 



1/27/2020 Zoning Map Online - Public

https://mandan.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=243ab2243bbd4d869aa139b545f13ec5 1/1

� �Find address or place+

–

600ft600ft600ft600ft600ft

-100.899 46.878 Degrees

RESIDENTIAL

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L

COUNTY
RESIDENTIAL

R7

AGRICULTURAL AGRICULTURAL

AGRICULTURAL

ZONE CHANGE MAP

COUNTY
RESIDENTIAL

CB

A

INDUSTRIAL

INDUSTRIAL

PROPOSED
ZONING

MANDAN
ETA LINE

NO SCALE

37TH ST
H

W
Y
 1806

EXHIBIT 3

\ 

1' 



∆

∆

∆

EN
TZ

EL
 D

R
 N

ND HIG
HW

AY 1806

37TH STREET
37TH STREET

LONGHORN 2ND ADDITION

501 1st Street NW, Mandan, ND 58554
Phone: 701-663-6483 * Fax: 701-663-0923

Δ

H
:
\
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
4
0
0
0
\
4
4
7
0
 
E
l
m
e
r
 
M
a
d
l
e
r
\
4
4
7
0
 
P
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
P
l
a
t
.
d
w
g
,
 
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
0
 
4
:
2
1
:
0
4
 
P
M
,
 
A
n
d
r
a
,
 
1
:
1

EXHIBIT 4

\1 

\ 

PRELIM INARY PLAT 

ALL OF AUD ITOR'S LOT "A" OF THE NE1 / 4 OF SECTION 9 AND LONG HORN 1 ST ADD ITION 
REPLAT ( IN CLUD ING ENTZEL DRIVE) OF THE NW 1/4 OF SECTI ON 10 , T139N - R8 1W OF 

MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
LYING WITHIN THE 1-MILE EXTRATERR ITOR IAL JURISDICTI ON OF THE CITY OF MANDAN 

\ / i , I '~ ~ 
"°'~ ms 1'1 ~ UtlE O LOT 1 

5 509 182 sq ft 
, @ \\\9 Acce 

~I \\ 

1:1 \~ 
ti 
~ \ \ 

\ '\ 

,· 
\ 

I', 

\ 

\ I 
- ,- - ~- _::_<2 )..________..:_ - ~ 

\ 1\ \\ \ I I /ill I 
\ \ I \ \ \ I \ I I I ) 

\ I , ) ( ( I 

- - --- - - - --, , 
~ 
\ 

( 
\ 

!'\ 
' \ 

) '\ \ \ '\\ 
I ) \ . '\, \'\ I 

/ \~ ~ 
\ ('?.,.6' ~ ')~ 

I 

) 

( 
I 
I 

) 
I 

I 

I 

j 
) ~ \. c.,~ 

, \ I ~ (,i, \ 
~ \ ~, I 

~ / \ I 

½_ ,\~\ l;' .. · .. ' 
\ \ \ ~ ,'\ ~\ \ 

\ ~ (\ '\ 
\( '\ \' 
\ \ \ L\t\\ 

\ \ ,{ 
\ l 

/ I 
\ ',' 

\ \ /_/ 

,, ~ 

J:11 

1 1'1, \\I 1 , , , l 
' \ I I I I 
I 

1 \11 1 ~ \ 
,1, I 1\ 111 I I 1 , 

," :fl) , ~,;1,J); 1/y 

·+· s 

JANUARY, 2020 

'° l"""I 
Sco l\J~~ DATU~~NAVD68 ft 

HORIZ. DARJt,1:1983 ST. PLANE, ND SOUTH (3302) 

WiEllll 

FOUND PROPERTY CORNER 

-o- [EJ POWER POLE 

OVERHEAD POWER 

c:===] ASPHALT 

[-:. ::::: ·::::; ~.;] CO NCRETE 

c::::::J BUILDING 

~ GRAVELAPPROACH 

PBOPEBIXPFSCBIPTION· 

A TRACT OF LAND BEING ALL OF AUDITOR·s LOT "A" OF THE NE1/<4 OF 
SECTION 9, MID PART or LONGHORN 1ST ADDITION REPLAT {INCLUDING 
ENTZEL DRIVE) NW1/ <4 OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 81 
WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON 
COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED I'S FOLLOWS 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTI ON 9 , T139N-R6 1W; 
THENCE SOUTH 00' 35'02• EAST ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 9 FOR 33.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LONGHORN 1ST 
ADDITION REPLAT OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY. NORTH DAKOTA, 

~~ ~bNJG ~~~ ~~~~ T:J=u:g~ ~N:Eg~N~~g: L~N~NHCOER~ot; .,,~9~~~~!9" 
REPLAT FOR 237.26 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LONGHORN 

~~0 ~~o~N~E6~t:t~t ~ HsgRu:H1 if!~i~~NEA~p~~N~o~f 4~T9 
FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LONGHORN 1ST ADDITION REPLAT: 
TH ENCE SOUTH 89' J0' 17• WEST ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID 
LONGHORN 1ST ADD ITION REPLAT FOR 875.9 1 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID LONGHORN 1ST ADDfflON REPLAT, SAID POINT ALSO BEING 

~~s~~E~l~~LYo~1~~-~cwt: ~INlu~~ ~~ ~~:t~~ l~~·Nri ~~l~Ts 
OF 2939.79 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LE FT, ANO ALONG 
SAID EASTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE (THE CHORD OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 
20'06' 15 " WEST. 1055.61 FEET} AN ARC LENGTH OF 106 1.56 FEET TO TO 
THE C.S. (CURVE TO SPIRAL) OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RAIOUS 
OF 2939.79FEET; TH ENCEALONGSAIOSPIRALCURVE,ANOCONTINUING 
ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT- OF-WAY LINE (THE CHORD o r WHICH BEARS 
NORTH 33'06°02" WEST, 348.70 FEET) A SPIRAL CURVE LENGTH OF 349.07 
FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF AUDITOR 'S LOT "A" o r THE NE1/4 o r 
SECTION 10, T1J9N- R81W; THENCE NORTH 89'49'51" EAST ALONG THE 
NORTH BOUNDARY LINEOFSAIOAUDITOR 'SLOT"A"FOR4J4.0 1 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 2 1.08 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS. 

~ TOMAN ENGINEERING 

~ 

llWllEB!S 
CENTRAL DAKOTA HUMANE SOCIETY 
2104J7TH ST 
MANOAN, ND58554 

ELMER MADLER 
3740 HIGHWAY 1806 
MANOAN, ND58554 

RASISOFAFABING 
NORTH BOUNDARY LINE NEl /4 SEC. 9 
NORTH89' 35'49"EAST 

= 1. BEARINGS AND DISTANCES MAY VAR.Y 
FROM PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS OF 
RECORD DUE TO DIFFERENT METHODS 
OF FIELD MEASUREMENT. 
TOTAL ACREAGE: 21.09 AC± 
NO HWY 1806 CENTERLINE CURVE 
DATA PER HIGHWAY ROW MAP· 

- J4' 52 ' RT 
0 - 2· - 2 soo· SPIRALS 
sc = s·o· 

XC - 14.54' 
YC - 499.6' 
LC = 500' 
TS = 1150.6' 
L - 1243.J' 

4 LOTS 1- 6, BLOCK 1 AND THE 
RIGHT- OF- WAY OF ENZEL DRIVE IN 
LONGHORN 1ST ADDITION REPLAT (DOC 
1460938) SHALL BE VACATED BY THIS 
PLAT. 

5. TOTAL AREA: 2 1.08 ACRES± 
6 . THE 40' ACCESS EASEMENT SHOWN 

~~~E~~N~s,iiotF J~6~-~S_fuDA~D TO 

EQUALLY 

\ 



EXHIBIT 5

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
City of Mandan, North Dakota 

WHEREAS, North Dakota Century Code Section 40-48-08 requires that the 
planning commission make and adopt a master plan for the physical development of the 
municipality and of any land outside its boundaries which, in the commission's 
judgement, bears a relation to the planning of the municipality; and 

WHEREAS, North Dakota Century Code Section 40-48-09 requires that the 
planning commission make careful and comprehensive surveys and studies of present 
conditions and future growth of the municipality with due regard to its relation to 
neighboring territory; and 

WHEREAS, North Dakota Century Code Section 40-48-10 requires that before 
adopting the master plan or any part of it or any substantial amendment thereof, the 
planning commission hold at least one public hearing thereon; and 

WHEREAS, City staff met with the applicants/property owners and their 
consultant numerous times to discuss the proposed amendment; and 

WHEREAS, The owners of the subject property submitted an application to 
amend the land use and transportation plan for the land as illustrated in Exhibit 'A' from 
Rural Residential to Commercial; and 

WHEREAS, The application has been evaluated by numerous internal 
departments and external agencies and found to be favorable to the existing land use 
planned for the subject property; and 

WHEREAS, The amendment is greatly informed by the existing use as 
commercial on part of the property subject to this resolution, the planned future minor 
arterial to run along 37th St., and existing industrial/commercial uses to the north of the 
subject property located outside the extra-territorial area of the City at this time, and 
existing plan's practice of utilizing commercial nodes to serve area residents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA, THAT: 

1. The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan is hereby amended; and 
2. The Comprehensive Plan shall be presented to the City Commission for approval 

as required by North Dakota Century Code Section 40-48-11; and 
3. Upon approval by the City Commission, staff is instructed to publish and 

distribute the plan; and 
4. Staff in instructed to report back to the Planning and Zoning Commission at least 

annually regarding implementation of the plan. 



Dated this 24th day of F bruary 2020 

President, Planning and Zoning Commission 

ATTEST: 

'i] offlC1 ~ 22'.1 /H'/ 0 d i>J: nning a Zoning Secretary 



\ \ POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 
'. \NW COR SEC. 10, T139N-R81W ~ 
\ ·, \ ~ S 00°35'02" E 

- - - -37THSTREET - - --\- '\-- ~. - -N 89°49'51" E- ~33.00' . \ ----- \----;:~--- 434.01' POB N 89°35'49" E --1.P ---------------------------------------------

\ , I 237.26' '-b 
'.\ ', ~ -~"> t5',. '[9_ . , I .,.. o 

\ \ -~ o'., 

N 33°06'02" w X , 1' 
LC=348.87' \' !A\[U)ID}. l(O)'lf 11/fo/ I 

SPIRAL CURVE \ 
ARC LENGTH:\ \ I 

349.07' \ ~ 
\ 0 
\ -;:. 

I Q 

\ ~ 
\ '"F..L 

\ ~ 
• Cl 
\ ' ' \ 

\ \ 

N 22°26'51" W \ 
LC=818.42'X 
R=2939.79' \ 

A=821.09' \ 
T=413.23' \ 1 

D=16"00'10'' \ \ • I . \ 
\ I . \ 

\ I 

I 
TRACT 1 

520474 SQFT 
11 .95AC ± 

\ 

0 
C0 0 
N o 
N W 
....,. c.n 

~ ~ 

8,,(Q)!M~IXl@~rM rn 

1 $'ii' ~IDJ[OL 
~IEfPll~il' 

TRACT 1 
EXHIBIT "A'' 

\ \1 
\ I S 87°31'02"' W 

TOMAN ENGINEERING 
COMPANY 

\ \I 
' 

\\ \ 
•, I\ 
\ I 

305.19' 
' 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

0 200' 

~ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

501 1st street NW, Mandan, ND 58554 
Phone: 701-663-6483 • fax: 701-663-0923 \ I \ \ ----------

\ 
-~ 

' : \ I 
Traverse PC 



ORDINANCE NO. 1336 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 105-2-2 OF THE 
MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
AND ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, 
NORTH DAKOTA. 
 

WHEREAS, The zoning district amendment for TRACT 1 is found to align with 
the City of Mandan Future Land Use and Transportation Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, The zoning district amendment for TRACT 2 is found to create 

harmony with the adjacent properties to the east and west, which are similarly zoned; and   
 
WHEREAS, The RESTRICTIONS provided for herein for TRACT 1 are 

necessary to facilitate the existing commercial use and mitigate traffic impacts to the 
intersection of 1806 N and 37th St. without the benefit of a traffic impact study and 
necessary improvements stemming from more intense commercial uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, The RESTRICTIONS provided for herein for TRACT 2 are 

necessary to allow limited agricultural uses as requested by the applicant and allow the 
City of Mandan the ability to reevaluate the suitability of the property for alternative uses 
moving forward; and 

 
WEHREAS, There exists commercial uses north across 37th St., presently outside 

of the City of Mandan’s extraterritorial jurisdiction; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Mandan Land Use and Transportation Plan calls for 

utilizing commercial nodes, where one at this location would be appropriate given the 
similar geospatial distribution of the others contained in said document; and    

 
WHEREAS, 37th St. is a planned future minor arterial intersecting with 1806 N, 

an existing major arterial, lending itself to be a prime commercial location in the future. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 
 
 
SECTION 1.  ZONING AMENDMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances is amended to read as follows:   
 

TRACT 1 OF EXHIBIT ‘A’ (PROPOSED LOT 1, BLOCK 1 OF 
LONGHORN 2ND ADDITION) BEING ALL OF AUDITOR'S LOT "A" OF THE 
NE1/4 OF SECTION 9, AND PART OF LONGHORN 1ST ADDITION REPLAT 
(INCLUDING ENTZEL DRIVE) OF THE NW1/4 OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 139 
NORTH, RANGE 81 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, OF THE CITY 
OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 9, T139N-

R81W; THENCE SOUTH 00°35'02" EAST ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY LINE 



OF SAID SECTION 9 FOR 50.00 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE 50 FEET SOUTH 
OF AND PARALLEL TO THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SECTION 9, 
SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 
89°35'49" EAST ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE FOR 247.12 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE OF LONGHORN 1ST ADDITION OF THE CITY 
OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA; THENCE SOUTH 30°39'08" 
EAST ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE FOR 231.55 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
00°35'31" EAST FOR 822.16 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 87°31'02" WEST FOR 305.19 
FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY LINE OF ND HIGHWAY 
1806, SAID POINT ALSO BEING ON THE ARCE OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 2939.79 FEET RADIUS; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE 
TO THE LEFT, AND ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE (THE 
CHORD OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 22°26'51" WEST, 818.42 FEET) AN ARC 
LENGTH OF 821.09 FEET TO THE C.S. (CURVE TO SPIRAL) OF A CURVE TO 
THE LEFT HAVING A RAIDUS OF 2939.79 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID SPIRAL 
CURVE, AND CONTINUING ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 
(THE CHORD OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 32°59'16" WEST, 328.03 FEET) A 
SPIRAL CURVE LENGTH OF 328.12 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE 50 FEET 
SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL TO THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF  SECTION 
10, T139N-R81W; THENCE NORTH 89°49'51" EAST ALONG SAID PARALLEL 
LINE FOR 422.35 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID TRACT OF LAND 
CONTAINING 11.69 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 
 

Said tract shall be removed from the A-Agricultural and R-7 Residential District and be 
included in the CB – Commercial District WITH RESTRICTIONS.  The allowable 
uses are limited to the following: 
 

• Kennel 
• Dog Daycare 
• Animal Hospital or Clinic 
• Pet Grooming 
• Pet Hospital or Clinic 

 
AND 
 

TRACT 2 OF EXHIBIT ‘A’ (PROPOSED LOT 2, BLOCK 1 OF 
LONGHORN 2ND ADDITION) BEING A PART OF AUDITOR'S LOT "A" OF THE 
NE1/4 OF SECTION 9, AND PART OF LONGHORN 1ST ADDITION REPLAT OF 
THE NW1/4 OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 81 WEST OF THE 
5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, 
NORTH DAKOTA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 9, T139N-

R81W; THENCE NORTH 89°35'50" EAST ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE 
OF SAID SECTION 9 FOR 218.12 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
LONGHORN 1ST ADDITION REPLAT OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON 
COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA ; THENCE SOUTH 30°39'08" EAST ALONG THE 
EAST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID LONGHORN 1ST ADDITION REPLAT FOR 



289.43 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 
30°39'08" EAST FOR 1235.45 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
LONGHORN 1ST ADDITION REPLAT; THENCE SOUTH 89°30'17" WEST ALONG 
THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID LONGHORN 1ST REPLAT FOR 875.91 
FEET TO THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVNING A RADIUS OF 2939.79 
FEET, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 
LONGHORN 1ST ADDITION REPLAT; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE 
LEFT, AND ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID LONGHORN 1ST 
ADDITION REPLAT (THE CHORD OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 12°06'10" WEST, 
240.41 FEET) AN ARC LENGTH OF 240.48 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87°31'02" 
EAST FOR 305.19 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°35'31" WEST FOR 822.16 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 9.14 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS. 
 
Said tract shall be removed from the R-7 Residential District and be included in the A-
Agricultural District WITH RESTRICTIONS.  The allowable uses are limited to the 
following: 
 

• Field crop farming;  
• Commercial flower growing;  
• Fruit growing;  
• Tree, shrub or plant nursery; and 
• Livestock raising or feeding  

 
 
 
SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to 
make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with 
this section.   
 
 

         
Tim Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 
 
                                       
Jim Neubauer 
City Administrator 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission:    February 24, 2020  
First Consideration:                                                                March 17, 2020_____ 
Second Consideration and Final Passage:   April 7, 2020__   
Recording Date:          
 



CB - COMMERCIAL wRESTRICTIONS

\ \ POINT OF COMMENCEMENT~ 
\ \NW COR SEC. 10, T139N-R81W 
\ ·, \ S 00°35'02" E 

- - - -37TH STREET - - -- \ - ~ ~ - - N 89°49'51" E - :::::=--=----=33.00' 
---- \---'\~--- 434.01' POB N 89°35'49" E -- (J) ---------------------------------------------

\ \ I 237.26· ~ 

'\ \ ~ ~-
\, \ I -~- ~~ 

N 33°06'02" Wx \'. 
LC=348.87' \' ~[L')ID). [L(O)'ii' 

11
~

11 I 
SPIRAL CURVE \ 

ARC LENGTH:\ \ I 
349.07 -. ~ 

\ 
\ 0 

\ -:;:. 
~ \ -z.. 

\ ~ 
' ' \ 

\ 

\ 
' \ 

N 22°26'51" W \ 
LC=818.42'X 

TRACT 1 
EXHIBIT "A" 

R=2939.79' \ 
A=821.09' \ 
T=413.23' \ 1 

0=16°00'10" \ \ 

\ \ 
• I 

\ \ 
• I 

\ \ 
' I 
\ . 
\ . . 
\ 
' ' 
\ 

I 

\ 

I 
TRACT 1 

520474 SOFT 
11.95AC ± 

(/) 

0 
CO 0 
N o 

!') ~ 
~ ~ 

IL@ l~Hfil WI@ lffi 1M rn 
~$'ii' ~[O)ID). 

IP31Elf»~T 

S 87°31 '02" W 

305.19' 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

0 200' 

~ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ TOMAN ENGINEERING 

COMPANY 
501 1st Street NW, Mandan, ND 58554 

Phone: 701-663-6483 • Fax: 701-663-0923 

\ 
I -----------~ 

Traverse PC 



A-AGRICULTURE wRESTRICTIONS

, \ POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 
\, '\NW C?R SEC. 10, T139N-R81W 

\ ' \ ---___:_~~ --
\ \ ' ----- -------------\,----"'\ ----\ 

218.12' __ _____ - - 37TH STREET ---~--=------------ ----------

-. ,\ \ I \ \ 

\ \ I 
' \ \ \ 

\\ '\, \\ ~UJ!lll l!.@11' ll(AII I 
' \ 

\ , \ I ', \ 
\ . 

\ ~ I 
\ -:;. \ 
\ ~ I 

._ ~ \ I 
\ ~ \ 

', '\ \ I 
\ \ I \ 

z 
0 

CX) 0 
N 0 

w N CJ1 _,_ w 
~ _,_ 

= \' \ \ I 
\ \ \1 
'\ \ \ 

l!.@~~l}{]lO)IP1100 ~ 

TRACT 2 
EXHIBIT "A" 

TOMAN ENGINEERING 
COMPANY 

501 1st Street NW, Mandan, ND 58554 
Phone: 701-663-6483 • Fax: 701-663-0923 

Traverse PC 

\ \ I\ 

~ $'ii /AIDJli)). 
!RllE~U1r 

\, \\ I \ 
N 87°31'02" E 

\ I L~~~~---\ \I 305.19' 
\ I 

N 12°06'1 O" 'A'. \ 
LC=240.41 I 
R=2939.79'~ 

A=240.48: I\ 
T=120.31 , 

0 =4°41'13" I \ 
\ I 

: I 

TRACT 2 
397946 SOFT 

9.14AC± 

s 89°30'17" w 
875.91' 

200' 

~ 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the preliminary plat for Lakewood 9th 
Add. Replat of Lot 1, Block 4.     
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: Art Goldhammer, on behalf of the VE Land 
Company, seeks approval for a preliminary plat to Lot 1, Block 4, Lakewood 9th Add.  
 
The property is currently a stormwater retention pond that was over built as the 
surrounding developments utilized the dirt from this lot to fill and elevate out of the 
floodplain.  Due to the stormwater pond being developed over capacity, there is potential 
for the lot to be partially filled and elevated thereby creating four new lots (See Exhibit 
2).  Three of the lots will have street frontage along 21st St. SE.  The lot in the rear will 
continue to function to facilitate stormwater flows and be held in common ownership by 
the three street-fronting lots proposed.   
 
The property is zoned PUD, where these lots will continue to be restricted to limited uses 
in the CB-Commercial District.   
 
Staff received two calls from neighboring property owners.  One neighbor indicated that 
he was happy to hear that the lot abutting their property would still function as a 
stormwater pond and provide a buffer to the development near 21st.  The other property 
owner was just curious what was being proposed.   
 
Staff and Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of the preliminary plat 
subject to a few conditions already shared with the applicant (See Exhibit 3).  The 
applicant indicated they were amenable to the conditions.   
 
Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval at the February 
P&Z hearing.    

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 2, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat for Lakewood 9th Add. Replat of 

Lot 1, Block 4 

Public Hearing No. 2 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Preliminary Plat for Lakewood 9th Add. Replat of Lot 1, Block 4 
Page 2 of 2 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  The staff report and corresponding attachments have been provided 
to Malcolm as part of the agenda packet for review.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Engineering and Planning recommend approval of the 
preliminary plat as presented in Exhibit 2 subject to the conditions of approval contained 
in Exhibit 3.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the preliminary plat as presented in Exhibit 
2 subject to the conditions of approval contained in Exhibit 3.  .   
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT 1

CITY OF MANDAN 

Development Review Application 

Minor Plat ($300) Zone Change ($600) 

ti Preliminary Plat up to 20 acres ($400) Planned Unit Development ($700) 

Preliminary Plat more than 20 acres ($450) Land Use and Transportation Plan Amendment ($1,000) 

Final Plat up to 20 lots ($400) Vacation ($500) 

Final Plat 21 to 40 lots ($550) Variance ($400) 

Final Plat more than 40 lots ($700) Special Use Permit ($450) 

Annexation ($450) Stormwater submittal ($300) 

Masterplanned Subdivision (not accepted without Stormwater 2"~ & subsequent resubmittal ($SO) 

preliminary plat) ($250) 

Appeals to Administrative Denials (Variance to Non-

zoning/Non-subdivision regulations) ($250) 

Summary of Request (Add separate sheet[s) as necessary) 

Lot split/preliminary plat for future development of Animal Rescue Pet Clinic & Grooming Facility and/or other uses allowed in 01216 

Engineer/Surveyor Property Owner or Applicant 

Name Name 

Swenson Hagen & Co VE Land Company, LLC 
Address Address 

909 Basin Ave 3100 N 14th Street 
City 

IND 
State 1 Zip 

City 

IND 
State lssso3 Bismarck 58504 Bismarck 

emall email 

lniemllle r@swensonhagen.com arthur@ verityhomes.com 

Phone 

I 
Fa1< Phone 

I 
Fax 

701-223-2600 701-663-4117 
If the applicant is not the current owner, the current owner must submit a notarized statement authorizing the 

applicant to proceed with the request, 

location I Type I ExlstingZone 

v' !City I !ETA I ! New I I Addition !PUD 
Property Address 

Current Use 

N/A 
Proposed Use 

Parcel Size 

I 
Building footprint 

Print Name 
Arthur Goldammer 

Date Received : 

I 
Stories 

In itials: 

I 
Building SF 

I Proposed Zone I Project Name 
Lakewood 9th Replat 

legal Description 

Lot 1 Block 4 

Lakewood 9th Addition 

Section 1 I Township 138 I Range 81 

I 
Required Parking 

I 
Provided Parking 

Date 
1/3/2020 

Fees Paid : 
Notice in paper Mailed to neighbors 

A roved Approved with conditions : 

Denied 

Updated 1/1/2020 X:\0. Administration\Application Documents\Development Application - January 1, 2020.docx 



223





 
 


 








Hydrology&Co
Surveying

Land Planning

Construction Management
Landscape & Site Design

909 Basin Avenue
Bismarck, North Dakota 58504

sheng@swensonhagen.com
Phone (701) 223 - 2600
Fax (701) 223 - 2606Civil Engineering

SWENSON, HAGEN & COMPANY P.C.

EXHIBIT 2

PART O.F TH.i' H.i' 1/4 O.F S.i'CTIOH I , TOTHSHIP 138 HORTH, .llAHC.i' 81 T.i'ST 

0 

I_/ -

~> '1 , ,o 
~-,, / ne, ~/ ; ;:E; 

c:i 

(7 

0 

~ 
CI/I 

lj_ 

N 

·t · ,. 

b 
SCALE - 1'' ~ 60" 

VERTICAL DA TUM: NA VD 88 

JANUARY 3, 2019 



Conditions of Approval 

• Lot 1A should be a common lot and included as joint ownership for the other three street-
fronting lots.

• Lots to be renumbered in numeric sequence (e.g. 1, 2, 3, etc.)

• Necessary submittals demonstrating adherence to the Mandan Code of Ordinance related to F-
Floodplain Districts.

• Stormwater plan approved by the City Engineer.

• Access easement from 21st St. SE to Lot 1A (stormwater pond) should be included on final plat.

EXHIBIT 3



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 
1314 related to outdoor seating.    
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The City has received numerous requests over the 
years for outdoor seating, located in the public right-of-way.  Last year, the City worked 
with Thomas and Moriarty’s to trial what is being proposed as a permanent outdoor 
seating ordinance.   
 
The outdoor seating ordinance has minimum provisions that need to be met such as 
fencing that doesn’t interfere with Americans with Disability Act sidewalk width 
requirements, an aesthetic review by Mandan Architectural Review Commission, and 
other considerations.      
 
The ordinance would require a permit to be approved by Mandan Architectural Review 
Commission and signed off by the building, fire, and engineering departments prior to 
establishing an outdoor seating area.   
 
The ordinance is similar to the one Bismarck has in-place for outdoor seating and we 
would require a separate right-of-way encroachment agreement to be signed by both the 
City and the applicant.   
 
Multiple departments, especially legal, were involved in the creation of this ordinance.  
All recommend approval as presented in Exhibit 1.   
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 6, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: First Consideration of Ordinance 1314 related to 

Outdoor Seating 

Public Hearing No. 3 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: First Consideration of Ordinance 1314 related to Outdoor Seating 
Page 2 of 2 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – DRAFT Ordinance 1314 related to Outdoor Seating 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Ordinance 1314 has been reviewed and approved by both City 
Attorney Brown and Assistant City Attorney Amy Oster.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The city departments with an interest in the matter recommend 
approval of Ordinance 1314 as presented in Exhibit 1.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1314 
related to outdoor seating as presented in Exhibit 1.  
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 1314 

An Ordinance to Enact a New Article 10 to 
Chapter 115 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 

Relating to Outdoor Seating Areas 

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

An Ordinance to create a new Article 10 to Chapter 115 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances relating to outdoor seating areas on public sidewalks is hereby enacted as follows: 

Article 10. – OUTDOOR SEATING AREAS 

Section 115-10-1. - Definitions. 

Operator means any person or entity which owns, operates, or manages a business that 
uses or applies to use an outdoor seating area. 

Outdoor seating area means a permitted seating area on a public sidewalk that is used 
for seating purposes by a permit holder. 

Permit holder means any person or entity which holds a current permit for an outdoor 
seating area. 

Permitted business means the business that regularly and customarily sells food or 
drink and is allowed to use an outdoor seating area as authorized under this section. 

Section 115-10-2. - Sidewalk Use Limited; Outdoor Seating Area Permit. 

(1) No business may use a public sidewalk to seat its patrons without first obtaining a 
permit for an outdoor seating area issued by the City. No person shall place 
tables, chairs, or other seating on a public sidewalk in conjunction with a business 
without first obtaining a permit for an outdoor seating area that is issued by the 
City. 

(2) A business that regularly and customarily sells food or drink may obtain a permit 
from the City to operate an outdoor seating area on the terms and conditions set 
out in this section. The permit shall specify the specific area to be used for 

EXHIBIT 1



 

outdoor seating, the furniture to be used within the outdoor seating area, and the 
proposed arrangement of the furniture. 

 
(3) An outdoor seating area permit authorizes a limited use of the public sidewalk so 

long as that private use does not interfere with the public interest or public use of 
the sidewalk.  

 
Section 115-10-3. - Sidewalk Areas Eligible for Outdoor Seating. 

 
An outdoor seating area shall meet all of the following requirements: 
 
(1) The building in which the permitted business operates must share a common 

boundary line with a public sidewalk. 
 
(2) The outdoor seating area shall not extend beyond the boundaries fronting the 

permitted business. 
 
(3) The operation of the outdoor seating area must be related to the sale of food or 

drink from the permitted business. 
 
(4) The outdoor seating area shall allow a minimum 44-inch wide unobstructed 

pedestrian corridor at all times. Wider pedestrian corridors or increased 
clearances may be required where warranted by pedestrian traffic or other 
circumstances or to comply with applicable building codes, the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, or other laws. 
 

(5) A minimum clearance of five feet must be maintained between the outdoor 
seating area and edge of driveways, alleys, and handicapped ramps. 

(6) Outdoor seating area at corners must not extend to within sight triangles at street 
intersections or driveway entrances. 

(7) Clear unobstructed height of seven feet must be maintained between the sidewalk 
surface and overhead objects including umbrellas. 

(8) The outdoor seating area must not block access to public amenities like street 
furniture, trash receptacles, and way finding, or directional signs. 

(9) Above-ground City public utilities infrastructure or transportation infrastructure 
shall not be enclosed without written authorization of the Public Works Director. 

(10) Furniture must be made of durable material. No plastic furniture is permitted. 

(11) Planters or pots may be used to define the outdoor dining space but are not 
required. 



 

(12) Tabletop signage is limited to menus. 

(13) All privately owned outdoor fixtures, such as fencing or barricades, must be 
freestanding. No portion of the fencing or barricade materials shall be anchored 
to the sidewalk or any other object within the public right-of-way. 

(14) The permit holder shall not have on the premises any bell, siren, horn, 
loudspeaker, or any similar device to attract the attention of possible customers; 
nor shall the permit holder use any such device to attract attention. 

(15) The permit holder shall comply with the prohibitions on disturbing, annoying, 
and unnecessary noises set forth in Section 16-6 of this Code. 

 
Section 115-10-4. - Alcoholic Beverages. 
 

(1) For any outdoor seating area where alcoholic beverages are served, the permit 
holder shall comply with all state and local regulations for the sale, possession, 
and/or consumption of alcoholic beverages and shall provide the City with a 
diagram and/or plans showing the location of the outdoor seating area where 
alcoholic beverages will be served. 

(2) The area where alcoholic beverages are sold, possessed, and/or consumed must 
be effectively bordered by a partition, temporary fence, or other rigid device 
designed and intended to separate the outdoor seating area from passerby. The 
barrier must be no less than 32 inches in height. 

(3) Permit holders and operators shall ensure that the permitted business obeys all 
laws related to alcohol service and consumption. Permit holders shall post visible 
signs at all exit points from the outdoor seating area to the public sidewalk 
reminding patrons that they cannot possess open containers of alcohol outside the 
outdoor seating area. To retain an outdoor seating area permit, permit holders and 
operators shall ensure that no alcohol is served or consumed outside the permitted 
outdoor seating area. 

(4) If the permitted business does not have direct access to the outdoor seating area, 
employees of the permit holder for the outdoor seating area must carry all 
alcoholic beverages in the non-fenced public right-of-way. No alcoholic 
beverages may be transported by patrons in the non-fenced public right-of-way. 

(5) Employees of the permit holder for the outdoor seating area shall not consume 
alcoholic beverages while working in the outdoor seating area.  

  



 

Section 115-10-5. - Application; Permit Requirements. 
 
(1) A person owning, operating, or managing a business that regularly and 

customarily serves food or drinks may apply for an outdoor seating area permit 
on a form approved by the City. Applications are available from the Engineering 
and Planning Department. 

(2) The permit holder shall comply with all City health and other applicable 
regulatory agency requirements, including but not limited to the requirements for 
food service. The permit holder shall display in a conspicuous location all such 
required permits and/or licenses and shall provide copies of those permits and/or 
licenses to the City prior to the issuance of a permit for an outdoor seating area. 
The permit holder shall continuously maintain the required approvals, permits, 
and/or licenses, and provide evidence to the City upon request. 

(3) Cooking or food preparation shall not be allowed in outdoor seating areas. 
(4) Smoking, including vapor smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, shall not 

be allowed in outdoor seating areas. Permit holders shall post visible signs 
reminding patrons that they cannot smoke in the outdoor seating area. 

(5) No outdoor seating area equipment or furniture may be placed in such a manner 
as to obstruct a building exit. 

(6) The design of the furniture, canopies, fencing, and/or other accessories of an 
outdoor seating area must be approved by the City prior to a permit being issued. 
The applicant must provide a photograph, drawing, or sketch of the design of the 
furniture and accessories to be used for the outdoor patio area as part of the 
application for a permit. 

(7) An encroachment agreement with the City shall be obtained prior to 
implementation of any outdoor dining area. The encroachment agreement is 
effective up to a five-year term and will expire on December 31 of the whole or 
partial fifth year, provided there are not significant modifications to the 
previously approved configuration or street fixtures located within the 
right-of-way. 

 
Section 115-10-6. - Permit Renewals. 

 
(1) The permit holder must renew the permit annually. A permit issued under this 

section shall be valid from the date of issuance and shall expire each year on 
November 1. 

(2) Permits are effective from April 1 to October 31 each year. Tables, chairs, fences 
or dividers, and any other structure or item placed on the sidewalk must be 
removed by November 1 each year and may not be set out until April 1 each year.  

 
 
 



 

 
By:______________________________________ 

      Tim Helbling, President, Board of  
 City Commissioners  

 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Neubauer, City Administrator 
 
 
 
First Consideration:  _________________ 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: ________________ 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider transferring  available funds for the fire department  
from the 2019 budget to the  2020 budget to replace a rooftop air handling unit at Fire 
Station No.1. 

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: Fire station 1 has a roof top heating ventilation air 
conditioning (HVAC) unit in need of replacement. In the late fall of 2019 one of the three 
HVAC units at station 1 stoppped working and Central Mechanical was called to repair 
the unit. Upon inspection of the unit, Central Mechanical noted that the unit was installed 
17 years old and could no longer be repaired. Central Mechanical advised that a new unit 
would cost an estimated $9,300 and should be replaced in the spring of 2020. Our total 
budget  transfer request from  the 2019 budget  to the 2020 budget for the fire department  
is $9,300.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  HVAC proposal  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The 2019 fire department budget has a current balance of $15,047 
with a request to transfer $9,300 of those funds to the fire department 2020 budget. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Personnel will be able to enjoy air conditioning in the office areas 
during the summer months. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:   N/A 
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: February 18, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Fire 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Nardello 
PRESENTER: Chief Nardello 
SUBJECT:  Budget transfer from FY 2019 to FY 2020  for fire 

department. 

Consent No. 2i 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Budget transfer from FY 2019 to FY 2020 for fire department. 
Page 2 of 3 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   To approve  the transfer of $9,300 from  the fire department 
2019 budget to the  2020 budget  for building repairs and maintenance. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve  the transfer of $9,300 from the fire 
department 2019 budget to the 2020 budget for  building repairs and maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Budget transfer from FY 2019 to FY 2020 for fire department. 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposal 
CENTRAL MECHANICAL, INC. 

4001 33"0 Ave. NW 4(112fi"AYeEasl 
POBmc B82 Dickins<ln,, ND 586111 
Mandan, r,JD 58554 (701) 22!i-1.f72 
(701) 6163--8552 Fax (701 I 225-1413 
Fax (7011667-1821 

PROPOSAi. SUl!MITTED TO ll,O,TE 

Mandan Fire n..nartment 12-2&-19 
ADIJRESS JOB NAME 

11;0 ColUns Avenue Rooftoo Reotacement 
CfTY. STATE. ZIP CODE JOB LOCATI.CN 

Mandan, ND 58554 110 Co.llins Avenue 
AttEntJon: PttONE FAX 

Steve NardeHo 667-3288 EX! 100 667-32119 

we - --n:r, 
W e propose to furnish all mols. materials. labor and s,.ipen,ision lnr: U,., prnvisian, lo prnwle and install a 3-ton self 

Conlainecl """"eleclric """"""unit. custom <:Ulb """"'er. demcliiicn and ,.;....,.,,, af exis"tina unit. aas PliPir\<! connections 

Crane fees and sbtt and died; of unit 

We have e,cc/uded from this - ·"' electrical .......,. and thennoslaL 

We Propose helmylD!lmlih-.n! ID>"-compiele lnaccoRlan:ewl!lab<M! r;pe,c:llloilll 1trlhe61Elot 

s Nine Thousand Three Hundred Dollars $9,300:00 

P..,,,...,i ID tie made"'°" oonlJIEllm al'ltlt. 

/IJ- lo gia;mte,dtobea,;&peel!lod. AJJ-,xtlobecm,p,,lE!d h •-mameraccrdnglD.tiodiw~ Mf-1:1' 
-.noo1tamabOl/especllCalllN]6tooNl'lg ema006lsWII be .,,,,.._Ol:tf "'°""M1!!!!1"'1B&, ardllflbeCOOl<!aneidra<1>a1ge 11MZ111alJCM! itfS 
eotJmale. AJJ--coo1D'lgenl-61J1~K.accJolenli;«de!aysl:le)alll...-C<ll"llrol. a-,e,1D ,cany ..... -inlolte'""""'"""Ylnsr.n:e. 
CU-.en.l)' -IJl'Wllllmarl-.~--

.-.-xlZE!<lsq,ai,n, Jt()TE: Tlll6 pn,po&al fflCI! IS In e!IEd ll>"lllrl)' day& BDrn 
mle<Il_,.al. 

Acceptance of Proposal -1J1eab1M,p,Ji:eo.~andanmons ;m,"'1llilildDly.m-... t>!fbJ'aa:eple<1. y..,...,.,..._ 1n 
coq>Jetett..- .. ~ P..,.....,.i'Otlll:le.-""'"C<IIJ1lllell'"'"''ltlt. 

SJgnate = 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: Consider the request for the transfer of funds from the 
Assessing department 2019 budget to the  2020 budget. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  
The transfer of funds is requested for the items listed below: 

• Assessing vehicle purchase for 2020 was a little over budget by $440. 
• Vanguard Appraisals Inc. provided services for commercial property appraisal 

project which began in 2019 and finished in 2020.  There are more projects 
proposed in 2020 for which we will be seeking Vanguard’s assistance. The total 
requested for these services are $8,320. 

• Assessing/inspections conference room laptop. The assessing office has regular 
staff meetings and training. A small equipment purchase of a laptop would greatly 
increase efficiency. Conducting the meetings in our office would be the most 
effective. The amount for this request is $700. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The request is for $9,460 to be transferred from the 2019 Assessing 
Department budget to the 2020 budget. 
 
STAFF IMPACT: The items listed above will assist the Assessing Department’s daily 
operations. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: To approve the transfer of  $9,460 from the Assessing 
Department 2019 Budget to the 2020 Budget. 
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 3, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Kimberly Markley, City Assessor 
PRESENTER: Kimberly Markley, City Assessor 
SUBJECT: Transfer of funds from Assessing Department 

2019 Budget to 2020 Budget. 

Consent No. 2ii  

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Transfer of funds from Assessing Department 2019 Budget to the  2020 Budget 
Page 2 of 2 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the transfer of  $9,460 from the Assessing 
Department 2019 Budget to the 2020 Budget. 
 



MAN]l)AN MUNICIPAL, COURT' 
210 2ND AVE, NW 

MAN]l)ANv NI!) 5~554, 

Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 C::- __ 0 ~ 
Submitting Department: Municipal Court 0v-.,,c,..c,L · - -evv~ 
Subject: 2019 budget transfer ) 

Municipal Court is $15,000 under the 2019 budget. Of this amount the Court is requesting $2,000 be 
transferred to the 2020 budget for the purpose of purchasing office furniture. The Judge's office is 
currently furnished with district court surplus furniture. The office chair is in poor shape and needs to be 
replaced at a cost of approximately $1,000. Two standing desk components at a cost of approximately 
$399 each will be purchased for the clerk of court and the deputy. These items were not purchased in 
2019 because there were no funds available to do it. 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To request the transfer of funds from the Building Inspection 
Department’s 2019 budget to the 2020 budget.  

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The transfer of funds is requested to purchase a 
monitor, mount, and HDMI cord for the conference room. The monitor, mount, and 
HDMI cord will cost approximately $1,000.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The request is for $1,000 from the 2019 Building inspections 
Department budget moved to the 2020 budget.  
 
STAFF IMPACT:  The monitor will help the Assessing and Building Inspections 
Departments conduct meetings in a more efficient manner. It will also be used to do day 
to day work for the assessing department. Assessing will purchase a lap top dedicated for 
the same purposes. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  To approve the transfer of funds from the Building Inspections 
2019 budget to the 2020 budget.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the transfer of funds from the Building 
Inspections 2019 budget to the 2020 budget. 
 

MEETING DATE:  
PREPARATION DATE:  
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Building Inspections 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shawn Ouradnik Building Official 
PRESENTER: Shawn Ouradnik 
SUBJECT: Transfer of funds from Building Inspections 2019 

Budget to the 2020 Budget 

Consent No. 2iv 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



   
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider transferring funds from the 2019 Growth Fund 
budget to the 2020 budget for approved economic development projects and business 
development operations. 

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  
 
GROWTH FUND. The 2019 budget was underspent by $173,152.81. The vast majority, 
$152,474.84, was for approved economic development projects not completed in 2019 or 
completed for less than approved amounts. The remainder, $20,677.97, is for the business 
development and communications department’s operating and management budget, 
including unspent funds for uncompleted projects. I request to transfer the following 
amounts to the 2020 budget for completion of specific projects and initiatives: 
 
SUBSIDY-OTHER (224.224.65118) - $120,971.56 
Requesting a transfer from this line item from 2019 to 2020 for the following: 
 

• Local match for Bank of North Dakota Flex PACE interest buydown program 
o $1,144.76— Balancing Goat Coffee Co.  

 
• Storefront Improvement Projects 

o Not yet finalized or complete as of Dec. 31, 2019 
 $60,000 — Jason Hagness, 1710 E Main St. 
 $19,826.80 — 218 W Main LLC (paid in 2/20) 
 $30,000 — Olson Trust, 1702 E Main St 

 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 9, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

Department 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
SUBJECT: Transfer of funds from 2019 Growth Fund Budget 

to 2020 Budget 

Consent No. 2v 
 

CITY O F 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEG INS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Transfer of funds from the 2019 Growth Fund Budget to 2020 Budget 
Page 2 of 2 
 

• Business Pitch Challenge Award 
o $10,000 — Latidot Scoop & Gift Shop, 104 First St NE (paid 2/2020) 

 
Business Development O&M section — $12,720 
 
• PROFESSIONAL FEES & SERVICES (224.224.52110) - $10,000 

A transfer is requested for Main Street Initiative consultants or similar assistance for 
programming the N.D. Department of Commerce anticipated making available in 
2019, but instead delayed until 2020. 
 

• ADVERTISING/PUBLIC RELATIONS (224.224.57110) - $1,970 
A transfer is requested for an e-newsletter delayed from 2019 to 2020, plus for joint 
community marketing activities yet to be completed, specifically online promotions 
including videos completed in late 2019. 
 

• PRINTING (224.224.57113) - $750 
A transfer is requested for a residential brochure planned as part of the joint 
community marketing program for 2019 but yet to be completed. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   n/a 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Finance Director Greg Welch has reviewed the requests and indicates 
the funding is available. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend transferring the amounts outlined from the 
FY2019 budget balance to FY2020 budget. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the outlined budget transfers for the Growth 
Fund from the fiscal year 2019 budget balance to the fiscal year 2020 budget. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To request the transfer of funds from the Human Resource 
(HR) Department’s 2019 budget to the 2020 budget. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  
The transfer of funds is requested for the items listed below. 

 Funds for resuming Kronos Rebuild – $5,000
o Due to staffing turnover in 2019, Finance, Payroll, and HR were unable to

commit time and resources to work on the Kronos Rebuild in 2019 as
anticipated. Requesting carryover of funds to begin the rebuild in 2020.

 Other/Miscellaneous – Transfer remaining $480.35 from 2019 Safety and
Wellness Committee budget to the 2020 budget to assist the Fire Department in
purchasing an additional CPR mannequin. Safety & Wellness Committee
approved this transfer as it will assist the Fire Department with providing CPR
training for City Employees.

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT: The request is for $5,480.35 from the 2019 HR budget to be moved 
to the 2020 budget. 

STAFF IMPACT: N/A 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

RECOMMENDATION: To approve the transfer of funds from the HR 2019 Budget to 
the 2020 Budget. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the transfer of funds from the HR 2019 
Budget to the 2020 Budget. 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 6, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Human Resources 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Brittany Cullen, HR Director 
PRESENTER: Brittany Cullen, HR Director 
SUBJECT: Transfer of funds from HR Department 2019 

Budget to the 2020 Budget 

Consent No. 2vi

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider transferring unused contingency funds from the 
administration department from the 2019 budget to the 2020 contingency fund budget. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: In its 2019 budget the City of Mandan budgets a 
contingency fund of $50,000 each year to assist with unexpected expenses such as copier 
machine breakdowns, additional security cameras or other items that may fall outside the normal 
course of business. Approval to expend funds must be received by the Finance Director, City 
Administrator and Mayor.  
 
At year end 2019, there was a balance of $57,871. We would like to roll these funds into the 
2020 contingency fund in order to purchase ites such as for the commission room (commissioner 
chairs, additional monitors, enhancements to the audio visual system, repair or replacement of 
the lecturn and dias), chairs and tables for the Veterans’ Conference Room, painting of the lower 
level of City Hall hallways, large customer service monitor in Finance/Utility Billing to name a 
few items. We have had discussion with the City of Bismarck and Dakota Media Access (DMA) 
regarding commission room upgrades and Bismarck is taking the lead on developing 
specificiations as making the Tom Baker Room and the Bosch Froehlich Commission room as 
compatable (same audio vidual system) as possible makes sense from an operations standpoint. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The 2019 contingency fund has a balance of $57,871 which would be rolled 
into the 2020 contingency fund budget. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  None 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  None 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend to amend the administration 2020 contingency fund 
budget to include a $57,871 increase from unexpended 2019 funds. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to amend the administration 2020 contingency fund budget to 
include a $57,871 increase from unexpended 2019 funds. 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 10, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Consider 2020 budget amendment 

Consent No. 2vii 

~ -CIT Y O F 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
PURPOSE 
To consider the request to transfer funds from the 2019 Budget to the 2020 Budget 
for the utility billing department.  
 
BACKGROUND 
During November 2019, the Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Agreement from 
Sensus was signed. The AMI Agreement is in conjunction with the City’s new utility 
billing system from NISC. Year one of the Agreement became due in FY 2020 for the 
service period March 2020 to March 2021. 
 
On February 6, 2020, the Assistance Utility Billing Coordinator retired from the City. The 
employee earned and received a payout for unused vacation and sick leave in accordance 
with the City’s personnel policies (Mandan Code of Ordinances). 
 
ATTACHMENT 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
AMI Agreement = $22,248 
Salaries and benefits = $18,297 
Total = $40,545 
 
The utility billing department and Water & Sewer Utility Fund have available funds 
remaining from the 2019 Budget. 
 
STAFF IMPACT 
None 
 
LEGAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 13, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Finance 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Greg Welch 
PRESENTER: Greg Welch, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Budget transfer from FY 2019 to FY 2020 for 

utility billing department. 

Consent No. 2viii 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Budget transfer from FY 2019 to FY 2020 for utility billing department. 
Page 2 of 2 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
To approve the request to transfer funds from the 2019 Budget to the 2020 Budget 
in the amount of $40,545 for the utility billing department.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to approve the request to transfer funds from the 2019 Budget to the 2020 
Budget in the amount of $40,545 for the utility billing department. 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
PURPOSES 

1. To consider the request to amend the 2019 Budget for the auditor 
department. 

2. To consider the request to transfer funds from the 2019 Budget to the 2020 
Budget for the finance department.  

 
BACKGROUND 
The City’s state aid distribution revenue collections for FY 2019 exceeded the collections 
for FY 2018 by $251,250. According the City’s Budget Policies & Procedures, the City 
remits 30% of the state aid collections to the Mandan Park District. Since the revenue 
collections for this line item exceeded the prior year, the amount remitted to the Park 
District increased in the auditor department by $75,375. 
 
The City’s E-911 revenue collections from Morton County for FY 2019 exceeded the 
collections for FY 2018 by $78,877. According to the Agreement for the Central Dakota 
Communications Center, the 911 fees collected shall be remitted to Burleigh County for 
the purpose of funding the Central Dakota Communications Center. Since the revenue 
collections for this line item exceeded the prior year, the amount remitted to Burleigh 
County increased in the auditor department by $78,877. 
 
Due to vacant staff positions existing in the finance department for many months, the 
Finance Director is projected to have an unused vacation leave balance of 60 to 70 hours 
as of July 20, 2010. The request is to payout ½ of the unused vacation hours as of July 20 
and to carryover the remaining hours beyond July 20 to be used within a reasonable time 
period. Previously on July 20, 2019, the Finance Director forfeited 113.80 hours of unused 
vacation leave back to the City. In addition, the Finance Director worked an additional 
156.75 hours during calendar year 2019 and was not able to use the earned compensatory 
time and consequently forfeited those hours back to the City. 
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 13, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Finance 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Greg Welch 
PRESENTER: Greg Welch, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: 2019 Budget amendment for auditor department 

and budget transfer from FY 2019 to FY 2020 for 
finance department. 

Consent No. 2ix 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: 2019 Budget amendment for auditor department and budget transfer from FY 
2019 to FY 2020 for finance department. 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Due to vacant staff positions in the finance department, professional training for several 
employees was not able to occur during calendar year 2019 because of the increased 
workload to the existing staff.  
 
ATTACHMENT 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Auditor department: 

• Mandan Park District = $75,375 
• Burleigh County = $78,877 
• Total = $154,252 (2019 Budget amendment) 

o The funds to offset these budget amendments were available through the 
increase in revenue collections relating to this activity. 
 

Finance department: 
• Salaries and benefits = $4,729  
• Training = $3,985 
• Total = $8,714 (2019 Budget transfer to 2020 Budget) 

o The finance department has available funds remaining from the 2019 
Budget. 

 
STAFF IMPACT 
None 
 
LEGAL REVIEW 
N/A 
  
RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To approve the request to amend the 2019 Budget in the amount of 
$154,252 for the auditor department. 

2. To approve the request to transfer funds from the 2019 Budget to the 2020 
Budget in the amount of $8,714 for the finance department.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS 

1. Move to approve the request to amend the 2019 Budget in the amount of 
$154,252 for the auditor department. 

2. Move to approve the request to transfer funds from the 2019 Budget to the 
2020 Budget in the amount of $8,714 for the finance department. 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider amending the 2019 Public Works budget as well 
as allow 2019 funds to be transferred to 2020 for uncompleted projects 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: As part of the 2019 Budget, Public Works Street 
Department budgeted approximately $270,425 for Repairs and Maintenance and we 
expended $378,733 in 2019. Some of the larger cost overruns were attributed to roadway 
maintenance repairs. Items such as small concrete repairs, pothole patch material, crack-
sealing material, and hot mix material for general patching overran by approximately 
$53K. The Public works department spent over 3,000 hrs. Patching and crack-sealing in 
2019. These projects range in scope and location, some larger more notable projects were 
the crack sealing of 3rd Street SE, the several water-main repairs that were needed, and 
the concrete apron repair in front of Fire Station 1. In addition, we expended 
approximately $85K in heavy equipment repairs, over $18K on cutting edges, and over 
$13K on heavy equipment tire repairs. Though we strive to operate within budget, these 
repairs were necessary to maintain our infrastructure, fleet and facilities. 
 
As a result of these overages mentioned above along with other smaller overages, we are 
requesting to amend the 2019 Public Works Street Department Budget Repairs and 
Maintenance budget by $108,308. 
 
As of December 31, 2019, the remaining fund balance for the Public Works Facility 
expansion project was $4,874,599 therefore; we request to transfer the remaining funds 
from 2019 Building Capital Outlay to the 2020 Building Capital Outlay to allow for the 
completion of the Public Works Facility.  
 
We are also requesting to transfer $5,800 budgeted in 2019 to 2020 in the Solid Waste 
fund to be used to finalize the Landfill Permit renewal process with Toman Engineering.  
 
The 2019 Street Department budget allocated $16,000 to be used in outfitting a tandem 
axle hook truck, there was delay in receiving the truck due to longer than expected 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 05, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Mitch L. Bitz 
PRESENTER: Mitch L. Bitz, Director of Public Works 
SUBJECT: 2019 Budget Amendments and Carryover 

Consent No. 2x 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: 2019 Budget Amendments and Carryover 
Page 2 of 3 
 
manufacturing time; the truck is currently in the fabrication shop being worked on. We 
expect the truck will be completed for use this spring, subsequently it requested that this 
$16K be transferred to 2020. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Amend 2019 Street Department Repairs and Maintenance Budget - $108,308 
 
Transfer $4,874,599 from 2019 Public Works Capital Outlay 100.131.62111 to 2020 
Public Works Capital Outlay  
 
Transfer $5,800 from 2019 Solid Waste fund 620.620.52114 to 2020 Solid Waste fund   
 
Transfer $16,000 from 2019 Street Department Vehicle Capital Outlay 100.131.62115 to 
2020 Street Department Vehicle Capital Outlay 
  
STAFF IMPACT: None 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: Attorney Brown’s office has reviewed this document 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
To amend the 2019 Street Department Repairs and Maintenance Budget by $108,308 
 
To transfer $4,874,599 from 2019 Public Works Capital Outlay Budget to 2020 Public 
Works Capital Outlay  
 
To transfer $5,800 from 2019 Solid Waste fund to the 2020 Solid Waste Fund   
 
To transfer $16,000 from 2019 Street Department Vehicle Capital Outlay to 2020 Street 
Department Vehicle Capital Outlay 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: (Four separate motions)  
 
1: I make a motion to amend the 2019 Street Department Repairs and Maintenance 
Budget by $108,308 to allow for the overages encountered in 2019 
 
2: I make a motion to transfer $4,874,599 from the 2019 Public Works Capital Outlay 
Budget to 2020 Public Works Capital Outlay Budget to allow for the completion of the 
Public Works Facility Expansion 
 
3: I make a motion to transfer $5,800 from the 2019 Solid Waste fund to the 2020 Solid 
Waste fund to allow for the completion of the landfill permit renewal 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: 2019 Budget Amendments and Carryover 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
4: I make a motion to transfer $16,000 from 2019 Street Department Vehicle Capital 
Outlay to 2020 Street Department Vehicle Capital Outlay 
 
 
 
 
 



   
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider transferring the Planning and 
Engineering Department’s 2019 Expenditure Budget savings to the 2020 Budget 
for ongoing projects and other items related to department efficiency and 
effectiveness. 

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  
Planning and Engineering Study and Project Requests: 
The Planning and Engineering Departments have seven study and project related items to 
request budget carry-over into 2020. They are shown on the attached “2019 Expenditure 
Budget Transfers to Fiscal Year 2020” sheet. The yellow highlighted item is the lone 
planning study, led by the Metropolitan Planning Organization, that we request funds to 
be carried into 2020. The remaining projects on the sheet are ongoing projects, with their 
own line item in the budget, that need to be carried over in to 2020. All of these projects 
and studies were expected to or considered possible to fall into the 2020 expenditure year, 
however, the projects were budgeted for expenditure in full within the budget year of 
project initiation. We would request that all of these items carry-over into the 2020 
budget under the same budget code. More info is available from the Planning and 
Engineering Department upon request for any of these projects or studies.  
 
Additional Survey Equipment Request:  
In 2019, the Engineering Department requested $20,000 for survey grade GPS equipment. 
We purchased the equipment for $11,462. However, we decided not to purchase a data 
collector to pair with it last year to see if we could get by fine without it. Without a data 
collector, the unit works fine for many of our needs by pairing it with an ipad. The 
horizontal accuracy with the ipad is survey grade rated at within 2 centimeters. However, 
pairing with the ipad, does not allow us survey grade vertical accuracy. With the ipad, our 
vertical accuracy is about 2-feet.  

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 13, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: Transfer of funds from 2019 Planning and 

Engineering Budgets to 2020 Planning and 
Engineering Budgets.  

Consent No. 2xi 
 

CITY O F 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEG INS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Transfer of funds from 2019 Planning and Engineering Budgets to 2020 
Planning and Engineering Budgets.  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
There have been times that we believe we could use that vertical accuracy out in the field 
when completing tasks such as recording the depth of lines that are buried after a fix, or 
completing some basic topographic survey for a stormwater issue and to allow that info to 
work with our software without extra steps. In order to accomplish the 2 centimeter 
vertical accuracy that we want, the survey grade GPS needs to be paired with a data 
collector in lieu of an ipad. Another benefit of the data collector is that the screen will be 
better in sunny conditions as it is made with outdoor use in mind. The ipad screen can be 
seen outside, but in sunny conditions it can be a challenge.   
 
A data collector that would suffice for our needs and some software associated with it has 
been quoted by Frontier Precision as costing $3,250. Therefore, we would like to carry-
over that amount into 2020 Equipment Under $5,000 line item, #100.113.59215.  
 
Possible Stormwater Study in Concern Area: 
The Engineering Department has heard persistent stormwater concerns from property 
owners in the north-central area of the city. One property owner has brought these 
grievances to the City Commission meetings on a couple of separate occasions. Our 
department has studied state water rules and have met with representatives from the State 
Water Commission on this subject. Through our study and meetings, we have yet to 
conclude anything that the City did wrong in the past. However, we also recognize the 
seriousness and the persistence in this concern that is being brought to us.  
 
In order to consider a deep dive into this issue with well-studied possible alternatives that 
could be brought to Commission to decide upon, we believe that working with a 
consultant would be the best course of action to develop. We are not sure yet if the 
remainder of the Engineering budget would be enough to cover what we want to 
accomplish, but we want to carry that over so that we may have the option to put that 
towards such a study. The amount of carry-over available, after the above survey item, is 
$21,628. Therefore, we would request to carry that amount over into the 2020 
Engineering Fees line item, #100.113.52114.       
 
ATTACHMENTS:    

1) “2019 Expenditure Budget Transfers to Fiscal Year 2020” sheet provided by the 
finance department.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Finance Director Greg Welch has reviewed the requests and indicates 
the funding is available. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal   
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  The City Attorney was forwarded as part of the full agenda packet.  
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Transfer of funds from 2019 Planning and Engineering Budgets to 2020 
Planning and Engineering Budgets.  
Page 3 of 4 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend transferring the amounts from the FY2019 budget 
balance to FY2020 budget as outlined by the Planning and Engineering Department. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to transfer the amounts from the FY2019 budget 
balance to FY2020 budget as outlined by the Planning and Engineering Department. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Transfer of funds from 2019 Planning and Engineering Budgets to 2020 
Planning and Engineering Budgets.  
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

Fu
nd

Pu
rp

os
e

To
ta

l
Co

de
Ge

ne
ra

l
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 Z

on
in

g 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t-
9,

84
0

$ 
    

    
   

10
0.

11
2.

52
11

0
 M

PO
 (I

nt
er

se
ct

io
n 

An
al

ys
is

 S
tu

dy
 2

01
9-

20
20

)
 

 
 

1%
 C

ity
 S

al
es

 T
ax

N
D 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t o

f T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n-

N
D 

81
0

28
,1

84
$ 

    
    

 
21

4.
21

4.
62

21
0

 (M
em

or
ia

l H
ig

hw
ay

 to
 W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
St

re
et

)
 

1%
 C

ity
 S

al
es

 T
ax

N
D 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t o

f T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n-

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

29
8,

94
3

$ 
    

   
21

4.
21

4.
62

21
0

 (H
ea

rt
 R

iv
er

 B
rid

ge
 to

 T
w

in
 C

ity
 D

riv
e)

 

1%
 C

ity
 S

al
es

 T
ax

N
D 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t o

f T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n-

M
em

or
ia

l H
ig

hw
ay

35
,1

26
$ 

    
    

 
21

4.
21

4.
62

21
0

 (M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 to
 4

6t
h 

Av
en

ue
 S

E)

W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 U
til

ity
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t-
5,

00
0

$ 
    

    
   

60
1.

65
6.

62
21

2
 K

ad
rm

as
, L

ee
 &

 Ja
ck

so
n 

(S
an

ita
ry

 S
ew

er
 M

ai
n 

Ex
te

ns
io

n)

W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 U
til

ity
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t-
10

,9
50

$ 
    

    
 

60
1.

65
6.

62
99

8
 H

ou
st

on
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
(S

to
rm

w
at

er
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n)
 

W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 U
til

ity
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t-
20

8,
46

3
$ 

    
   

60
1.

65
6.

62
99

8
 H

DR
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
(M

em
or

ia
l H

ig
hw

ay
 U

til
iti

es
)

 

20
19

 E
XP

EN
DI

TU
RE

 B
UD

GE
T 

TR
AN

SF
ER

S 
TO

 F
IS

CA
L 

YE
AR

 2
02

0



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To request the transfer of funds from the Water Treatment 
Plant fiscal year 2019 capital outlay budget  to the fiscal year 2020 capital outlay budget. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 2019 proposals for shingling North house at Water 
Treatment Plant came in over budget due to high than expected steel prices and last 
year’s hail event in area. We are hoping for better pricing this year. 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT: Finance Director Greg Welch has reviewed the requests and indicates 
the funding is available. 

STAFF IMPACT: Minimal 

LEGAL REVIEW:  The City Attorney was forwarded as part of the full agenda packet. 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend the transfer of funds $15,056.66 from the Water 
Treatment Plant fiscal year 2019 capital outlay budget to fiscal year 2020 capital outlay 
budget. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the transfer of funds $15,056.66 from the 
Water Treatment Plant fiscal year 2019 capital outlay budget to the fiscal year 2020 
capital outlay budget. 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 12,2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering, Water Treatment Facility 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE/Duane Friesz, Facility 

Superintendent  
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: Transfer of funds from 2019 Water Treatment 

Plant Budget to 2020 Water Treatment Plant 
Budget. 

Consent 2xii 

"' -CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To request a transfers of funds from the 2019 budget to the 
2020 budget period. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  
 
Jib Crane:  
The wastewater treatment plant would like to purchase a ¼ Ton Jib Crane from 
Konecranes.  The crane would be utilized in the ultraviolet disinfection (UV) room to lift 
UV modules out of the effluent channel for servicing and maintenance purposes.  The 
modules weigh approximately 100 pounds and are difficult to remove from the channel. 
There are a total of 14 modules and currently it takes two staff members to lift them by 
hand.  With the use of crane this can be done safely and will only require one staff 
member.  These modules need frequent cleaning to meet E. coli permit limits.  The 
modules are expensive and fragile, so lifting them in and out with the use of a crane will 
be much safer. 
 
The plant requests $7,868.32 be transferred from the 2019 budget to the 2020 budget line 
item 601-659-60321 (Building Repairs and Maintenance) to purchase a ¼ Ton Jib Crane 
from Konecranes. 
 
Weed Spraying:  
The City of Mandan Code Enforcement Officer received a complaint last year about 
noxious weeds on the City’s property surrounding the Wastewater plant. Ternes outdoor 
Services was contacted to look at the noxious weeds on the property and suggested to 
spray for wormwood in the month of June and other weeds later in the season. 
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 12, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE/Steve Himmelspach, Facility 

Superintendent 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: Transfer of funds from 2019 budget to 2020  

budget 

 

  

Consent 2xiii   

CITY DP 
MAKDAX 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date:  March 17, 2020 
Subject:  Transfer of funds from 2019 budget to 2020  budget 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

It is estimated to cost $2000.0 to spray the 20 acres for the different noxious weeds on the 
property. The Wastewater Treatment Plant requests to transfer $2000.00 from the 2019 
budget 601-659-60329 Maintenance Contracts to the 2020 budget 601-659-60329.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Transfer of funds in the amount of $9,868.32 from the 2019 to the 
2020 budget. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  None. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Part of Packet for Attorney’s Review 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Transfer of funds in the amount of $9,868.32 from the Mandan 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 2019 to the 2020 budget as outlined. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the transfer of funds in the amount of 
$9,868.32 from the Mandan Wastewater Treatment Plant 2019 to the 2020 budget as 
outlined above. 
 
  
 
 
  



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   
To request the transfer of unexpended funds of $41,584.98 from the Information 
Technology Department 2019 Budget to the 2020 Budget to fund the following IT 
purchases.  
1)The purchase of a replacement Exchange Email server and Microsoft licensing 
previously budgeted for in 2019 for $25,586 or transition to Exchange 365 cloud based 
email for the City of Mandan.  
2)Purchases totaling $6,000 for the Public Works Department were previously approved 
for 2019 but put on hold as their construction project was not complete. 
3)Purchases totaling $2,250 for the Building Inspections Department were previously 
approved for 2019, but put on hold due to seeking a new software solution. 
4)The remaining funds would be used to create a better data storage solution by using one 
new physical server and creating virtual servers as needed by city departments. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   
1) The approved 2019 budgeted amount for a new Email Exchange Server was based on a 
2019 cost of $25,586. These funds were not expended in 2019 as City of Mandan staff is 
considering the transition to using Microsoft Exchange 365 as a possible email solution or 
update the current local server based email system.  
 
2) There are advantages to moving from an Exchange Server based email system to a 
Microsoft Office 365 cloud based system. Some of the advantages on the IT side include 
the fact we would no longer have to manage and maintain an Exchange Server. Microsoft 
would handle all Exchange maintenance and updates. We would still control the email 
accounts by adding new or archiving old mailboxes as needed.  
 
   Using Exchange 365 would require an initial investment for the transfer of current 
mailboxes found on our 2013 Exchange Server to Exchange 365. There is also an ongoing 

MEETING DATE:    March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 13, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Information Technology 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS: Lt. Chris Miller 
PRESENTERS: Lt. Chris Miller 
SUBJECT: Transfer of unexpended funds from the 

Information Technology Department 2019 
Budget to the 2020 Budget. 

 

  

Consent No. 2xiv  

CITY DP 
MAKDAX 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Transfer of unexpended funds from the Information Technology Department 
2019 Budget to the 2020 Budget. 
Page 2 of 2 
 
monthly cost per user for each Exchange 365 account. Currently there is 110 email 
users/groups on our system, which would require licensed accounts for each at an annual 
cost of approximately $5.00 per month, or $6,600 per year for all citywide employees.  
 
 3)  By virtualizing our data storage, it will reduce the current and future cost of physical 
server purchases and maintenance, as new servers can be generated in a virtual 
environment vs. having several physical servers to maintain by IT staff.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

• None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The total funds requested to be transferred from 2019 is $41,584.98. This would cover the 
cost of either email option chosen by the City of Mandan. Costs covered would include 
hardware, licensing, and cost to transfer data, mailboxes, and calendars from the current 
system. The total also includes the unexpended amounts for Public Works and Building 
Inspections Departments. 
 
All quotes provided via a ND State Bid hardware/software provider.  
 
STAFF IMPACT:   
1) Email and data storage are vital parts of almost all city employees' daily operations.  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:   
None required. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
To approve the transfer of unexpended funds from the Information Technology Department 
2019 Budget to the 2020 Budget: 

• Information Technology Department = $41,584.98 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   
Move to approve the transfer of unexpended funds from the Information Technology 
Department 2019 Budget to the 2020 Budget: 

• Information Technology Department = $41,584.98 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: Consider amending the 2020 Police Department 2020 budget 
to allow for the purchase of office furniture. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The remodel of the Morton/Mandan Law 
Enforcement Center is nearing completion. With the remodel, the Police Department has 
gained additional space. This includes offices and conference rooms. The new office 
spaces have been furnished with used desk units donated to the City by a local business. 
However, we do not at this time have chairs for our conference areas and the new offices. 
There are also several existing offices that have old chairs which are in need of 
replacement. We are also in need of additional storage for the Chief’s office.  
We received a quote from Fireside Office for conference room chairs. These chairs are 
the same ones which were purchased for the LEC conference rooms several years ago. 
They would match existing chairs and have held up very well. The quote for 20 chairs at 
$100 each is $2000.00. This price is good until April 1, 2020. Prices for these chairs were 
checked with various online merchants and all had higher prices.  
We have 7 new workstations which are in need of office chairs. We would like to replace 
5 existing office chairs. In looking at various models of office chairs at a Mandan office 
supply store, $300.00 per chair would be an average price for moderately priced office 
chairs. Total estimated cost for 12 chairs is $3600.00. We may be able to locate some 
used chairs for low or no cost but that is not a certainty at this time. If any used chairs in 
good shape are located this would reduce the total amount needed.  
We would like to purchase two storage cabinets for the Chief’s office. Total cost for these 
cabinets is $423.92.  
The total amount we are asking for in the budget amendment is $6,032.92.  
At the end of 2019 a law enforcement consortium composed of the Mandan Police 
Department, Bismarck Police Department, Morton County Sheriff’s Office and the 
Burleigh County Sheriff’s office was disbanded. This consortium had been formed many 
years ago to provide testing for law enforcement applicants. $4,227.09 in funds was 
refunded to the Mandan Police Department when the consortium was disbanded. Those 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 12, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police Department 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Jason Ziegler 
PRESENTER: Chief Jason Ziegler 
SUBJECT: Budget amendment for 2020 office furniture 

purchase 

Consent No. 2xv

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Budget Amendment for the 2020 Police Department budget for office furniture 
 

 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

funds would be available to offset the total cost. This would bring down the total 
additional cost to $1,805.83. Use of the consortium funds for this purpose has been 
reviewed by City Finance Director Welch.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Quote from Fireside Office Solutions, cabinet prices, consortium 
refund documentation 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Total cost for items is $6032.92. Using consortium refund of 
$4,227.09 would bring the total additional cost needed to $1,805.83. The balance would 
be from the General Fund Balance Reserve. 
 
STAFF IMPACT: N/A 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Recommend approval of amending the Police Department 2020 
budget for the purchase of office furniture.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I make a motion to recommend approval of amending the 
Police Department 2020 budget to allow for the purchase of office furniture with          
$4,227.09 being paid with the LE consortium refund money and $1,805.83 being paid 
from the General Fund Balance Reserve.  
 



Our Solutions. Your Success. 

February 27, 2020 

Lori Flaten 
Mandan Police Department 
205 1st Ave NW 
Mandan, ND 58554 
701-667-3250 
lflaten@mandanpd.com 

SUWECT: TABLE QUOTE 

QTY MODEL 

20 2794TG 

DESCRIPTION 

Capri Stackable Guest Chair 
With Casters for Carpet Floor 
Stacks 4 High 
Fabric: Black 
Frame: Titanium 

~ 
Delivery Approximately 1-2 Weeks 

Thank you, 

Roxanne Gunderson 
Account Manager 

r-
Fireside 

Office Solutions 

UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE 

$100.00 $2,000,00 

1713 East Bismarck Expressway • PO Box 21 16 • Bismarck, ND 58502-2116 
Phone: 701-258-8586 • 1-800-279-1713 • Fax: 701-223-9598 • www.fires1deos.corn 



Amazon.com: Sauder 423333 Cottage Road Annoire, Mystic Oa ... https://www.amazon.com/Sauder-Cottage-Storage-Armoire-Mys ... 

1 of8 

D,,livef lo Mandan 

Mandan 58554 

Home & Kitchen • gray wardrobe cabinet 

Departments I Buy Again 
EN Hello, Lori Try 

Account for Mandan Polle .. . Lists Business Prime 

Ama,on Home Shop by Room Furniture Home Decor Kitchen & Dining Bed & Bath Garden & Outdoor Lighting Storage & Organization Home I 

Business Plus selection / 4-star picks for Maintenance (MRO))) 

< Back to results 

Lower Priced Items to Consider 

Sauder Shoal Creek 
Am10,re, o,a nond Ash 
finish 

104 

Is this feature helpful? Yes ; No 

CIiek Image to open expanded view 

Sauder Edge Water 
Armoirc, Chalkd 
Chestnut finl~h 

7 

Sauder423333 
Cottage Road TArmoire, Mystic 
Oak 
by Saud 

19 
ratings 

I 9 answered questions 

List Price: ~ 

Bu,,m,..s Price $281.81 
&FREE 
Shl.pplng 

You Save: $8.18 (2%) 

Note: Not eligible for 

mazon Prime. 

Color: Mystic Oak 

$28U1 

$260.90 

• Safety tested for stability 

to help reduce tip-over 

accidents 

• Included garment rod 

helps keep your clothes 

organized and wrinkle 

free. Adjustable shelf 

behind doors for flexible 

storage options. Quick 

and easy assembly with 
patented T-lock drawer 

system 

• Th is unit has been 

thoroughly tested in an 

ISO 17025 accredited lab 

that ls Underwriters 

Laboratories certified. It 

meetsASTM 

lnternational's industry 

standard ASTM F2057-19 
Safety Specification for 

Sauder Cottage Road 
Armolre. Soft White Finish 

29 

i 
1 

Share 

$281.81 
& FREE Shipping 

Arrives: March 18 • 20 

Dehve, lo Mandan - Mandan sass 

In Stock. 

Qty: 

Buying In bulk 

$281.81 + Free Shlpp[ng 

Add to Cart 

Ships from and sold by Cy max 
Seller Credentials: 
Registered Small Business 

Add a Protection Plan: 

0 S•Vear Furn,tc,e Protection for 

$199.82 
0 l l!.'r Furn turr Protection for 

S155.52 

Add to list 

Add to Wedding Registry 

Have one to sell? Sell on Amazon 

3/13/2020, 11 :26 AM 



Amazon.com: Bush Furniture Accent Storage Cabinet with Door ... https:/ /www.amazon.com/Bush-F urniture-SAS 14 7CG-03-Stora. .. 

I of 10 

Home & Kitchen .., low storage cabinet with shelves 

EN Hello. Lori Try Oellver to Mandan 
Mandan 58554 Departm~ Buy Again Account for Mandan Pollo ... Lists Business Prime 

Amazon Home Shop by Room Discover Shop by Styte 

• Back to results 

Home Dl!cor Furniture Kltchen & Dining 

=urniture Accent Storage 
et with Doors, Cape Cod 

",r,'? ~tln.9": 
f5 ver,~.~ QiJf'.SllOJlS 

8ed & Bath Garden & Outdoor Home lmprovemen1 

$142.11 
Prime FREE Delivery 

FREE delivery: Thursday 
Order within 4 hrs 43 mins ')e<o1lls 

, for •~in•l!o~,o ou!Tct noragt clllio r• 

Roll over Image to zoom In 

IIIDl:O 

Was: ~ 

,c $142.11 Prime FREE DeUvery 
u Save: $6.06 (4%) 

Save up to 9% with "• i,g, es;lve 

n,scounts 

You will unlock discounts as your 
organization buys more of this 
product. 

peCodGray 

$130.57 

• $139.00 

• Storage Cabinet With Doors Finished In Cape Cod 

Gray With a Slightly Distressed Touch for a Casual 

Look 
• Storage Cabinet with Doors finished In Cape Cod 

Gray with a slightly distressed touch for a casual 
look 

• Elegant metal drop pull hardware finished In 

Tumbled Pewter 
• Concealed storage c.ablnets and open cubby shelves 

create variety of organization options 
• 47W K 13D K 30H Accent cabinet contains one 

adjustable shelf behind each door and another in 
center compartment 

• Three d istressed finish optlon.s lndude Cape Cod 
Gray, Vintage Black or a cream colored Antique 

White with Tumbled Pewter hardware 

Ne,, 151 rrom $142 11 FREE Shipping 

Offers also available from certified small and diver¾ 

selter-s. Oetall, 

R:1•1.mrl i,11 orrect p,ollLAc t 1nf<J1u\il!tOt1. 

W\SAGLE 

Good match for your 
bathroom storage 
, Shop now 

Ext.ended delivery time: This Item takes 
longer than usual to ship due to Its size 
and/or weight. 

In Stock. 

Buy more, get it as low as $133.64 

Add to cart 

Ships from and sold by Amazon . 

0 Add gift options 

Add to list 

Add to Wedding Registry 

Other Sellers on Amazon 

$144.66 
• Free Shipping 

Sold by: CymaK 

$160.72 
• Free Shipping 

Sold by: AMZPREMIUM 

$184.98 
♦ Free Shipping 

l Add lo Can 

I Add to C•rt 

[ Add to cart 

Sold by: WeLOC (We Love Our Customers) 

Have one to sell? Sell on Amamn 

VASAGLE llalhlt>)(TI Storage 
Floor C.hloel r r,,e Sfandfr.g 
wll~ Ooublo Shutter Door and 

533 

$18 99 

3/13/2020, 11:05 AM 



DATE INVOICE NO. DESCRIPTION NET AMOUNT 
12/31/2019 LE CONSORTIUM Discontinuance of LE Consortium 4,227.09 

Check No. 1091678 Total: $4,227.09 

1091~78 

' '·\ ~~ .. 
-~- .:•. '. . . '·: ~. . ~7~ '~. i •. :· ..... /,;;, . + :.:! ;'·,:.. 

r ~~E . \ . J~~p~~ Pf)U~~G::.~EPARTMS:~i 
ORDER 205 1 ST AVE NW . . 

.OF .. MANDAN, t:JD 58554-3162 
}... /, :~.~ ·· ·_{\_\, \ .. .. /" _..;_·:·_·:.~-. ':::. 

·. ~-· . 



4282 

Date: 2/21 2020 

Received of: CITY OF BISMARCK $ 4,227.09 

Dollars 
,,_ _______________________________ _ 

Description: LE CONSORTIUM-POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Code: 100.33.315 

Customer #: 8191 O Received by: GREG WELCH 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider allowing the fire department to make application 
for an Assitance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) for the purchase of a new brush truck. 

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The Mandan Fire Department has scheduled the 
replacement of a 2001 brush truck for the 2021 budget year. The fire department 
equipment reserve is the recommended funding source for the entire project however; 
there is a possibility of obtaining a majority of funding by applying for a grant through the 
AFG. The total project cost is $81,200 that includes a $7,463.64 match with the matching 
funds coming from the equipment reserve..  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  A grant application and award could save the fire department 
$73,736.36 in the equipment reserve fund. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Several hours of time for grant application process. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  None 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend to allow the fire department to make application 
to the AFG for the purchase of a new brush truck. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to allow the fire department to make application to the 
AFG for the purchase of a new brush truck. 
 
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 6, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Fire 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Nardello 
PRESENTER: Chief Nardello 
SUBJECT: Consider 2020 Grant Application 

Consent No. 3 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 

MEETING DATE: 
PREPARATIO DATE: 

Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

SUBMITT G DEPARTMENT: 

March 17, 2020 
March l 0, 2020 
Ad:mini tration 

DEP ARTME T DIRECTOR: 
PRESENTER: 
SUBJECT: 

Jim eubauer City Administrator 
Jim eubauer City Administrator 
Payment of Bills related to MMPL & Downt wn 
Parks Project 

TATBMENT/PURPOSE: To consider approval of the payment of bills related to the 
Morton Mandan Public Library MMPL) & Downtown Park Project. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: onnaJ course of business would be for invoices to 
b submitted to the City of Mandan and in tum those invoices presented with the 
schedule of bills to be approved by the City Commission the 2nd meeting of the month. 
Pursuant to the resolution passed by the City Commission and the MMPL Board of 
Trustees both boards need to approve the bills related to the library expansion and the 
City Commis ion approves the bills strictly reJated to the Downtown Parks project. 
Subsequent to those approvals, the invoices will be sent t the North Dakota Community 
FoW1dation for payment to the vendors. 

The Commis ion approved moving forward with the project at the February 18 meeting 
and work is now being don on the design development. Thi billing accounts for 
$15 187.50 for design development and $17,612.08 fur additional services contracted 
from Stantec on the park layouts. 

e remain on schedule with groundbreaking sel for the spring 2020. 

ATTACH1vIENT : Bartlett & West Invoices. 

STAFF IMPACT: n/a 

LEGAL REVIEW: n/a 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Payment of Bills related to MMPL & Downtown Parks Project 
Page 2 of 2 

RECOMMENDATION: I recommend the City Commission and MMPL Board of 
rustees approve payment of the invoice as submitted, conditioned upon the MMPL 

Board of Trustees. 

=-=...::=::;,,,,;;;;,;.=-=-.....,;,,;;;,.=--I ...... O __ N_, .. : I recommend the City Commission and MMPL Board of 
Trustees approve payment of the invoices as submitted, conditioned upon the MMPI 
Board of Trustees 



Bartlett&West I, Remittance Address 
For Payments Only: 
P.O. Box 653 

Jim Neubauer 
City of Mandan 
Mandan, ND 58554 

3456 East Century Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58503-0737 

701.258.1110 FAX 701.258.1111 
F.E.I.N. 48-0770612 

Project 020133.000 Mandan Morton Public library 
Professional Services from January 25. 2020 to February 21, 2020 

Estimated Total ConstrucUon = $4,500,000 

$4,500,000 X 9% = $405,000 

Basic Services Bllllng Phase 

Schematic Design 

Design Development 

Construction Documents 

Bidding 

Construction Administration 

Total Basic Services Fee 

Add'I Services Billing Phase 

Additional Services Phase I 

Total Additional Services Fee 

Total Overall Fee 

Fee 

81,000.00 

60,750.00 

162,000,00 

20,250,00 

81,000.00 

405,000.00 

Fee 

51 ,750,00 

51 ,750.00 

456,750.00 

Percent 
Complete 

100.00 

25.00 

0.00 

0.00 

·0.00 

Previous Fee 
BIiiing 

Current Fee 
Billing 

Percent 
Complete 

53.0621 

Previous Fee 
Bill ing 
Current Fee 
BIiiing 

Eamed 

81 ,000.00 

15,1 87.50 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

81 ,000.00 

15,167.50 

Earned 

27,459.65 

9,847.57 

17,61208 

March 6, 2020 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

Wichita, KS 61201 "°653 

020133.000 
00730074809 

Project Manager: Joseph Larrivee 
Clienl Contract No: 
PO No: 

Total Basic Services Fee $15,187.50 

Total Add'I Services Fee S17,612.08 

Total ·this Invoice $32,799,58 

email Invoice lo: Jim Neubauer <jneubauer@cityofmandan.com> 

We appreciate your business. Please include invoice no. on check. 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the minor plat of Zander Addition.   
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  
 
The applicants seek to plat their present auditor’s lot in order to obtain a building permit 
for a residential addition to their existing home.   
 
The auditor’s lot is a remnant to the surrounding subdivision of Keidel’s Estates 1st, 
which encompasses this property on three sides.  The plat will require the dedication of a 
segment of 8th Ave SW, a dirt road.  Dedicated right-of-way exists north and south of this 
property and the dedication of this segment will complete the existing right-of-way 
corridor.  This is not a new public right-of-way.   
 
The property is served by rural water and septic.  The property, as noted above, is served 
by 8th Ave SW, a dirt road.  Given that no city services are provided to this property or 
the remainder of Keidel’s and that there already exists a dwelling on this property, the 
City is not requiring the property to be annexed at this time.  The circumstances upon 
replatting will be indiscernible to the circumstances prior to platting.  If this was a new lot 
resulting in a new residential building permit available then staff would recommend 
annexation prior to approval of a plat.       
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Final Plat 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 11, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Minor Plat of Zander Addition   

Consent No. 5 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Zander Addition Minor Plat   
Page 2 of 2 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  The staff report along with the minor plat has been sent to Malcolm 
Brown, City Attorney along with the agenda packet for review.       
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval of the minor plat of Zander Addition as presented in Exhibit 1.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the minor plat of Zander Addition as 
presented in Exhibit 1.  
 
 
 
  







EXHIBIT 1

NW Corner 

AU O.F .lOT C O.F TH.i' ./VIYl/4 O.F TH.i' SIYl/4 & 
PART O.F TH.i' ./VIYl/4 O.F TH.i' SIY 1/4, 

S.i'CTIO./V 34, TOIY./VSHIP 139 NORTH, R.4./VC.i' 81 1'.i'ST 

_!_f__4 L_ic_e __ _ 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

T 
f-... 
I 
I 
I 
I 

-----~ 
:§ 1 N e:;~:~5s~" E 
~ 1--+---'---'=",a""7-.1""2•,.._------

I 

<Ji 7 I 

I I 

I 
~ I CD 

0. 64 Acres 
LOT "G" 

I '" LOT ·c· n~ 
I "' 

::j L >, ---

~ I ~ 
[:j I 
C, I iS 33' De/mealed I_ I 

Righi-of-Woy L 
i--"D~0~9 .,_ ___ 5 __ ~~~~,~:~;~·9~;-------,---<l'- --=---=---=---=---=-\ } 

/ 220.03' \ 

l,,/ I I ~---7 I 

I 
I 

N 

·+· s 

SCALE: 1 "=40' 

MARCH 10, 2020 

0 MONUMENT IN PLACE 

I ,,,,,-- 7 ~'- '--'- ~-___j 
( 4A I L - '- ~ - '- .",,. - J 

I 
I 

NOTES 

BAS/5 OF BEARING 
NORTH DAKOTA STATE PLANE, SOUTH ZONE 

BEARINGS AND DISTANCES MAY VARY FROM 
PREVIOUS PLATS DUE TO DlrrFRENT METHODS 

OF MEASUREMENTS. 

PLAT IS SUB.£CT TO EASEMENTS, 
CO'v£NANTS, AND RESTRICnONs OF RECORD. 

ALL THAT PART OF LOT G OF THE NORTHl+f:ST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST f/4 ANO PART OF THE NORTHl+f:ST 
1/4 OF THE SOUTHWE:ST f/4 SECTION 34, TO'MISHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 81 ltf:ST. CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON 
COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOW: 

BEGINNING AT A POINT THAT UES ON THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHl+f:ST 1/4, SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 139 
NORTH, RANGE 81 ltf:ST.· SAID POINT LIES SOUTH 00 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 09 SECONDS ~T. ALONG SAID WEST 
LINE, A DISTANCE OF 150.14 FEET FROM THE NORTH'M:ST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE NORTH ag 
DEGREES 29 MINUTES 51 SECONDS EAST. TO AND ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT G, A DISTANCE OF 
220.05 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT G; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 27 SECONDS 
ll!"ST. ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT G, A DISTANCE OF 149.91 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
LOT G; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 08 SECONDS l'IEST. ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT G, A 
DISTANCE OF 220.03 FEET TO THE ~T LINE OF SAID SOUTHl+f:ST 1/4; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 
09 SECONDS EAST. ALONG SAID ltf:ST UN£, A DISTANCE OF 149.44 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

THE ABDI/£ DESCRIBED TRACT CONTAINS 0.64 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

APPROVAL OF BOARD OF OTY COMMISSIONERS 
THE BOARD OF CJTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA, HAS APPRO'v£D THE 

SUBD/\/ISION OF LAND AS SHOM-1 ON THE ANNEXED PLAT. HAS APPRO'v£D Tl-IE GROUNDS AS SHOWN ON THE 
ANNEXED PLAT AS AN AMENDMENT TO n--lE MASTER PLAN OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA, AND DOCS 
HEREBY VACATE ANY PREVIOUS PL A TTING WITHIN THE BOUNDARY OF THE ANNEXED PLAT. 

THE FOREGOING ACTION OF THE BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA, 
BY RESOLUnON APPRO'v£D THE_ DAY OF ---~ 2020. 

APPROVAL OF OTY ENGINEER 
I, JUSnN FROSETH, CITY ENGINEER OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA, HEREBY APPROI/£ ·zANDER 

ADDmON•, MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA AS SHOWN ON Tl-IE ANNEXED PLAT. 

OWNER'S CERT1FICA TE & 0£DICA TION 

JUSTIN FROSETH 
CITY ENGINEER 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT KENDALL ZANDER, BEING THE OWNER AND PROPRIETOR OF THE 
PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON HAS CAUSED THAT PORnON DESCRIBED HEREON TO BE SURV£Y£D AND PLAmD AS 
·zANDER ADDmON·, MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, AND DEDICATE: ALL THE STREETS, ALLE\"S. 
PARKS, ANO PUBLIC GROUNDS AS SHOWN HEREON, INCLUDING ALL SEl+f:RS, CULVERTS, BRIDGES, WATrR LINES, 
SIDEWALKS. AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS ON OR UNDER SUCH STREETS, ALLEYS, OR OTHER PUBLIC GROUNDS. 
WHETHER SUCH IMPROVEMENTS ARE SHOWN HEREON OR NOT. TO PUBLIC USE FORE'v£R. 

THEY ALSO OED/CA Tr EASEMENTS TO RUN WITH THE LANDS FOR WA TU?, SEl+f:R, GAS, ELECTRICITY, 
TELEPHONE, OR OTHER PUBLIC UTILITY LINES OF SERVICES UNDER, ON, OR OVER THESE CERTAIN STRIPS OF LAND 
AS DESIGNATED AS UTILITY EASEMENTS. 

STA TE OF NORTH DAKOTA} 
)SS 

COUNTY OF MORTON ) 
KENDALL ZANDER 
1208 8TH Ai/£ SW 
MANDAN, ND 5855~ 

ON THIS _ DAY OF ~~~~~~~~ 2020, BEFORE ME PERSONAUY APPEARED 
KENDALL ZANDER, KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE PERSON DESCRIBED IN AND 1',1-10 EXECUTED THE FOREGOING 
CERTIFICATE: AND THE Y ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT THEY EXECUTED THE SAME. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
____ COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES ______ _ 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIF1CA 1E 
I, LARRY J. SMITH, A PROFESSIONAL LAND SUR'v£YOR IN THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA, HEREBY CERnFY 

THAT THE ANNEXED PLAT IS A TRUE COPY OF THE NOTES OF A SURVEY PERFORMED UNDER MY SUPERVISION 
AND COMPLETED ON ______ 2020, THAT ALL INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON IS TRUE ANO 
CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BEUEF, THAT ALL MONUMENTS SHOWN HEREON ARE CORRECT. 
THAT ALL REQUIRED MONUMENTS HAI/£ BEEN S£T. AND THAT ALL DIMENSIONAL AND GEODEnc DETAILS ARE 
CORRECT. 

STA TE OF NORTH DAKOTA} 
)SS 

COUNTY OF MOR TON} 

SES GEOMATICS 
2321 HARDING A VENUE 

~~fo1RCK, NORTH DAKOTA LARRY J. SMITH 
PROFESSIONAL LAND SUR'v£YOR 
N.D. REGISTRATION NO. 2363 

( sEs GE.@'MAr1cs) 



   
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider approval of a Main Street Initiative Community 
Action Plan needed to apply for a Partners in Planning grant, and also approval of 
submitting a grant application for assistance with updating Mandan’s strategic plan for 
economic and community development. 

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: Gov. Burgum and the N.D. Department of 
Commerce recently announced new Main Street Initiative grants. The Partners in 
Planning grant supports local governments in completing a comprehensive or economic 
development/diversification strategic plan. Commerce has $125,000 available per year for 
the 2019-2021 biennium, with 70% allocated for rural areas and 30% or $37,500 for 
urban areas. Communities receive bonus points if they are declared MSI communities and 
more if they have an MSI action plan to be considered an MSI Champion Community.  
 
MSI Proclamation & Plan 
The City Commission approved a Main Street ND Proclamation on Feb. 5, 2019, that 
expresses a commitment to developing a healthy, vibrant community through fiscally 
responsible planning and attracting the talent needed to support our economy.  Mandan 
has taken and will continue to take actions toward these ends. As outlined in the attached 
action plan, these include Main Street and downtown roadway and sidewalk 
improvements, library and park enhancements, renewal of the Renaissance Zone program, 
and a re-activated youth commission. 
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 11, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

Department 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
SUBJECT: Main Street Initiative (MSI) Community Action 

Plan & Partners in Planning Grant Opportunity 

Consent No. 6 
 

CITY O F 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEG INS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Main Street Initiative (MSI) Action Plan & Partners in Planning Grant 
Application 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Partners in Planning Grant Procedures 
Grants may be awarded in multiple rounds with the first round due April 1, 2020.  The 
award announcement will occur on May 4, 2020. Due to limited funding, it seems 
beneficial to apply in the first round. 
 
Need for Strategic Plan Update 
Mandan has a comprehensive land use and transportation plan that was completed in 
2015 and largely surrounds future land uses, roadways, parks and trails. It has also been 
updated periodically through applications for changes received from property owners.  
However, it does not contain a specific and focused economic development component.  
It has been more than a decade since the community last came together for a plan that 
more specifically addresses economic and community development. 
 
The 2009 Mandan Tomorrow strategic vision plan was a Chamber-led initiative. Joining 
private businesses in the effort were Mandan’s City Commission, School Board and Park 
Board. Together, business managers, elected officials and citizens took a look at 
strategies that should be pursued in the next five and 10 years to make Mandan even 
better. The process allowed for a review of the entire city across all geographic areas and 
all sectors involved in community development. A steering committee studied market 
research and received input through focus groups, individual interviews, and nearly 900 
survey responses. More information is available at this link: 
https://www.cityofmandan.com/strategicplan. 
 
Four work groups were assigned to implementation: 1) Leadership, Pride and Image 
(LPI), 2) Economic Opportunity and Prosperity (EOP), 3) Quality Places and 
Destinations, and 4) Education and Workforce. The LPI and EOP committees continue to 
gather and work toward the overall plan goals, while the other committees disbanded 
more than five years ago. 
 
Many plan components have been accomplished. Other parts have become irrelevant. 
Update of the plan, a Mandan Tomorrow 2.0, would help sharpen our vision and goals for 
the next 5-10 years to better allocate resources, strengthen collaboration and maximize 
effectiveness of partner programs and initiatives.  
 
Community Support Needed 
Applications with commitment and participation from city leadership as well as other 
local partners will be scored most favorably in the grant process. If the City Commission 
provides the go-ahead to submit a grant application, I will complete the application 
requirements and seek letters of support from the Mandan School District, Park District, 
Mandan Progress Organization, and the Bismarck Mandan Chamber EDC. 
 
If the grant is approved and accepted, we would then need to issue a request for proposals 
for consulting services to assist with update of Mandan’s strategic plan for economic and 

https://www.cityofmandan.com/strategicplan


Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Main Street Initiative (MSI) Action Plan & Partners in Planning Grant 
Application 
Page 3 of 3 
 
community development. If the grant were insufficient to cover a reasonable consulting 
fee for such services, financial support from partners could be needed or the City 
Commission could choose not to accept it. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Mandan’s proposed MSI action plan. The Partners in Planning 
program guidelines and application can be found at this link: 
https://www.nd.gov/sites/www/files/documents/Living%20in%20ND/Main%20Street%2
0ND/Grants/Partners%20in%20Planning%20Grant%20Program%202020.pdf 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  MSI Champion Communities, those that have issued a proclamation 
and have an approved action plan, may receive up to $30,000 with a minimum award of 
$7,500 and a 20% match requirement or up to $6,000. The Business Development and 
Communications Department budget for 2020 has $5,950 remaining in its line item for 
professional services and with approval of a $10,000 budget transfer request from 2019, 
this amount will increase to $15,950. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Staff time would be needed to complete the grant application and seek 
partner entity support by April 1. If ultimately awarded, additional time will be required 
to create a request for proposals for consulting services, to interview interested 
consultants and make a recommendation, negotiate contract terms, and oversee the 
planning process. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend approval of the proposed MSI action plan and 
authorization of staff to submit a Partners in Planning grant application for $30,000 in 
matching funds to update Mandan’s strategic plan for economic and community 
development. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the proposed MSI action plan and authorize 
the submittal of a Partners in Planning grant application. 

https://www.nd.gov/sites/www/files/documents/Living%20in%20ND/Main%20Street%20ND/Grants/Partners%20in%20Planning%20Grant%20Program%202020.pdf
https://www.nd.gov/sites/www/files/documents/Living%20in%20ND/Main%20Street%20ND/Grants/Partners%20in%20Planning%20Grant%20Program%202020.pdf


MAIN STREET INITIATIVE COMMUNITY ACTION PLAN 
NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
SFN 61790 (03/2020) 

 

Community Name or Location  Date Action Plan Approved by City 

Action Plan Emphasis (select all that apply) 
      Healthy, Vibrant Communities      21st Century Workforce      Smart, Efficient Infrastructure 

Community Specific Action Plan Items (minimum of 3)             Target Completion Date 
  

  

  

  

  

Person(s) Responsible for Implementation and Monitoring 
 
 
 
 
Submitted By Telephone Number Date 

 
Submit form to: Denise Faber / North Dakota Department of Commerce / PO Box 2057 / 

Bismarck ND 58502-2057 / Phone:701-328-7282 / E-mail: dfaber@nd.gov 

□ □ □ 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Planning Department is seeking permission to apply for 
the AARP Community Challenge grant.    

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

AARP is calling on non-profits and communities to establish more livable communities. 
In doing so, the organization provides grants on a competitive basis for projects that 
achieve increasing civic engagement, more vibrant public places, and provide a range of 
transportation and mobility options among others.   

The Planning Department is seeking to apply under the vibrant public places category, 
hoping to secure upwards of $9,000 toward the design and implementation of a painted 
mural, either mounted or directly onto the south side (alley side) of the building, at 107 ½ 
1st Ave. NW.  This building is currently used as a remediation building and upon 
completion of remediation activities will be utilized by the Police Department for 
inventory storage.   

The Downtown Subarea Study identifies alleyway beautification as a means to improve 
the aesthetics of downtown overall.  There has also been several projects in the 
downtown area that call for more public art, such as the Main Street Reallocation (four-
to-three lane conversion) that will create placeholders for public art to be on display in the 
ROW at a future time.  The recently awarded grant from Energy Transfer Partners will be 
utilized to provide functional, aesthetic, and artistic improvements to the Library, 
Dykshoorn Park, and Heritage Plaza, which include railroad ties with led lighting and 
murals and other artwork throughout.   

The Planning Department seeks to work with a local artist to facilitate community input 
in conceptual design of a mural.  A local muralist, Mel Gordon (Bearscat in Mandan), has 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 12, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM 
SUBJECT: Permission to Apply for AARP Community 

Challenge Grant 

Consent No. 7 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Permission to Apply for AARP Community Challenge Grant 
Page 2 of 2 
 
indicated excitement at a community-based project directly involving local resident input.  
Local residents would also be invited to participate in its implementation to physically 
paint the mural, with the muralist to provide direction.   
 
The grant application is due April 1 and notice of selection status will occur May 26.  A 
memorandum of understanding will be required to be entered into and delivered to AARP 
near the end of June.  More details and specifics can be provided to City Commission at 
the end of May, if selected.  No matching funds are required for this grant.   
 
Staff time will include the grant application, future City Commission updates, and 
coordination with a local muralist to help facilitate community input on mural design and 
implementation (painting).   
 
Community Beautification Committee recommended approval to apply for the grant 
application at their February 13, 2020 meeting.   
 
A picture of the existing alley side of the proposed City-owned building and general 
location is included in Exhibit 1.    
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Exhibit 1 – Proposed Mural Site 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal to moderate in applying for the grant, City Commission 
updates, and coordinating and facilitating community input and implantation (painting).    
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  The staff report has been provided to Attorney Brown as part of the 
agenda packet.         
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval to allow staff to apply for the AARP Community Challenge Grant.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve to allow staff to apply for the AARP 
Community Challenge Grant.      
 
 
 
  



Image 2.  Proposed Mural Site (facing east) Image 1.  Proposed Mural Site (facing west) 

Image 3.  Proposed Mural Site (facing north) Image 4.  Proposed Mural Site (aerial) 

City Hall 

Mural Site 

EXHIBIT 1



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider appointing individuals to the Mandan Youth 
Commission (MYC). 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The City Commission created the MYC in 2012 
and the MYC was active for a few years and then became dormant. In discussions with 
representatives from Mandan Public Schools, we would like to resurrect the MYC. 
Mandan Public Schools put out a call to students at the High School and Middle School 
for interested parties. Ten applications were received and appointments were made on 
March 3, 2020. Since that time, we have had one additional applicant, Kelbi Pritchett, an 
8th grader at Mandan Middle School. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: n/a 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: n/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT: unknown at this time 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: I recommend appointing Kelbi Pritchett to the Mandan Youth 
Commission. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to appoint Kelbi Pritchett to the Mandan Youth 
Commission. 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 17, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
PRESENTER: Amber Larson, City Commissioner 
SUBJECT: Appoint to the Mandan Youth Commission 

Consent Agenda No. 8 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 



C ITY OF 

Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

MANDAN 
WHE~ETHE WEST BEGINS 

MEETfNG DATE: 
PREPARATIO DATE: 
UBMTTTING DEPARTMENT : 

DEPARTME T DIRECTOR: 
PRESENTER: 

March 17 2020 
March 9, 2020 
A s mg 
Kimberly Markley 
Kimberly Markt y, ity A es r 

. 1 

SUBJECT: batement Applications fr m lnfinity Ventures, 
fnc. 

parcel i ' als known as parcel #65-6 IO 1450 
with a I gal descriptfon f Lots SA & Lot 9 & 10 Bl ck 2 Lakewood Commercial Park 
3rd. The property in Jude thr e 36 unit apartment building and garages. 

Reas n fl r abatement: The applicanrha requc ted reduction in value based n the 
income information provid d. 

My fir t th ught wer to re mmend u ing the incom data provided and reduce th 
20 l valu , ftcr m eting with staff and doing mor research using trictly income 
information t adju 1 the values on a few properti will create an inequity t similar 
propertie . 

The City of Mandan a e sing office consider three approache to valu prop rty. Th 
three approaches to value are sale , c t, and income. Th ale approa b u 'es ale of 
similar propertie to determine value. The cost approach is land value and the 
depreciated cost of improvements. The income approach e timate present value of 
futu re benefits. 

The a ·ses ing office has bistorically used the ales approach to value property. Th 
sales data is readily available. The c uoty recorder sends the ales information 
monthly . 

I wa contacted by a few apartment owners in late 2018 and early 20l9 concerning 
their prop rty valuation . They fi It they were overvalued compared to the income they 
were generating. rn response to these concerns I sent letters to the owners of apartment 



B ard f ity Commissioner 
Agenda D umcntation 
Meeting Oat : Mar h 17 2020 

ubject: A bat ment Application from lnfinity Ventures lnc. 
Page 2 of2 

building in December 2018 and received a Limited resp nse. The following year 
(October 2019) we sent another request t r the income and expen e data in hope of 
receiving a b tter response. After the reque t in 2019 we had gatheied enough data to 
con ider the income approach for valuation purpo es for th 2020 a essment year. 

W u ed the ervices from Vanguard Apprai ·al ·, Inc. t analyze the income & xpen ·e 
informati n and updat our valuation mod l. Vanguard Appraisals Inc. has the 
experience and expertise to a i in determining the 2020 valuation u ing the income 
od e pense data collected . 

The abatements that have e n requested are for 018 & 2019 valuati n . We did n t 
hav adequate inti rrnation t use inc me approach in our calculati n f r 201 & 20 9 
valuations. Therefore allowing uch abatements would create inequity for the other 
prop rtie in thi cla s. 

ATTACHMENT : Applicati n for Abatement, lnc me informati n al " Ii t 

FlSCAL lMP T: lf abatement were approved. 
201 All taxingentitic = $17,408.3. Cityshar =, 4107.7 

19 All taxing ntitics = ' 16,4 '2.95 City hare = 3 944. 8 

iry Att rn y Br wn 

mm nd abating the 2018 & 2019 values ba u 
olely n the in rne pro id b cause it will er t an inequality to similar pr perti . I 

rec mmend a m tion t d ny th abatement r qu ts for the pr p rly I 4-,ated at 41 Q_ 
hoal Lo p 

SUGGESTED MOTIO : A moti n t eny the abatement reques for the pr p tty 
I cated at 4102 Shoal Loop 



IQ] 
Application For Abatement Or Refund Of Taxes 

North Dakota Century Code§ 57-23-04 

File with the County Auditor on or before November 1 of the year lolloWing the year rn which the tax becomes delinquent. 

Slate of North Onkoto Asscs•mentDistricl CITY OF MANDAN 

County or MORTON Ptopcrty J.D. No. _6_S-_6_J_0_l_4_S0 __________ _ 

Nome INFINITY VENTURES INC Tflephone o. 

Address PO BOX 1603, BISMARCK. ND 58502-0000 

L~g•l descrlplfon of the property involved rn thJ, applicutlun: 

LOT SA & LOTS 9 & 10; PARCELS l0123-l THRU 10123-99 AND 10123-91\ THRU 10123-90; ALL 3 
BLDGS ARE ASSESSED ON nus MAIN PARCEL 

Tomi true nnd full vsluc of1hc properly acicrlbcd 
QbOv1:. for the year O should b : 

L nd i: _____ _ s _______ _ 

lmpro,cmrnls $ _______ _ lm11rovtmen1~ $ _______ _ 

s J.! ;q 1CO 
(I) 

Totul s ,o 33S ooo 

The dlffcrtnce of S ...._l+Z.-"-_..."+-'"7-'-'0:;,_0 __ ,,.11c •nd full value between (I) ond (2) ob1wc b due to the folluwlng reason{, : 

I. 
2. 
:,\. 

4. 

0 6. 

Asricuhuml proper1y true and full vulue exc rcd~ its as;icul111rnl vn lue defined i,1 N.D.C. • § -57-02-27 2 
Rcsideiuial or commer ial propurty•~ true and full value cxce!lds clie murker vnluc 
Error in propeny dt~crip1.lun, enlcrins llle dcscriprton, or cx1cnding the 1ax 
Noncx1~1ing in1provemet1l us5c5,5ed 
ComplninPol or property i~ exempt from loxa1ion Allacl1 a copy of Apj)licalion fur Property Tu F.xcmp1ion 
Duplicate UljSl!llSltltnt 

(2) 

7, Property improvement Wllb' Mstroycd or damaged by fire. ftood, lomado, or 01hcr natural disaster {sec N.D,C · 57-23-04( I )(g)) 
R. Error io Mti11g payment of 1nxes, tlllles erroneously paid 

0 9. Properly qualifict< for J lo111e~1ead Credit (N,D C,C. § 57-02-08 11 or Disabled Vc1cruns Cred it (N.D C C. $ 57-02-08.8). Allach 11 copy ol' 
the applicolion. 

10. Other (explain) 

The following foclli rel:,re to the mlllkel Vllluc of lhc r~sid~nttel or <.-ommcrci11I prop,rty de.scribed nbovc. For griaultu111l propeny, co directly to 
gucstio,, MS. 

I. Pu.rch~ge price of property: __ __........_fo=-~'-1-2-"--l/""O_ !101~ r purchase: 

'J'mns: Cash _____ t'on1mo1 ✓ 'lrndc _ _ ___ Other (exrloinl 

W11s I here pcrsonnl properly involved in 1ht pore hose price? _N.! &liniuted vol1Lt: $ _____________ _ 

yc.1 no 

2. ll~s the property been offered for .~010 on 1he open marker') _Ha lfyi:>1, how long'/ ______________ _ 
y 10 

Asking price: _________ Term~ of sale: 

3. Thcpropcny was i11dcpcndently 11ppraiscd: ...:Jo.v,.,....- Pul'J)oseofaprmi~nl: 
ye · Ito 

___________________ MnrkcL valuccst.i111nro· s _______________ _ 

Appraisal wos modo by wh m1? 

4. Th~ applicant't u.<timntc of'market vnlue orlhc propcny involved in Ibis application is S 

5. The cs1[n101cd Agricul tural produc1ivevulue of111is property is e~cci,sive because oft11e foll<lwing co11dit1un(s):__._,.;;.. J-:..L.-----

C 
Applic•m nsb th111 - -"'>~ .,_..,'"""'"'-'- "'-'dJ...._.....,, ..... ..__ ~.;::..-=-....,,::,A,,.,_.,,~-'--_..,~ ~ -=;:.,_-=.:..e....:~..;;;...----+--

By filing th is applica1ion. J consent to an lnspcc1ion ofll1ti~bovc-~c.scribcd properly by ~n ~u01orizcd asscssmeut official for the purpose of makini: nn 
appraisa l of1hc propo11y I umlcrslonJ the officiul will give me rca.~onublc 001ific11lion o lhe \llSpcction Sec N.D,C.C § S7-2J-OS.I. 

J declur( under the peuohie, of N.D,C.C 12.1-11 ·02. which provide.I for a Class A misd~moau r for 1mtklns u fal~c slatcmonl in~ govcmmcntul 
maucr, 1h01 this application i~, lo the bc.!it or my lu1owlcdg~ ~nd belief, u True untl com:cl applfca1io11 . 

• ~ Qrq,11pw..w..1UU~!!!_! l O O~tc O -S-ig-n-nn-,rc- o_f' _/l_p1-,l-ic-un-,----------

247?5 
(2-2016) 

Dote 



Recommendation of the Governing Body of rhe City or Township 

Rccom,neodathon ot'lho govG111i11g board of _________________ _ 

On ______________ _, tbe governing board ol'tbls <lUJaiclpality, oflerexamiontioa of' lhi1 application and 1hc r'•cLS, pns,sed 

a rcsolut io11 rccoom1coding IO the 80,1rd of Couoty Comm,ssimm,; that the applic•tiort be ____________________ _ 

Oa!ed this _____ <lay of ________ . ___ • 

City Auditor or Towns lap Clerk 

Action hy !he BoQrd of County Commtssi1llll'r$ 

Appllcation w•s ____________ lly acr im, uf ______________ Couniy lloard ol'Commiss1onet 
Approved/I! j octcd 

8a.<ed upon an exumin1,1ion ufthe focts :,nd tho prov1s;ons of No"h Dakole Century Code.§ 5'7,23-04. we approve this applic~lion, Tile •~xablc 

valua1irn1 is reduced fro,~ S ___________ lo S __________ a11d u,e ••~e~ arc r~tluced uccurdinl'IY, 11te tall.<'5, if p,ld, 

"'ill be re fundeJ ro 1 he extcru of ___________ The Board acccp!g S ___________ in fuJI ~•II I ment of la)l.e;<; for the 

{UX )'C.ar ___________ _ 

We reject tlus pi,licouon in whole or in r,11rt for the following rc,isonls) . Writto,1 cxplarralion of 1hc rationolc for rhc decision must he 

u\111cl1ed, 

Datllll ________________ , 

ounty Auditnr 

Ccrtil\calion ofC()unty Audilo1· 
I certify lhut lhe Goard of Couoty Comm,ssioners lllok lhe acdo11 stared above and lhe records of my offieeand lhc oflici, of!li, ouoly ·1~«c;urt r 

how lhe foJJowi11g facts no 101heassc rnt1111 ~11d th~ payment oft3Xes on lhe properly~ rib d m th is applicotion . 

Dale Paid Paymenl Made 
'r'ru Taxable Vr, lue Tu (ff paid) Under Wrmen t'rotcst" 

vcs/110 

I rurthur e~rtify lh"t the tAX,ible \Sll)Jatfon and.tbetaxe5 ordered aboJed orrefun.&,d b1< lhc,Boord ofCouruy nmn1is.<10J,er arc as fol low • 

Year RcJuct,pn in T=blc Valuation Rcduclion in Taxe5 

Couuty Auditor Dare 



IQ] 
Application For Abatement Or Refund Of Taxes 

North Dakota Century Code§ 57-23-04 

FIie with the County Auditor on or before November 1 of the year following the year in which the tax becomes delfnquent. 

s 1~1e of orrh Dalrnta Asscssmenl flillricl CITY OF MANDAN 

nunty or MORTON Property 1.0. No. _6_5_-_6_1_0_14_5_0 __________ _ 

Nnnle INFINITY VENTURES INC Telephone o. 

Addr•n PO BOX 1603, BISMARCK, ND 58502-0000 

Leg~l descdplion of the property involved In lhl, opplicalion: 

LOT SA & LOTS 9 & 10; PARCELS 10123-1 THRU 10123,99 AND J0l 23-9A THRU 101 23-9G; ALL 3 
BLDGS ARE ASSESSED O THIS MAIN PARCEL 

'l'otnl tn1c alld full voh1 (• orn,t 111opcr1y dctcrlbcd 
nbuve for lh year '2. 0 I I : 

lht 11ropcr1y d . crllJed 
~--...._.._shOuld be: 

Land $ _______ _ s _______ _ 

hnprovcments I mprovomcnl ~ 

1'otol st/ Co Tomi 000 

The dlffcr,•ncc fll / ~ ?ti 2.,?,oO tn,c and fuU vHluc bctwcm1 (t) and (2) •bovc Ii d11c ro the following rco~on(1J: 

I. Agricultural 11roper1y true 3lld l'ull voluc c,,:ccc<ls i1 · ugricultural value defined in N.D, ,C § 57-02-27 2 
CW"' 2. Rosidenlial or commerei~I pro11eny'~ 1rue and fu ll value exceed~ the murket value 
0 3. Error iu property descliption, emcring the dCllcriprion. or cxtonding the 1:ix 

4. Nonexisting Improvement a~c~scd 
U 5. Complainant or piopcrty i$ cxcmpl from 111xatiun. i\ttach a copy of Applk11tion for Property Tax E..xump1ion 

6. Duplicate RSSCSIIJUCnt 
0 7. Property !mprovem •nt wus destroyed or dnmngtd by fire, flood, tornado, or 01hcr nntur I disa ·ter {se~ N.O. .C. g 57-23-04( I )(g)) 
0 ~ llrror lo 11otinc.paymemof taXe ·, IAxes crronco11sly paid 
0 9. Property qualifies for Homcstr~d Credit (N.D.C .. § 57-02-08.IJ or Disabled Ve1craru; Credit (ND. . § 57-02-08.8). i\uach n copy of 

the Bpplica1ion. 
0 10. OIhcr (c.,plai 11) 

The Co ll owins racl'.!I rcla10 to 1hc mnrke1 volue or the rc.<idcmial or commcrclal propcny des ribcd above. For ngriculturol propcny, go dircc1ly o 
qucslion 115. 

I , Purcbascpriccofpropcrty: S , £\lo(o -Z..'/0 Dn1,rnfpurchase: 'Z..O _I_\ ______________ _ 
Tmm: ash _____ Contro.cl _____ 'l'rudo _____ Olhcr(explain) 

Was there pcrs1mol property involve~ i11 t!1c JJl1rcl, • pt1c ' _J/:. I· 111,1~1~!,( , lo~ S 
ye --------------

2. I Ill$ the properly been offered for sole n Ih~ op~n rn~rkc17 
yr 1iii, 

II ~ . how IQng'/ ______________ _ 

A~klng price: S _ _______ Tonns ursak· 

3. The propeny was lndcprndcntly a1ipruiscd: N Purpos• of appraisal: 
~c. nil 

___________________ Mllrket ·vulue e~1imn1e: S _______________ _ 

Apprnnl wu~ mode by whom? ----- ------------------,..------------
4, The npplfcan,•s c 1lmu1c or D1lltkc1 value of the p1ope,1y Involved In ibis nppll 01,on is S.J...L.GµL:=::...i,q...=.=.=:.. ______ _ 

5. The cs1imu1od ngricolturnl produc1ivc value ofllus property i., excessive b1.-cnusc of1ltc fo l A 

Applican1 as.ks 1h01 ' 

~,r'.\{o r maB'o ,a 

Oy filing !his application, I l'OllSl'III 10 nn h~peclion of the nbovco-de..~cribcd propcny by nn outhorizcd a~;cssment officio! for 1he purro c of muking "" 
approis~I of the properly I unclerstund tbe officiul wi ll give me rc~son11blcnotifltutio11 or1he in~poc:tion. Sec ,D.C.C. § 57-23-05.1 

I dcclure under ~ie 11cnnltie.• or .D.C.C. §l2.1-11-02. which provide$ for a Cl11~s I\ misdemeanor for mukii1e n Culsc st.otemenc ist u 1,oven11uent I 
mnncr, that lhis npplic1!lion is, lo the lx:s1 or my lmowkdj:c Md IJelicf, u 1n1c and corrcc1 upplicaliM, 

tofe.lno 
Date S1g0Rturc of i\pplican1 Dace 



Recomme11dalio11 of the Governing Body or the City or Township 

llec,lmnic~d 110!\ f fl\e i:u\/crnmg hoard 01' _______________ _ _ 

Ur, - ---- ---~ ----~ the g verning board of this municipo li ty, after eX.lll1H11a1ion of t~I · •Jl!)h~utlon and 1he !i\01,1, passed 

~ 1'C!loluhon rec-omntcnding (o lhe Board of County Comnii 1one,,, thot the appllC11!ion be ___________________ _ 

Dated thls _ ____ day or _______ __, 

City Auditor or Tow11slup Clede 

Action hy the Hoard of County Commissioners 

Applicedon wo, __ - _ _______ by" tion o{ _ _ ___________ Counly Bourd of Com111issiano'1'< 
Awrovcd.lRe_icot<d 

Balled upou an oxanun~uon of the foct nnd th6 lJm1>ismns of N<lrlh Onk,)la Cent ry Code§ 57-23-04. we. npprovc tlH~ npplica110n l'hc luA'llhl~ 

vuh1atlon 1s reduced from$ _ ____ ______ tu S- _________ and the taxes are ru,!uoed ac~ordlngl}'. Th~ taxes, ifp,1id, 

wil l bo refunded IO lh~cx.tcnl of$ ___________ . The Doard acgcp!s $ ______ _ ___ in fu ll settlement ofll!Jtcs for Ilic 

We n:Jccl this applicouon in whole nr in p for tlu: fo llo111rng rcru,on(s). Wrruen explaoaliott ol' lite rationale for lhe decision onu•t be 

•IIUCb~d. 

Da1eJ _ ___ _ _________ ~ ____ _ 

Coun1y Auditor 

Certification of County Audilol' 

! certify tlmt the Board o(Couuty Co1t\1 11iuion1m; took Ute •c1ion sl3ted above ond the records of my office ond d,e office o[lhe Coun1y l'rca.unit 
show the following fac ts .a~ to !he asscs,ms•nt amt lhc payment of i.uu,, ,m lhc property d,-scrlbcd 111 this appll a1ion 

P•te Paid P•yme11r Made 
Yc,ir 'faxable Value Ta" /ift>aid) Undor Wnttell Jln,1.,.t'' 

Vt><ll!U 

I further certify thaf the t,11mble valunlio1> and lhe lmr.cs ordered abaled or refunded by-lh Boord ofCounly ommi,souner are as follow.: 

Ycer Reducuon in Toublc V:,Jualion Reduction in Ta,,.c& 

County A11ditor 

! 

= ~ ... 

f e "' 
~ 

... 
~ .0 • < .... " ... 0 t Q -0 

~ c:: 
. 

r:: .E 
~~ 

j!, 
Q 

~ .j ] Q. .! '.,C 

"' re 
M ... ~is -~ .. - :, 

Q,, 0 c ~< l~ -: ~ c :,; 
a. -~ C " ~c"( ~ '0 :, --e a :,; ]8 ~ia· ... 

< " ... < ~~ :, ·= ... 
C ~ f: C 

e " ~.,. ~';.t " ~! " !!l ~o z 



2/2 112020 abatement information • s2ander23@gmail.com - Gmall 

Kimberly K. Markley <kimberly.markley@cityofmandan.com> 

to me 

Good morning Stacey, 

2:36 PM (1 hour ago) 

I think I am finally rapping this project up!! I met with the county tax director and explained all this information to him. 

I am back to work fulltime now so if you have questions with the abatement forms next week just give me a call. 

You will need to print off two forms one for 2018 and one for 201 .9. 

Assessed Values for your property were: 

Infinity Ventures Inc. 65-6101450 

2018 Appraised $12,208,500 county lowered to $11,202,700 

2019 Appraised $13,295,400 county lowered to $1 1,650,800 

During our review of the apartment values for the 2020 assessment year we studied the last few years of apt sales. This 

statistical analysis indicated that the market was coming down. 

Based on the income and expense information you provided for our apartment analysis your property would be 

valued at $10,338,485. 

Parcel Number 65-6101450 
Address 4102 SHOAL LOOP SE 
Gross Potent lal Income USED2019 $1,180,512.00 
Vacancy and Collection Loss PROJECTION $94,4 0,00 
Other Income ~351772.00 
Effective Gross Income $1,121,844.00 

Expenses 
Management $34,172.00 
Utilities $64,740.00 
Maintenance & Repairs $130,950.00 
Lawn Care/Parking Lot so.oo 
Elevator $0.00 
Insurance S32,533.07 
Advertising/Legal/Accounting $16.640.00 
Miscellaneous $5,238.00 
Reserves for Replacement ($400/Unlt) $43,200.00 108 
Total Expenses $377,473.07 

Net Operating Income $744,370.93 

Capitalization Rate 6,009, 
Effective Tax Rate 1.209' 
Loaded Capltallzatlon Rat.e 7,2096 

Indicated Value $10,338,485.14 

When you request an abatement for 2018 and 2019 I will recommend to the City Commission and County that 

they approve a value of 10,338,000. 

Here is the estimate of the refund based on the numbers above if the city and county approve the request 



2/21/2020 abatement information - szander23@gmail.com - Gmail 

2019 2018 

Commercial Total Commercial Total 
Assessed 11,579,700 Assessed 11,650,800 

50% 50% 

Taxable 0.1 Taxable 0.1 

2019levy 0.26549 20181evy 0.26521 

Taxes 153,714.73 Taxes 154,495.43 

Commercial Total Commercial Total 
Assessed 10,338,000 Assessed 10,338,000 

50% 50% 

Taxable 0.1 Taxable 0.1 

2019levy 0.26549 20181evy 0.26521 

Taxes 137,231.78 Taxes 137,087.05 

difference 16,482.95 difference 17,408.38 

We are finishing up the 2020 values in the next two weeks. The statistical analysis 

shows the decline has continued and we will make adjustments for2020. 

Kimberly Markley 

City Assessor 

City of Mandan-Assess 

Mandan, ND 58554 

Office: 701-667-3232 

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/#inbox/WhctKJVjXnxhfxVnqmPsNlcrsNBkdNpdTvmFl hwjCCmSjvSxvnQlrfsXCbShKbsGKqjmwdg 212 



Parcel_Numb1 Sale_Amount Assessed_ Val Sale_Date Ratjo Recording Seller Buver House_N11Address 
65-1137000 325000.0 250400.0 4124/2017 77.1 477054 KERZMAN DARYL & VIRGINIA PETERSON PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 1301 3 ST NW 
65--3 1 99000 296500,0 243900.0 6/1/2017 82.3 477669 MISSOURI VALLEY RENTALS LLC FIFTH & MADISON PROPERTIES 1..LC 210 3STNE 

65-3530000 197500.0 142600,0 6/1/2017 72.2 477647 MISSOURI VALLEY RENTALS LLC FIFTH & MADISON PROPERTIES LLC 804 BAVENW 

65-3640000 330000.0 215700.0 6/1/2017 65.4 477671 MISSOURI VALLEY RENT LLC FIFTH & MADISON PROPERTIES LLC 600 9ST NW 

65-2952000 225000.0 215400.0 10/20/2017 96.7 480377 KRAFT RAYMOND A (TRUST) FAIMAN, BRADLEY & NICHOLE 505 6AVE NW 

65-2162000 450000.0 360900.0 12/6/2017 80.2 480643 RIVINIOUS MERRIL & BEV FEIL, LANDON & JEROMCHECK, JAMES 1509 1 AVE NW 

65-2984000 220000'.0 237000,0 1127/2018 107-7 482081 RALSTON JOYCE FIFTH AND MADISON PROPERTIES LLC 1205 3STNW 

65-1475000 180000.0 230900.0 4130/2018 128.3 483206 TEXOTA PROPERTlE-S LLC CLOOSKI PROPERTIES LLP 304 10AVE NE 

65-6101375 1.2500000.0 11386200.0 6/1/2018 91.1 483775 PLUS FOUR HOLDINGS LLC EWR MANDAN LAKEWOOD LLC 2303 SHOAL LOOP SE 

82.3 



1111111 
CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHE~E THI. WEST BEGlNS 

MEETING DATE: 

Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

PREPARATJO DATE: 
March 17 2020 
March 9 2020 

UBMITTING DEPARTMENT: 
DEJ>ARTME T DIRECTOR: 
PRESENTER: 
UBJECT: 

es mg 
Kimberly Marki y 
Kimberly Markley, ity As 'es or 
Abatement Application fr m JDS Holding , LP 

o consider reducti n to the 201 value of the property at 

8 ~ hi par I is al kn wn a. parcel fl. 5~6119750 
with a legal description f Lot 6 Bl ck 1 Mi souri Valley Replat. Thi property 
include 36 unit apartment building and garage . 

Rea on for abatern nt: Th appli ant ha requested a reduction in value ba cd n the 
income infomrntion provided. 

The ity of Mandan assessing ffice con ider three approache to value property. The 
three approa he to value are saJ s, cost, and in me. The aJes approach us ale f 
imilar pr pertie: to determine valu . Th co t approach i land value and the 
epreciated co t of impr vements . Th incom approach e. timate pre ent valu of 

future benefit . 

'lhe assessing office ha hist ri ally u ed the sale approach to value property. The 
ales data is readily available. The county record r sends the sales informati n 

monthly . 

I was contacted by a few apa11ment Qwner' in late 2018 and early 2019 concerning 
tbeir property valuatj ns . They fell they were vervalued compared to th income they 
were generating. In respon, e to the. e concerns I eot letters to Lhe owner of apartment 
building in December 2018 and received a limited response. The following year 
(October 2019) we sent anolher reque t for (h income and xp n e data io b pe of 
receiving a better response. After the reque tin 2019 we had gath red enough data to 
onsider the inc me approach for valuation purposes for th 2020 asses menl year. 



oard of City omm1 s1oners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: Mar h 17, 2020 
Subje t: Abatement Application from JDS Holdings. LLP 
Page 2 of2 

W u ed th erv ices fr m Vanguard Apprai als Inc. ro analyze the income & ex pen ·e 
informati n and updat our valuation m del. Vanguard Appraisal Inc. has th 
exp rience and expe1tise to assi t in determining the 2020 valuati n using the income 
and expens data collected. 

The abatement thal has been reque ti fi r 2019 valuation . We djd not have adequate 
information to u e income approach in our calcul tion f r 2019 valuati n' . Therefore 
aU wing such an abatement would create inequity for the ther pr pertie · in this class. 

ATTACHME TS: Application for batem nt, Income information, Sale Ii t 

------"----"-'--"=-=~-=-=--T: If abatement wa appr v d. All taxing e11titie - $9,566.51, ity 
' . 7 

/A 

LEG R EVfEW: Reviewed by jty Attom y Brown 

RE OMME D TION: 1 d nol recommend abating the 2019 value based olely on th 
income provided becau e it will er ate n inequality to imilar pr pcrtie . I recomm nd a 
1n tion to d ny th abatement reque t for the property locat d at I 6 l9 1 't Street NW. 



Application For Abatement Or Refund Of Taxes 
North Dakota Ce11tury Code§ 57-23-04 

File with lhe County Audl1or on 01 before November ; of the year following the year in which lhe ta,,, becomes delinquent. 

Coun1y or_M_ o_rl_o_n ________ _ l'l'flpt1'tl' 1,ll, N . _6_5_-6_1_1_9_7_5_0 _________ _ 

Nmn• JDS Holdings, LLP Tclcrlrn nc No\, 

!\r.ldre.s, 3608 GravsoJl Drive Burlington. ND 58722 

Lognl de:rcri111inn nr the 1iropcrty ln1,olvcd In !his 11ppli,ntla11: 

Lot:6, Block: 1 Missouri Valley Addition Replat 

'fotul lrn • nnd f,ill YHluc of the prn11or1:-, d...,r, b•d 
nbovc ro,· tifq,ear 2019 i<: 

To l•l truc uo1I run vnl 11 < ofth, prup~•·ty <k•~ril,.,,1 
~bo•• for U1f en,· 2019 shoulll be: 

1.~od $~0 ___ _ Lund S 202.60_0 ___ _ 

h11pn" 0111cn1, ' 4,125,500 lmp1 o•~rneu1, 3.397.400 

1~1111 $ 4.328.100 rmnl t_3_,600.QQQ__ __ 
!II (2) 

The tllfTm,1 c or 728, I 00.00 

I. 
t..l :! 

u ~ 

u 5, 

u G, 

u 7 

K, 

a Q 

111 

,\grh,1111111111 proptn)' u11c ;11111 /'1111 v:ilu,• ~-\'-'<~1L, l1, 11~1 ic11llural vulu~ dclln~d In M.J l ,C'.C. ~ 5?-02 7.::? 
1,~<idc11t111I OI c'01nm~rcinl ~fOl)Cfl) ·, ll'UC ,m<I r11t1 I nll1c C,\l~·,~ls Ilic 11\IIM\CI valu~ 
l' rro,· Ill pl "IJCl'IY 1lcic11p1i1J11. cnlcrlng !h,· dt.,~rlpliuu. [)r ~~lciKllu~ (he hlX 
'I~,,~, isti11i; impfl v,:menl n~~,icd 

complui11,111111r rl'(lpert)' ~; cwrnp rrnm IA~ lion. Aum:h ;1 ~01>) or 1\prtf,~11 on I r l'~,r~n)' ·1:,~ 1,wm ~1i1111 
n11plk;11c l\S,SCS.,111~11\ 

i ►l'l,pcu~ im/11\ll'i:111Clll 1111< dcilrO) c,1 or J1111111~e(I h)' fife, !lo ,I. lomnu,,. I r nlhl.'l n111 ,1ml di~.,. erl.,c~ N.l).C C. ~ 57-2.i-O,q I ){g)j 

f!rrw in 1m1lng puymcnl or 10~,·.,. m~c~ cm111001 ,s1i 1 uhl 
17~•ricr1i• (jUuliHe~ for Ht)OlC<ICi)d Crctlil uccor~ill!l '" N.D.c.~:. § 57-02-118.1. A11r,ch "<upy ,.,f I lonw~ICO(I t,l'cdil Aprlk111im, . 
o,11~r(,•xr,lui111 Adjusting assessed value to reflect true market val~ 

11,c lnll11n 111~ foe" rd:11c 1111 i.· ,u~r Cl ,,1h•~ ,,r 111~ r,•<l\lc111in1 111 c111,1mc~fol t '"l"·'"l .!~riht.,l ~lw ,1 ~ I "' pri.:11lmr,,1 p,·<>pcn)•, ~o •llr •,11~- m 
411e,Hoo 11-. 

llu1c ,,r I''" •h:c .... 

tro1tc _____ U11\c1 (1•~0l11(11) 

Wu 11\Ci,: fll.'/"lMHI pn>pmy in, 11\\M 111 \l'CJ)Hr hu;e t)ol~.:·• ------ fa1ilM1(0d ~11l11u: $ 
)1.\s/no 

lh~ uppl11.:.1111\. \'"'i:cirmm:. n( m:n"'-1,.•l 11:ah,c ol' 1lw 1nop~rt_,. ,n, nhcll ill 1hi:u,pfllh.:uu11" i:; 

'I I\~ ~>!hll~k,I H£1'[Cllillll~I l'fllihtCI I\ t' 111111~ 111' 1t1is 1""1),'fl) i~ ~~ct,~11•1• l><:,·.111<:l' ul' Ilic 1'11\lu11111~ c,on,li1i11n( ,1-

• 1 ,. 1 Adjust assessed value for the property to reflect what the true mnrket value is. 
nllt~ ► I.HO• IISI\~ I l1U __ _ 

See Attached. 

!1_1 !ilioll) lhi, ll\)pli,•1!11(111. I ·1111,0111 ,,, 1111 lll<l)~Clllll• ,,r UN 11IX)~~·,k.."-'I 1hcJ '""I'll' ly h_1 ,111 .11,1hrn i,, .,I """·''"nc ,11 ,,f)ldiJI rur 111" 111111111>1' ,11 ,11uk111~ ;ill 
11\ •~nlhlll ,,r,11~ l""twrt, I m1J,·1;1"rKI •he ,,llkiul 11111 i;i,,,. Ill•' '""·"""~I\' 1)01illc1llhll\ ,,1 lhe ,11~,)~ttl,JII , s,.., N.11 l (' '57-~1-115 I 

l ,kc\111 e ,in1t.-r tlW 1wrn1l11~, r1( "I I ).l'.t' ~ 1:: 1- 11-(12, I\ II 1d1 l'rl>I· 1,I ·~ 1<11' 11 ( I:"~ A llhil1·1111·.111111 lh1 111,11.111~ .1 l,11·:, ,l;111•m~111 111 II ~•' ' 1·n11 11~lll,1I 

111,111,,1. ,11,n thh ,\lll'il~ll\ltlll 1\ (o lh~ lll':,I ,1r /!I lmm \,•dee 41111 hd1e1: n ll "'' Hlltl rnlf\' 11'\llll'i!ll•lll 

2-25-20~ 
I I 

•H"/5 
tll1!' ... lll11idft~'1UII 



Recommcnd11 tlon or the Governi11g Body of the City or Town hip 

Re~nrn111omla1 lo11 or lht M-""cming bonul ur ________________ _ 

u n::sol1tlK!fl recommending lo Iii~ 801ml al Coulli)' Commi~(oner.c l11ul th~ npJllic:stlnn be ___________________ _ 

r>iued lhlS _____ d~y ul --------··----
City l\mlll~r nrTnwn•h/p C'lcrl< 

;\ction by the Board o (County Com mi sioncrs 

Applu::i(l<>1> w~ ------=--.,.--- hy 11 lion or _____________ C11umy Board or Cu111m1~oncr,;, 
i\Jll'f ;,:;IIIICJ<(ICd 

vuhmtim1 ,~ n:dutll\J rrorn S ___________ 10 .~ _ ________ 011J the 1uscs ore reduced acrurJi»!;\t) . l 'hc ln'<OS. iC pnill. 

will be n:fl111tlcd 10 the cxtcnl ors __________ _;• T11e Boarll 11cc,1>1~ In foll ocllkmc111 ofl.t'l~ ll1r th~ 

\\'c r~jcd lids lll'fllieu1iou in wht1lu or in purt fin ~1• rllllowlnl! ,,,rumn(5I. Wriue11 c:: pl1111ollon uf the n11iOlll!le for 1hc dt.ei.<1on m11>1 he 

allnd1cJ. 

Dotcli __________ _________ _ 

Choi~~on 

Cerlllkntlon uf County udltor 

I ~nit)' 11,~1 lhc lloard of C'u,1my Coinmiisioll<rs took the Rcllon slnrctl ahovc ;md lhc n:t'Ol'd, ofmy .illkc nnd 1h1: oOu:c o \h~ C1>unry r n=L~t11cr 

show rh,· Jhlt,"l(ng racr., us lo \he 11>.-<;C!\smcnland lhc payment of1nw,: un lh~ propeny Jescrit..:d in 1his ~pplit:alion. 

Dnlc: Paid l'n~m<nl Mn.Jo 
W,u Tn.,oble Voluc T"-' (iroHidl Un<kr Wrh11:n 11nll~'SI'. 

,•C"JVno 

I l'urlh~r cert I I}· thin 1hc 111.~ablc v.,h,ation und the ~•~~ onkr.ro nhr,1cd 01 reli1ndotl h)· the Bo I ,,r t',,iin1y Commi~ion,:r mx ,is rolluws: 

lkducrion in T:i.,nhl~ Valu:1tion 

D,11c 

c 
Cl> 

a "' ., 
~ >O 
C\I ~ .J:J 

< .... .. 
0 .I 

'""· c:: 
C .a -~ .,, 
;; IX ... .. 
:a 0 
C. 
< 



JDS Holdings Mandan Properties. Valuations 

The request to adjust the assessed values ls.supported by the following values based on net revenues 

from the l)roperties. Net revenues are trom the attached schedules from the tax returns adding back in 

depreciation and interest and for 2019 on the 44 unit building adding back in $45,000 of RE taxes that 

were paid early. A.lso supporting these values Is the fac.t that the buildings have been listed for sale 

since 4-19 at $110,000 per unit and have not had any legitimate offers during that time. 

1611 31" St 44 unit apartment building: 

2018 - $ 269,565 / 5 ,5%,, $4,901,181 

2019 - $196,904 / 5.5% = $ 3,580,072 

1619 31" St 36 unit apartment bllllding 

2018 - $144,478 / 5.5% = $ 2,629,672 

2019 • S 170,126 / 5.5% : $ 3,093,ZOO 

AVerage of$ 4,242,627 

Average of S 2,861,436 



·- 8825 
4Rww 1 Novc,,,.t.,q 2011!1) 

Otpll{lmtfll Of V'II • Ti N!i.lJI '; 
ln111tn1I Ra-,.,.i.i1 91N'\11c.e ..... 

Rental Real Estate Income and Expenses of a 
Partnership or an S Corporation 

► Att1c1I t.o Fa1111 1066 or Farm l10S. 
► So IO www.ir1.oov1fo1m8~2~ 101 Ule la1e11 lnlo1m•llM. 

JDS HOLDINGS, LLP 
Show Iha typijand address or each prop.ny. Far each rnnlBJ real estate iiroperfy s1e~. rep()(! \he number or diys re111sl1 al la~ 

1enIa1valuo and <la s wlm 0111~1131 use.. S.:o 1n'11uut10ns. Seo D c 2 to 1IsIaddittonal ornoeiln 
Pt1ystcal address ol each properfy -s1reet. city, Ty~e • E~ter code H ; 
S!lllC, ].IP GOd~ see page 2 lor 11st 

TH AVE E 
"" 'i"cKINSON°;· .. ND .. set"oT" """ ·1 ··· 

& 3 E ROSSER AVE I.SMARCK ,"' ND "" se'soi'" ...... ,.. ... j "" 
PL&X 
DAN, ND . 595'5"4 ";i"' 
.PLEX 

.I\N, ND·"sas·s4 'f " 

11,111,1 Real Estare l~~ome 
2 Gro i ,enl.s 2 

R~nu.l Roi f$11Ta E1111nsu 
3 Adve,~slng a 
4 Auto and Uftvel 
5 Cleaning and main1en1nce s 
s <.:omrmsslon1 8 
7 Insurance 7 
8 Lll9<11 and om~ orormlonal laM 8 
9 lnlllresr 9 

10 Rep"ils 10 
11 Taxes 11 
t2Ulli,iu 12 
1 a WaQilS and salaries ......... . 13 
14 Oep reel al km (sie ln~rructions) 14-

15 OIM! (fist) ► STMT 11 
SEE STATEMENT 12 15 

,., 

SEE STATEMENT !3 1 , 223. 
SEE STATEMENT 16 

16 Totlt oxoenses klr eacn n1opert)', 
Add llollS 3 through 15 .... .......... 16 

17 Income 01 (loss) from eacn property. 
Sub 1r11~tnng 16 from lln• 2 17 

1h To1aI oross ren!$.AOd .Q!liss rl!flts from ~n8 2. columns A lh,ough H 
b Total expense$. Md totll llllponses from llun 16, columns A through H , 

19 N~t ~aln Uus~) from Form 4797. Pail II, na 17, from lhe dlspos~ion al property from ,enlal real 
e1tatc acll~illu _,,, _ _ , ____ ... .. ..~ .... 

201 Ngl k,come (los6f fJom rai\ltl real 1staleac11vllles 110111 ~uriners~ .p•, •states, and uusls In Which 
this parmershijl or S corparMlon is a partnar or Oenenci~rv (from Stllidufe K·l) 

b ldantlfy below I/la partnership~ eslates, or trusts from wl,lch Ml Income (foss) is shown on 11/1e ~Oa. 
Altach ~ schedule if mn,e space Is 11eede!l: 

(IJ Name (2) Employ,r kjontlflcatton nun1ber 

21 Net 1enlal real csl'Ata Income (loss), r.ornbini lln¢s 180 wo Igh zoa. Enter 1111'. 1esuh 
he1~and on; 
• Farm 1005 or 11205:Sclledule I(, !111&? 

fol PO!flWOfl( R•ducuon At;\ Notlee, IH rm,lrUilUon,, :~:\v LHA 

462,476. 

- 143,338. 

18b 

19 

21 

~02050 ~S HOLDINGS . LLP 

550,502. 

- 315,996. 

Form eu25 (R~,, 11-20161 



JDS HOLD1NGS, LLP 

OTl::IER RENTAL ExPENSES 

MULT1 - FAMILY RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY: 36 PLEX, ~DAN 
LOCATION: 36 PLEX, MANDAN, ND 58554 

DESCRIPTION 

MANAGEMENT 
SUPPLIES 
MISCELLANEOUS 

TOT..AL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 15 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY: 24 PLEX, BISMARCK 
LOCATION: 2901 & 3001 E ROSSER AVE, BISMARCK, ND 58501 

DESCRIPTION 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 
RE~AINED DEPOSITS 
LATE FEES 

TOTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 2 

GROSS RENTAL LNCOME 

MULTI - FAMILY RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY: 36 PLEX, MANDAN 
LOCATION : 36 PLEK, MANDAN, ND 58554 

DESCRIPTION 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 
RETAINED DEPOSITS 
LATE FEES 
VENDING MACHINE INCOME 

TOTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 2 

STATEMENT 13 

AMOUNT 

15,770. 
72. 

381. 

16,223 . 

STATEMENT 14 

AMOUNT 

165 098, 
1,825. 

170. 

167 , 093. 

STATEMENT 15 

AM.Oum' 

314,133. 
3,541. 
1,112. 

352. 

319,138. 

27 STATEMENT($) 13. 14 1 1 
2019.02050 JDS HOLDINGS, LLP 



JDS HOLDINGS 1 LLP 

OTHER RENTAL EXPENSES 

MULTI- FAMIL~ RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY: 44 PLEX, MANDAN 
LOCATION : 44 PLEX, MAND.AN , ND 58554 

DESCRIPTION 

MANAGEMENT FEES 
SUPPLIES 
MISCJi;LLANEOOS 

TOTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 15 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY: 44 PLEX , MANDAN 
~OCATION: 44 PLEX , MANDAN , NO 585Si 

UESCRIPTION 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 
LATE FEES 
RETAINED DEPOSITS 
TENANT REIMBURSEMENTS 
VENDING MACHINE INCOME 

TO~~L TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 2 

OTHER RENTAL EXPENSES 

MULTI - FAMILY RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY; MINOT TIM.BER RIDGE 
LOCATION: TIMBiR RIDGE , MINOT , ND 58701 

DESCRIPTION 

¥A»AGEMENT FEES 
SUPPLIES 
:!(ISCELLANEOUS 
AMORTTZATION 

TOTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 15 

STATEMENT Hi 

AMOUNT 

21 , 117. 
371. 
491. 

21,979,. 

STATEME?,l'T 17 

AMOUNT 

420,126. 
2,040. 
5,821. 

300. 
477. 

428,764. 

STATEMENT 18 

AMOUNT 

5,835. 
134. 
132. 
698. 

6,799, 

28 STATE't!ENT (S) 16 , 17 , 18 
201 9 ,02050 JDS HOLDINGS , LLP 



8825 Rental Real Estate Income and Expenses of a 
Fo,"' Partnership or an S Corporation \FW N:w"7'1b81 J.IJUI) 0 1S11s.a1H 

er=!~~~ ► Atllch to Form 106S or Form 1120S. 
► Goto www.lr& .v••lfarn18826 lor tbe 1111111nron111~on. 

,u ..... ~ ............. ,.. ......... 
JDS HOLDINGS LLP -I ShQW I a lypa and addross ol eacll p,openy. Foi ea~ll itnl.'ll rut l'Slilla property lii!•d. report lhe nomoe, ol d.ys 1en1t!I al la~ 

umal ~• and <13,;, W1111 oc•sonat uR. Su lfl511Uctlons. SM n.,,, 2101o:1 ~ddll!OIUI orDllei~u. 
Physical addreSl! of each prowty · $11!!1, c,ty, Type· EOIBI ccda h'I; Fa, .... _ ........ ..... 
rurc Zif' coo1 - ?30 ~ lor Msl c.-,. o..,. 

Ala~.P1 .. k .. 1Qo1 . .s .. J!.QssE~ .. 1wJ ... .. .. .. -BISMARCK tm 58501 2 
8\f;i.~ !:IT.lt,JI.VE ... B. •• • h . .. tli11~U ··• . ... .. .. -DICKINSON. ND 58601 2 
c~~ .. .. ..NP 

sas'sf" ... .... _ .. , .. .. .. ... " ... j.-1 •• · ... ., ... 
MANDAN ND 2 
o~~ ... J~.P.. " .......... · • -·- , . "h 

MANDAN NO 58554 2 
Proper1ies 

Roni II Real Ea1&11 fA«i me A 8 C D 
'l Groi:s ren~ 2 . 30 2 640. 40 0 7.90 . 

Ron111 Real E111tD E•p•nu, 
3 Ad\lertis ng ~ 

◄ r.utn aqd travel 4 
5 Clnnlng ano maln1cn1111Ce 5 
6' OornmtssionF 6 

• 
1 lnStJrance 7 13 600. 14 200. 
s l1aa1 ano cm r prole~I l1u B -. l 069, 1 43B, 
9 lnllrut a 160 628. 129 228. -

10 l'lej)ak~ 10 :I =: 35 947. 43 712. 
11 axos !I 56 746 . 73 916. 
12 U1Ultl1& 12 . 30 374. 41 666. 
1l Wagas ao~ Hla•!~ . 13 
14 Oepro~1.1ron (Sta lnstn,GUOlls) 1~ =- 182 228. 140 3 37. . 
15 0\11"1 (lisl) ►STMT 10 -

SEE ~TATEMENT 12 16 
,_._ 

SEE STATEMENT 14 20.426, 
.QRE STATEMENT 16 20 629. 

lB Tola!el(p6/lses fouach praperl\l. 
Add l1nas 3 lhro~on 16 19 . 501 018. 465 126. 

17 lnoomll.or (loss) ~om each property. -Sub111!CI lln! 16 lrorn liM 2 17 . - 1 98 378. 64 336 . 
10 Totaloross rent,. Md gross rents lrom lloe 2, cvlorn~ A throuuli I◄ 18a 1 027 415. 

b TOIIII e1q1onsos. f\dd total ~lillonses bom l\ 11~ 16, colull'ln, A lhrnugll H .. .. 18b ( 1 357.478 J 
18 N!I galn (loss) lrom Ferm 4797, Part II. ~no 17, from u,e dlspOSIIIIIO ot PJ'Ollerty flom rental real 

estate acrMlli:s .. ... 19 
2h Nol income (loss) flom rmntol real amte ac!Mlld~ r,orn pa<1n1rsh'o1, estalBS. and lrl/$1s ro which 

ihlS PHr1flfrstilp or S cc1p0rallon i a pariner or bwefictaty (hom Sch~duk K• 11 21Ja 
b ldnol fy be/ow rhe partnersl\lPS, tstaltot, Dr rrusis rrom ,,mien ntl lncllme (loss) is sllown an llna 2D.a. 

Al!a,h a SGhedule II mor1 space is oeodod: 

(1) ltame 12) Employir identorira1,un nunmr 

21 rltt,Mlal r,al e&t11le lhc0(1le(loss).C0/11biM~nes IS. lhrouoh2Oa.Entl!fl!l<: result 
1rmalldo1r. 2t -3 30 063. 
• f~r111 10650• 1120S: Schl!dula I( line 2 

form 8125 ,11 v. 11•2018) 

6 
~2060 JDS HOLDINGS, LLP 



JDS HOLDINGS, LLP 

OTHER RENTAL EXPENSES 

MOI.ITI - FAMILY RESIDENCE 
tOPERTY: 162 9TH AVE E, DICKINSON 
>CATION: 162 9TH AVE E, DICKINSON, ND 58601 

fSCRIPTION 

I.NAGEMENT 
IPPLIES 
IORTIZATION 

>TAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE , LINB lS 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
tOPERTY: 162 9TH AVE E, DICKINSON 
>CATION: 162 9TH AVE E, DICKINSON, ND 58601 

rncRIPTION 

toss RENTAL INCOME 
1UNDRY INCOME 

JTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE , LINE 2 

OTHER RENTAL, EXPENSES 

MtJL.Tl- FAMILY RESIDENCE 
tOPERTY: 36 PLEX, MANDAN 
)CATION: MANDAN, ND, MANDAN, ND 58554 

rnCRIPTION 

illAGEMENT 
IPPLIBS 
~T FEES 
:SCBLLANEOUS 

)TAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE:, LINE 1 S 

STATEMENT 12 

AMOUNT 

3,162. 
342. 
227. 

3,731. 

STATEMENT 13 

AMOUNT 

50,844. 
1,222. 

52,066. 

STATEMENT 14 

AMOUNT 

151129. 
302. 
245, 

4,750. 

20,426. 

27 STATEMENT(S) 12, 13, 14 
2018,02060 JDS HOLDINGS, LLP 



JDS HOLDINGS , LLP 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
tOPERTY: 36 PLEX, .MANDAN 
)CATION: MANDAN, ND, MANDAN, ND 58554 

~SCRIPUON 

toss RENTAL INCOME 
T1'.I~ED DEPOSITS 

\TE FEES 

JTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 2 

OTHER RENTAL EXPENSES 

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
lOPERTY: 44 PLEX., MANDAN 
)CATION: MAND~, ND, MAND~, ND 58554. 

,SCRIPTION 

INAGEMENT FEES 
JPFLIES 
~T FEES 
LID( SERVICE CHARGE 
:SCELLANBOUS 

lTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 15 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
lOPERTY ! 44 PLEX, MANDAN 
1CATION: MANDAN, ND, MANDAN, ND 58554 

!SCRIPTION 

tOSS RENTAL INCOME 
1TE FEES 
~TAlNED DEPOSITS 
!NANT REIMBURSEMENTS 

>TAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE , LINE 2 

STATEMENT 15 

AMOUNT 

297 ,913. 
1,609. 
1,118. 

302,640. 

STATEMENT 16 

AMOUNT 

18,957. 
1,032, 

95. 
15. 

530. 

20,629. 

STATEMENT 17 

AMOUNT 

392,008. 
2,920. 
5,812, 

50. 

400,790. 

28 STATEMENT(S) 15, 16, 17 
2018.02060 JDS BOLDINGS, LLP 



Parcel_Numb, Sale_Amount Assessed_Val Sale_Date Ratio Recording Seller Buyer House_ Nv Address 
65-1137000 325000.0 250400.0 4/24/2017 n.1 477054 KERZMAN DARYL & VIRGINIA PETERSON PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 1301 3ST NW 

65-3199000 296500,0 243900.0 6(1/2017 82.3 477669 MISSOURI VALLEY RENTALS LLC FIFTH & MADISON PROPERTIES LLC 2 10 3ST NE 

65-3530000 197500.0 142600.0 611 /2017 72.2 477647 MISSOURI VALLE.Y RENTALS LLC FIFTH & MADISON PROPERTIES LLC 804 SAVE NW 

65-3640000 330000.0 2 15700,0 6/1/201 7 65.4 477671 MISSOURI VALLEY RENT LLC FIFTH & MADlSON PROPERTIES LLC 600 9STNW 

65-2952000 225000.0 215400.0 10/20/2017 95.7 480377 KRAFT RAYMOND A (TRUST) FAIMAN, BRAOLEY &. NICHOLE 505 6AVENW 

65-2162000 450000.0 360900.0 1216/2017 80.2 48064'3 RIVINIOUS MERRIL & BEV FEIL, LANDON & JEROMCHECI<, JAMES 1509 1 AVE NW 

65-2984000 220000.0 237000.0 1/27/2018 107.7 482081 RALSTON JOYCE FIFTH ANO MADISON PROPERTtES LLC 1205 3STNW 

65-1475000 180000.0 230900,.0 4/3012018 128.3 483206 TEXOTA PROPERTIES LLC CLOOSKI PROPERTIES LLP 304 10 AVE NE 

65-6101375 12500000.0 11386200.0 6/1/2018 91 .1 483775 PLUS FOUR HOLDINGS LLC EWR MANDAN LAKEWOOD LLC 2303 SHOAL LOOP SE 

82.3 



New Bu ine ·s No. 2ii 

CITY OF 

Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

MANDAN 
W Hl!:FIE T H& W E ST BEGINS 

MEETI G DATE: 
PREPARATION DATE: 

UBMITTING DEPARTME T: 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: 
PRESENTER: 
SUB.JECT: 

March 17 2020 
March 9, 2020 
As e ing 
Kimberly Markley 
Kimberly Markley, ity A se r 

batement Appli ati n fr m JDS Holdings, LLP 

o con ·ider r duction to the _Q 1 value of the property at 

BA his pare 1 is al o kn wn as parcel # 5-611970 
wit ck I Mi , ouri Vall y Replat. Th property includes 
a 44 unit apartment building and garage . 

Rea on for abat m nt The applicant ha· reque ted a reduction in value ba d n the 
in m infi tmation provid d. 

The City f Mandan a se ·sing office con ider three approache to value property. Th 
three approache to value are ales, co t, and income. Th al approach uses sales of 
similar propert ie to determine value. Th co L approach is land value and th 
depreciated c st f improvements. The incom approach e timate pre eat value of 
futur benefits . 

The a e ing offic ha historically u ed th ate appr ach t value property. The 
ale da a i readily availabl . The unty record r n s the ale informati n 

monthly. 

J was contacted by a few apartment owner in late 2018 and early 2019 oncerning 
their property valuations. They felt they were overvalued compared to the income they 
wer generating. In response to these concerns I sent letters to the owner of apartm or 
buildings in D cember 2018 and received a limited re p nse. The following year 
(October 2019) w ent another reque t for the incom and e pen'e data in hopes of 
receiving a better re pon, e. After the reque. t in 2019 we had gathered enough data to 
onsider Lh income approach for valuati n purpose for the 2020 a es ment year. 



Board of ity Commis i ners 
genda Documentation 

Meeting Date: March 17, ~020 
Subject: Abatement Applicat ion from JDS Holding LLP 
Page 2 of2 

We us d the services from Vanguard Appraisals, Inc. to analyze the income & expen e 
information and update our vaJuation model. Vanguard Apprai a l Inc. ha the 
experience and experti e to a i t in determining the 2020 valuati n using the income 
and expen e data olle ted, 

The abatement that ha been request .is fi r 2019 valuation . We did not have adequat 
information to u e incom approach in our calculation for 2019 valuati ns . Therefore 
allowing uch an abatement wouJd create inequity for lhe other propertie in this alass . 

FISCAL rMPACT: If the abat ment reque t wa appr ved all ta ing entities = 
$l8 24 .76, City hare = $4 412.54 

STAFF I PACT: /A 

LEGAL REVIEW: R viewed by ity ltorney Bro n 

RECOMME DA ro : Id not recommend abating the 2 19 value based solely on the 
income provided because it will er ate an inequality t similar properties. I rec mmcnd a 
moti n to deny ti1e abatement request£ r the prope11y I catcd at 1611 3 J.!i1 Street 

SUGGESTED OTJO : A motion to deny the abatement reque t or the property 
l catcd at 1611 31 1 Street NW, 



/t.t I/ 
Application For Abatement Or Refund Of Taxes 

North Oako1a Century Code§ 57-23-04 

Ale with the Couf'!ly Auditor on or belore Novernbar 1 o! the year following the year in wh ct, the lax becomes dellnq1,1enl 

tale or orlh Daknla Nm.sn1r111 Dislrlct City of Mundan 

·ou111y or Morton Property 1.0. o. 65-6119700 ----------------
nno t JDS Holdings, LLP 

,\,lrlr= 3608 Gravson Drive Burlington. ND -g722 

Lot: 5 Block: 1 Missouri Valley Addition Replot 

ToM IJ•u• and ful l value oftht p1·operty d~$Cl' lbod 
nl!o ~• for ll1e ycnr '2019 i,: 

io lili true n•ul ful! • • ln e of1he property tlr,rrlb•d 
bo~• for th e ~•nr 2019 ~l1u11IIJ be: 

I ml _2_7_6_,6_0 .... 0 __ _ 

lmriu enn,01, 5,512.300 

l'mol s 5.788.900 
(I) 

l,;111d 

Imp~ 1v,:m~nl1 

ro1u1 

275.600 

4.123,400 

4.400.000 
(l! 

n,e t1irfuc11ccors 1.388.900,00 1ruc ~IHI run,,. luc bm~rcr, ( I ) ~nd (2) bov due 10 the r.11nwln1t rri, nn(s)~ 

u I. 
,__ 

0 ., 
~ 

(i_ 

:.J 7 

J ~-
"· 

~ Ill. 

Atricultor1I \ll'l'lilCfl) 1ni,, ilnd lull volui. ~,,~ed. hs 11::rkul11,ml ,·1\h1e dchll<'d fll N, D.C.C: ~ 57-02-27.2 
llc$iJemin1 !Ir <'!lnu11 ·r,inl pto~nv·~ tri c 11uJ r,111 r,,tt,o c~ec,~ls rhc ,mirkct v~luc 
1.rr~r in prnpcl1) Je,;mpuon. ~n,cr,n~ 1hs ,k:s.:ripli""· o,- c ·1cn.Hnf th, h .~ 
N\lll<,\•~lllS lnlJlr\lWlnClll n~:11!:<S-:d 

l\)n,pl~ 11um 111 property l\ ~~empt 1101111,,~m11m, 1\tt11ch n 111,~ ol Ap~lkntiM for Pr!IJl<'llY l'n., E. cmpti011, 

U111>l1•1llt> 5\U~lll•nl 

PrOJICl1,I 1mpro,..-m,n1 w:,, dc,u,,~td 111 iJ~n1<1gcd by !irc. lh~,u. 1ornuJn. ur11thcr n:llur11l di. ,1..-, (, c~ N.f).t'.l'. ~ S?-23-04( I \(1PI 

lirnlf In 11111it,g ph mc111 of 111,c, , 1. ,w, errc,11-1,u,I) pai,1 
!'h1J•Cn~ C\11·1lilics l\l, ~h,mc,1cuil C'n:dil JCC11rd;ng ln N.D.<.:.C. ~ 57.0!-M .I. .'\Unch ,1 ti>(I)' ul' Hrnm:slc~,I C'J\.'<111 Ap11l ic:tti1>11 
>1hcr ro,plainl Adiustinl!. assessed value to retlt'Ct lrue market value 

lw 1011,,wm~ rn I.) ~Jn c 10 ll 111, rt.:c1 v111 ~ ol lhc rc-<1dco1 1 nr c llhll:fcinl 111 l)<:11)' CM.rill</ oMl'I: I r ,1tne11l11 11.il r,rllfl"rl_ . ;io ;.,,..-11, tn 
<Jlll!SI ion 115. 

1111!':h,,s.• Jll'icu o! 111opcrty ___ ---~- Dni..- \ll·purah,15~; 

I rms: (;.r;h ____ 1)1lwr (c~ph11n) 

- I"'' tlH: pro, 'n) i.«11 nlli.'1Cd ru,· ~I( \Ill the npcu ll n,k~I/ - ---· 
~·..:.J,1() 

.•. n,~ prupert) ''"' i11Jer,:nd~1•Cl}· qppr;,i\c\l: ___ 1 urpo«: of111111r111<nl 
)-t!t'.lno 

1\p11► 11"'11 \\US 111ndc ~y 11hum'/ 

I h~ J'fll1, 111' · ~,ti!U"I" nfm;11'kc1 ,alue •>l'\IU! 11ftll)\'11f 1n,•0Jvc(l III Ila~ ,111plicmum i~ S 

I h ~~1tn1111r,I attrlml111ral pro,h,~lhc ~Jlue 111"1h1, ~•'O~erl)' i. ,.,, l!'l>l~C ~-~n111t <> I Ill~ h>llmsir1t1 ,11nJ11t1111(<J· 

I' I I (I J\djusl assessed value for the property to reflect what the true markel va lue is. l'I' ,r:1111 .1., :s ~11 ____ _______ ______ __ _ _ ______ _ 

See Attached. 

HJ lihnu 1 1is 11prli,,.111nn. I co11ll<rtl 10 1n io~c1io11 ,,1· th~ 11how-Jc,crll cO 1111.1 ll~ ~~ ~,1 ,1u1hflt'1t d ,l<f~'"'IJCIH 1ll1cr11l 1i, 1l1r 1'"'11"t-, ,,r 111111.111" an 
ar1m1ist1l or'"" 1•mrem, I ,rn,lcislunJ 11 • orndol wlll J!I•' 1,1~ J\'lh, 11;1~1,: 11111i(i.1,1(,m ~I tltl' ""'l"'"(i,m, -~<C N.1) ( ,C' ~ I7-2,-0.~ I 

I du·larc 11111lcr lh~ J' 'lml(i~~ <)f NJJ t I ' * l:!. 1-11-02 11 h1d1 pro 1tl · fol ., In"',\ rn1sclr11,~:111~r !01 11mki11~ 11 (i,1-c , 1,11cu1cro u1 ,1 ;:.m cm111,•111al 
IUU0(11 llt:i\ flu n,1plicutmu 1:,,. ,i, Un: 1.M.!'~t ,,r 11)~ .100\\1~\lgl! ,llhf 1'1ltrt!r. ,I U'Uf.! UU(l 1, 'C'I nr,~tli;Htaut 

2-25-20:i, 
IJ:111• 

4716 
lfl.t...,Md 11-~• I~ 



Rccommeodafion of the Governing Body nf the City or Tnwnshlf1 

R1:eomm~m.tnliu11 of the governing bUllrd of _ _ ______________ _ 

n rcsolulil'll re ·,,mmc,,d ing 10 the Oonrtl of ·o~n1y ornmh. loncrs lh~ lh~ nppl iC>Jllon be _ __________________ _ 

Doted this _ ____ da;· o _______ _ 

Cily Audicor nrTownihlp Clerk 

Action by the B011rd ofCounly Com missioners 

,\pplirelio11 wns -----=----- ht 11~1io,1111' _____________ Councy 8wml q!'Cornmbsloncl"I. 
Apr ru•rollttj•'< t,-d 

l}n ed 1111<111 :m ex mln~tion of 1hc fae1, ond 1he pro,,s n~ 1•f Nonh 11ko1a CcntUI)' Code* j7-2J-<H. we t1pprovc this np111icat1on lllc loMhlc 

vuluurioll is n.<t\uccrJ from ___________ to _________ -nnd the lrL~c, ~,c rcd~ed o c1mtinglJ', ·n,~ 10~~.-. ii' pni~ . 

will h<: refonde1I 10 tl1c extent llf S _ __________ .• Th~ Unnrd, tcCplS S __________ io l\111 ~Olcm,'111 of 1.l.\C~ forihr 
W<)IJIU' __________ _ 

We rejccl this nppl"c;,1io1\ lo wholt nr m part for the l'ollnwing rcnson(! ). Wrillcn .:.>:pl•nnuon nl' Ill\: rntiMnl~ for lhe decision mu,! be 

u111,cl1etl 

Dorcd ---- --- ------- ~ 

Choirpc,~on 

Certification of County Auditor 
l c ·ni ry 1ha1 tltc Buurd urc nuniy Commi~<iorwrs 1onk the ocli n !0101"'1 nb~v~ ol\d the r~'ll<J rd5 ol my offici, tn<! lhc o1fitc ol'thc t'ohnl)' 1 rtnsurcr 

sh1h, the foll win11 fol1S u to 4hc 1'!IS ·ssmcnl nntl rhc l'"~·menl uf l~scs on inc property clt-scrihe<l 111 ~•i• upplic,1tlo1L 

Dotel'md r~ymrm MoJ~ 
Ychr 'fo!mblc Valuo. °f."l.\ (irpniJ) U,1dc1 W, irte,\ r 111«~~l'/ 

\U!ll'M 

Ycor R~ductiM ,n Tn~nhlc Valu,ilion 

C..l'u1>1yA11dilor 

... 
C: .. 
e :0 .. ~ ... 
<!I !'II 
.c 
< .... .. 0 
0 -0 

"" C, 
C J:. .2 .. 
; 0:: ... .. 
~ 0 
0. 

<r. 



JDS Holdings Mandan Properties Valuations 

The request to adjust the assessed values Is supported by the followlng values based on net revenues 

from the properties. Net revenues are from the attached schedules from the tax returns adding back In 

depreciation and fntere5t and for 2019 on the 44 unlt building adding back in $45,000 of RE taxes that 

were pa!d early. Also supporting these values Is the fact that the buildings have been fisted for sale 

since 4--19 at $110,000 per unit and have not had any legitimate offers during that time. 

1611 31" St 44 unit apartment buildfng: 

;2018 • $269,565 / 5,5'¾,.•$ 4,901,181, 

2019 - $196,904 / 5.5% = $ 3,580.072 

1619 31" St 36 unit apartment building 

201s - $144,478 / s.s% = $ 2,629,672 

2019 • $ 170,126 / 5.5% = $ 3,093,200 

AVerage of$ 4,242,627 

Average of$ 2,8611436 



8825 Rental Real Estate Income and Expenses of a 
Partnershio or an S Corooration 

► Allac~10Form I08hrfo1m 11~0S. 
► Goto www.i11.gov!fo1m882S !Or tM 1110,1 inlo1m1t1on. 

J DS HOLDINGS LLP 
S~ow 11io type and add"55 or ewr propa11V. For each renlal teal eslatc properfy ijst~d. 1~port1he numller~r days tented at ra~ 
,~nl,11 value nd d,ws ~ oe~onal Utt. Set iQ'SUutlOfU. see p1Qe 2 10 list .tl1dll,olul orooutles. 
PnyslCal address 01 mh properw - stmt, citv, 
Sl.l lt,ZIP eocfe 

TH AVE E 
ICKINSON . ... No"'sa6o'i'"'""" 

Rent1I Aul Utt!,: Income 
1 Gross , mis ........... .... , .... .. 2. 

8ent1I Rul Et1111 fxp1nsu 
3 A!lvet~$lll0 8 
4 Aulo Jnd tra~el 4 
5 Cle,m1no and malnlenanQe 5 
8 Commissions 9 
7 losuranct' 7 
8 lell\ll and other prelcsslcmal felf.$ 
9 lntfrcst 9 

to Reoan 10 

11 Taxes 11 
12.U ifllin 12 
13 waocs -arid sal:trto$ _ 13 

14 Oeprecialloo (sae Ios11uctions) f4 

15 Ott,ci fllsQ ► STMT 11 
SEE STATEMENT 1~ IS 
SEE STATEMENT 13 
SEE STATEMENT 16 

TVP• • Ent!!f code 1-8; 
see oaoe 2. for IJsl 

21, 79. 
18 lo~I eqieMet ror eacn prope<ty. 

Adll"11es3Ullouoh 15 __ ............ ~16J. __ ~-■~L-J1■■1!!~--:!4~6~2.!., !_4 '!_7~6~. L _ 2_S~S.Q_O.!., 5~0!:._2, 
17 1ne0me or (Loss) rrom tach gropcf1Y. 

Sublm!Wne 16 frortdine 2 ... , lJ.17LJ __ ~:1\!l!!l!!!!!!!!!L __ ~ •• ■d--=-_!lj4~3~.~3~3:!!8..:.·L_,....:13L0!!..:... 
18• fata l g,oss rents. Add gross renlS !Tom Hne 2. colllmns A uuou{IJI If 
~ To~I e penses. Add total eipenseli f1um 1111• 16, to!umns A lhrouoh H 

19 Net oain (loss) r,om focm 4797, Parl 11, ffne 17, from lhc dlsp05llion er progcrty from cent.I ml 
,stalo 3tlfvlllt$ .. • • ... .. _..... .. .. 

20.Ne( come (loss) from rental ml e$bte aellvilles lro m partnerships, esraIes, ano uusts lo WIIIQh 
!hi, parlne,shlp or S co1po1allon a pannar or ~ener11:1ary (from Scli&duleK-1) .. . 

b identify below thepa,u,e,ahips, eslatcs, ortrnu, from which nr.I lncomc (loss) rs snown on ~ne 20a, 
/\llilch a s~htd\Jl~ II more .1p e il nffikd: 

(1) Name 12) Emoloyar ldenlllle~IIO\I number 

21 Net 11ntir1eal c~tJIO Income (loss). COmuflla r101111 1Ba th1ouoh 20a. Enl4lr lht resun 
here arrd on: 
• Fonn 1065or ll20S:Sciletlole1Un92 

Fo1 Paporwarlc ReducUon Act oHtl!, iee l~llr ucliou. 
'UOl.4 ! 
04,0,.,e LHA 

~02050 ~s HOLDINGS, LuP 

I Jg 

20,1 

21 -315 ,.996 . 

Form 8825 (fltv. 11-2018) 



JDS HOLDINGS, LLP 

OTHER RENTAL EXPENSES 

.MULTl-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY: 36 PLEX, MANDAN 
LOCATION: 36 PLEX, MANDAN, ND 58554 

DESCRIPTION 

MANAGEMENT 
SUPPLIES 
MISCELLANEOUS 

TOTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 15 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 

MULTI-FAMJLY RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY: 24 PLEX, BISMARCK 
LOCATION: 2901 & 3001 E ROSSER AVE, BISMARCK, ND 58501 

DESCRIPTION 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 
RETAINED DEPOSITS 
LATE FEES 

TOTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 2 

GROSS RENTAL JNCOME 

MULTI-FAMTLY RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY: 36 PLEX , MANDAN 
LOCATION: 36 PLEX. MANDAN, ND 58554 

DESCRH'TION 

GROSS RENTAL TNCOME 
RETAINED DEPOSITS 
LATE FEES 
'i/ENDING MACHINE INCOME 

TOTAL TO REN'I'AL SCHEDULE, LINE 2 

STATEMENT 13 

AMOUNT 

15,170. 
72. 

381. 

16,223. 

STATEMENT l4 

AMOUNT 

16S,098 , 
1,825. 

170. 

167,093. 

STA TEMEN'l: 15 

AMOUNT 

31'1 , 133. 
3,541. 
1,112. 

352. 

319,138. 

27 STATEMENT(S) 13 , 14, 15 
2019.02050 JDS HOLDINGS, LLP ,1 



JDS HOLDINGS, LLP 

OTHER RENTAL EXPENSES 

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY, 44 PLEX, MANDAN 
LOCATION; 44 PLEK , MANDAN, ND 58554 

DESCRIPTION 

MANAGEMENT FEES 
SUPPLIES 
MISCELLANEOUS 

TOTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 15 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 

MOLTI ◄ FAMILY RESIDENCg 
PROPERTY; 44 PLEX, MANDAN 
LOCATION: 44 PLEX, MANDAN, ND 58554 

DESCRIPTION 

G.R.OSS RENTAL INCOME 
LATE FEES 
RETAINED DEPOSITS 
TENANT REIMBURSEMENTS 
VENDING MACHINE INCOME 

TOTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LibfB 2 

OTHER RENTAL EXPENSES 

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
PROPERTY: MINOT TIMBER RIDGE 
LOCATION: TIMBER RIDGE, MlNOT , ND 58701 

DESCRIPTION 

MANAGEMENT FEES 
SUPPLIES 
MISCELLANEOUS 
AMORTIZA'TION 

TOTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 15 

STATEMENT 16 

AMOUNT 

21,117. 
371, 
491. 

21 ,979. 

STATEMENT 17 

AMOUNT 

420,126. 
2 , 040. 
5,821. 

300. 
477. 

428,764. 

STATEMENT 18 

AMOUNT 

5,835. 
134, 
132. 
698. 

6,799 . 

28 STATEMENT($} 16, 17 , 18 
2019.02050 JDS HOLDINGS, LLP 



For"' 8825 Rental Real Estate Income and Expenses of a 
~ ... -,.,., Partnershifi or an S Corporation OtJ;IH~a, 194:!i•Olt-\ 

O-oW'll'ft~ or tM Ti ► Aaa, 10 Form 1C65 or Form 1120s. 
&.i~R~~ ► 80 to www.i11.9a•lformS826 tar lh latut lnlarmation. ....... ~----JDS HOLDINGS LLP -1 SIJOltl I e typeaod artd,,,ss or~ property. Fo, ~ch rental raal esiate prop~ty listed. ,epor1 tm ,wn\lllir or ~ reoll!d at 1w, 

rtntal Vlllt .llld d,)11'!. '1w11l\a.1sona1 uso. -lnsU""""'~ c.. A-! 2 to~ .1d(!,!)(wu[ ••""erlle.s. 
Plly!ical addr~ss Q ilJrtll property· s1/!ei, eily, ,ype · Em"' eade 1-11: Fal, t"•••J f'\-,W,1 u ... 
Yale ZJP®<tt se• P~• 2 lor !SI C.Y, ""•· 

A 29..9.l .... &.. J.QQl .. $ ... ROSS.EILA~ .. -- . '" . .. ~- .. -!BISMARCK ND 58501 2 
e;i..~.z ~ ,1\,~."E--~·-···---- ....... _,,_, __ -.-.•- - - , .. , .... .._ _._ ... 

DICKINSON. ND 58601 2 
C~.M... .. NP ................. .. ,__, ..... ... .. H pu , ... _.,,.. •• ........ .. ............. , ... , .... ,,.,.n.,,.....,._ .... •· -MANnAN ND 58554 2 
C ~~_,. ... ~ .. ... .. .............. .... .... •·•·•·• ... .. .... I· tlf •U ,. -,,,,,.,,.,,.,,,_,.,, .. ............. ,_ ... .. ... 

MAllmAN ND 58554 2 
Properties -

Rental ltul Eallle lncomr A B C D 
2 (',toss rt!OIS ••· .. 2 . 302 640. 400 790. 

Rtnlal Aral Ellll! h p~nns 
! Mverfr.il,ig - -- .... ·-···- a 
4 Auto and trawl • .. 
5 C/aanfng and m.1Menanee s 
6 commmions - ... - 6 

7 l11Surance 7 . ~ 13 600. 14 200. 
a le el and other prole1sltloal t,es 8 1 069. 1 . 438. 
g 1m~,.,1 9 - ~ 160 6'-8. 129 228. 

10 Rfplli"s 
' -· ... . 10 - 35 947. 4.3 712. 

ti Ta):0$ _ .. It 56 746. 73 916. 
121.lllitl~s , . ... 12. . 30 37 4. 41.666. 
13 W3gcs ~nd salaries -·. 13 -U Clepmialfon (se~ Ins~ ::ilonsJ • , , t4 . 182 228. 140.337. 
16 Ot~er(l;,.I) ► STMT 10 

SEE STATEMENT 12 15 
._._ 

SEE STATEMENT H 20 426, 
SEE STATEMENT 16 20.629. 

IS Total exi,nnses f(l(t.!Ch property. 
Add ~nes 3 t rough 16 " ... 18 . 501 018 . 465.126. 

17 Income or (loss) from 11ach properfy. -
S blracl l:11e 161111m line 2. 17 . 198 378 . - 64 336. 

18' Total OIO!le tents. Add UIOS$1Ml• lram 11M 2, colunin$ AtllfOUUh Ii ·• 
th 1 027 415. 

b Tola! e~pense~. Md IOtll &Xll•nses from !Jle 16, cOl~mns A IIVoog~ H -.. . ... .,_ 19b I 1 357 4.78 ~ 
19 NflQein (losSl tromfo1m 4797, Pall II,~~ !7, 11om1/l~ulspos111on ol p,op,11rty from rijnlll real 

CS!llleactMtlos ... ... ·• - ..... ~ .. 19 

20. •~1 fn'°me (loss) lrom ron\\11 real ewite .,tMUt~ lrom rr.iuncrshlPS, estole$. and trus1, In w!llth 
lhls p.r?Nrship or S ~pll/a ,on i&a oartoer or benerocla(y {!ro'll Scnijdufe K· l) - 201 -

b lrienllly bflDW !he par1ntrshfp!l; eS-lal!lS, or IIU~IS lrom YlhlCh GOI !noomn (111$S) 1$ shown an lln• 1!0,:t. 

Allaeh l senudukl 1r mors ioal)e 1, needed: 

(II Name 121 Emptcye, 1denhflcaUon num&u 

21 t el rent.ii rfal es1a1e Income (toss~ Combine M!les 16a ffiroUgh 2lla. Enl!• lhe rasoU 
liomlll'ld()fl'. 21 - 330 06"3. 
• Fomr 1065 or 11205: Set.edule I( llne 2 

For P1parwolll'. Red~cllon Acl Notlec , ue ln ■tructioM. Form 1825 (Rev. 11·2018) 

6 
~ a0 60 JDS HOLDINGS, uLP 



JDS HOLDINGS, LLP 

OTHER RENTAL EXPENSES 

MULTI -FAMILY RESIDENCE 
lOPERTY: 162 9TH AVE E, DICKINSON 
>CATION: 162 9TH AVE E, DICKINSON, ND 58601 

!SCRIPTION 

t.NAGEMENT 
JPPLIES 
10RTIZATION 

)TAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE , LINE 15-

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 

MULTI - FAMILY RESIDENCE 
lOPERTY: 162 9TH AVE E, DICKINSON 
)CATION: 162 9TH AVE E, DICKINSON, ND 58601 

~SCRIPT ION 

toss RENTAL INCOME 
IUNDRY INCOME 

lTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 2 

OTHER RENTAL EXPENSES 

MUL,TI-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
lOPERTY: 36 PLEX, MANDAN 
lCATION: MANDAN, ND, MANDAN, ND 58 55 4. 

!SCRIPTION 

t.NAGEMENT 
IPPLIES 
~'l' FEES 
:SCELLANEOUS 

TAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 15 

STATEMENT 12 

AMOUNT 

3,162. 
342. 
227. 

3,731. 

STATEMENT 13 

AMOUNT 

50,844. 
1,222. 

52,066. 

STATEMENT 14 

AMOUNT 

15,12..9. 
302. 
24.5. 

4,750. 

20,426. 

27 STATEMENT(S> 12. 13, 14 
2018.02060 JDS HOLDINGS , LLP 



JDS HOLPINGS, LLP 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDSNCE 
lOPERTY: 36 PLBX, MANDAN 
lCATION: MANDAN, ND, MANDAN, ND 58554 

ISCRIPTION 

lOSS RENTAL !NCOME 
(TAINED DEPOSITS 
,TB FEES 

lTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 2 

OTHER RENTAL EXPENSES 

troLTI-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
tOPERTY: 44 PLEX, MANDAN 
)CATION: MANDAN, ND, MANDAN, ND 58554 

ISCRIPTION 

\NAGEMENT FEES 
JPPLIES 
lT FEES 
INK SERVICE CHARGE 
:SCELLANEOUS 

lTAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE , LINE 15 

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 

MULWI - FAMILY RESIDENCE 
lOPERTY: 44 PLEX, MANDAN 
>CATION: M,ANDAN, ND, MANDAN, ND 58554 

!SCRIPTION 

tOSS RE.NTAL INCOME 
\TB FEES 
~TAINED DEPOSITS 
!NANT REIMBURSEMENTS 

)TAL TO RENTAL SCHEDULE, LINE 2 

STATEMENT 15 

AMOUNT 

297,913, 
3,609, 
1,118. 

302,6"40. 

STATEMENT 16 

AMOUNT 

18,957 . 
1,032. 

95. 
15. 

530. 

20,629, 

STATEMENT l? 

AMOUNT 

392,008 , 
2,920. 
5,812-

50. 

400,790, 

28 STATEMENT(S) 15, 16, 17 
2018.02060 JDS HOLDINGS, LLP 



ew Bu iue o.3 

iii 
CITY OF 

Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

MANDAN 
WHERETHI!!: WEST SEGIN5 

MEETING DA TE: 
PREPARATIO DATE: 

UBMJTTI G DEPARTME T: 
DEPARTME T DIRECTOR: 
PRESE TER: 

UBJECT: 

March I 7 2020 
March 9 2020 
A e sing 
Kimberly Marki y 
Kimberly Markley, City As essor 
Abatement Application from HM4 LL 

B R I I ES: This parcel i also kn wn a parcel #65-6119 00 
with a legal de 'cription of Lot 7 Block 1 Missouri alley Replat. The property 
included a 42 unit apartment building and garages. 

Reason for abatement: Thi property suffered fire damage to the apa11ment building and 
heat damage to tbe garages on JuJy 14 2019. IO f the 4 garages were being rented on 
I 0/ 16/2 19. The applicant ha also reque ·ted a reduction in value based nth income 
information provided, 

orth Dakota entury ode 57-23-04 g ... When any bui)djng, mobile home, tru ture or 
other impr emcnt ha been destrnyed or damaged by fire flood, tornado or oth r 
natural disaster the abatement or refund mu t b granted only for that part of the year 
remain1ng after the pr perty wa damaged or destroyed. 

he City of Mandan as essing office consider three approache to value property. The 
three approaches to value are . ale 1 cost, and income. he ale approach use ale of 
similar properties t dete1111ine value. The cost approa h is land value and the 
depreciated co ·t of improvement . The income approach estimates present value of 
future benefit . 

The asse ing ffi e ha hi toricaJly u ed th ale, approach lo value property. The 
ales data i readily available . The county re order sends the sales information 

monthly. 

I wa contacted by a few apartment owner in late 2018 and early '2019 concerning 
their property valua1ions. They felt lhey were overvalued compared t the income they 



Board of ity omm1ss1oners 
Agenda D umentation 
Meeting Oat : March 17, 2020 
Subject: Abatement Application from l M4 LL 
Pag 2 of2 

were generating. lo response LO th se concerns I nt letters to the owner of apartment 
buildings in D emb r 2018 and re eiv d a limit t.1 re pon e. The foUowing year 
(October 2019) we sent anoth r request for the inc rne and expense data in hopes of 
receiving a better re pons . After th reque t in 2019 we had gathered en ugh data t 
con ider the income approach for valuation purp for the 2020 a es m nt year. 

W u d th ervice~ from Vanguard Apprai 'al , In . t analyze the jnc m & expense 
inti rmation and update our valuati n model. Vanguard Apprai al Inc. has th 
experience and experti e t assist in determining the 2020 valuati n using the inc me 
and exp n data coll cted. 

Th abatement that ha be n reque ti, for 2019 valuation . W did n t hav adequate 
inti rmation to u incom approach in ur alculation fi r 20 I 9 valuations. Therefore 
aU wing such an abatement would create inequity i r the tber propertie in Lhis cla ·s. 

Thi I t d have a slope but I don t b Ii v it i unbuildablc. I did find n rr r in the 
I ulation f th laod therefi r [ agree to a Jower value for the Janel 

A TACHME TS: Application for A at ment, In m infi rmati n, Sale Ii t 

FJ CAL 1MPA T: All taxing ntiti = $36,004.80, ity shar = $ ,705. 

I 

LEGAL REVIEW: Revi wed by ity Att rn y Br wn 

RECOMM NDATJON: Tr commend abating th 2019 value f◄ r the p rti n f the year 
that th buildings wer damaged and c 1Tect tb land alue. rd n t recommend an 
adju tment to valu ba cd n the inc me provided becaus it will create an inequality to 
imilar properties. 1 re mm end a motion t appr v an abat m nt and adjust the 2019 

value t $2 968,050 fi r th pr p rty locat d at I 27 3 lin Street W. 

-----=--=....c~=--=-==-.......... =-=-"'-=-'""': Am tion to approve an abatement and adju t the 2019 value to 
$2 968,050 for the property located at 1 27 1 '1 trcct W. 



Application For Abatement Or Refund Of Taxes 
North Dakota Century Code §57-23-04 

fije wilh lhe County Auditor on or betore November 1 ol the year following the year in which the tax becomes delinquonl. 

,~r• uf , urth DAkorD uesw1rn1 Ois1ric1 Ci of Mandan 

Co1JQty or Morton 

om• HMC, LLC 

l'rooerty 1.0. , o. 65-61 l9800 ------------------· 
Ttlc11ho11e Nn . 

All,hr s ~608 Gravson Drive Burlin~ton. ND 58722 

Lrg,11 de~crir,llon of the property in olvod In thl 01111licn tio1" 

Lot 7 Block 1 Missouri Valley Replat 

Towl tru• nnd run v.luc of the ,,..~porty dfjerlbcd 
"bu,·e fo r the yc,ir 2019 iJ: 

Tijln l o·ue ond f11II •nlue of tho propertv llcserlbcd 
,ho e fur the ye~, 2019 shouht he: 

I.Mil S 565.200 Lmnl ]_25_._00_0 ___ _ 

lmr"''""'~"" s 5.143. I 00 
lmnl 5.708.300 

hnrmwcmeHI• 1.775,000 

ro,111 2. I 00.000 
11, 

Tl,e diffcreoc• uf ' 3.608.300. 00 1r110 ~nd full •nlue ht lw•cn (I ) nn1t (lJ llbo•·• 15 duo lo !he following• • o,1(sl: 

I. 1\~ncu turn! pn,p<>flJ 1n,I' un<J 1\111 vul11.- ex.:~~J, hs ~!1-ri 11twr,1l v;1h1e <l~Rncd m N,O,C.C § 57-02-'.!7.2 
2 lte~lck1111nl ur ,um1nel\Cial fl pcrl} ~11w.u1\l lull mf11~c.~oo~,L• th 11rn1~d 1nl11c 

0 l Ht, " fn p11•,.,ri) Jow11ptiu11. eo1cru1g ih< de.. c1,1ptinn. 111• c~1c11dh1~ Olt 111~ 

0 4 Nou~ i~ung lm,1n~,·~intnl 1:t~-:-L1I 
5. L·1•mplninnnt o1r prcipmy Is ~~cm111 Ihm, 1~111•1i110 Auucll ,, c<lpy of A(>pll~~lion r~r 1•ropc:r1y rn.~ I~ -~111 111111,1 

t, Uuplicole "t,sm~11I 

121 

7. J>rop<;ny ,111pn.1<·11icm, -·~·'•- •111)c<I l'f dilU)U~~d hy nr.:, nuutl. lullln<III. Ill nlll~I ll;IIUnll ,1,~nst~, I ·~ N.1).t.(. § 5?-~3-0•1() Kim 

0 lin11,· ln 11uu111_1 1i•J11 w.11111 ,~,c.,. l~\,'ll cnn,1c"11;ly pnhl 
0 IJ l'r11p~••i 4u11llfi(• fo, I lnnw,icn,l l'n!Jit Ml't1rdl111110 N.D. C. § ,1.02.tJS.I. l\llllctl !l copy ul'I ltijn~s,ond C',edil l\p(llicu1io11. 
0 IU. llth~rlupl11,n) 

llw f11lh.111i1w fu I · 11:1, I IU ~w n1~1~1·11nlu~ 11flhcn:~ide111i,\I or, ,nw, .,, Pl"VPCfll \l<."lo.•fj I 111'11" •' 1'111 ~~r" ,11111 ,1 t (ICnJ !!" J1n.-.:tl) 1h 

<tll.::.lin,i r; 

('I n.illl'C ()I. ,c uf po~rn}'; I.kit or pun:hao,c• __ _ 

l•rn1>: Cd,h ____ L,1111rJC\ ____ _ rr ik ____ 0,11~, <-·~rluinl -------- ------

/\ llJlilll"d ,1,i, mrulc h) whoin1 

I h~ 11rrllca111'\ .:.,um~,c of ,nnrh, 1 nll"' of th~ pro.pony 111\'Ulvcd '" Chis 11pj1l1,:;,111u1 ,s 

fhc c~11nu,1~,l:ig,iculu11nl (If• J11c1t1· • v,1111,· 111 till. 1m•1wi•~ 1> nee. 1wl"'c~11~c 11f1hc lnlli;,viug ,,1n1lllt011I ): ________ _ 

I I Ill k" 11 1 Adjust value due to main structure being destroyed by tire in July 20 ! 9. Sec Anaehc<l ; 1Jl>tc11 -u:r; -11 •u ______ _ 

Land value is based on attached info. Structure vafoe is using SO% of value as fire loss was early July. -------
Requested value change is higher than what is support by historical net revenues. __ 

11, llllng ,11,~ n1 plic.111011. t cous~11, 1n " ,n,p~cli,•11 ill lhc h,11 •-de,-.:11h1:!I prC'f'-'M)' h.1 111111111h1111~ll :1,.-..i<-r11u111 ntlid1I I'~ thl· 1111,ru"" ,1111ml.i11t, 1111 
(!ppnO~••I .. r 1hc 1•r.i11cn~· I undo tnn,111..- 111l1c1 ,, I ill ghc !II,: ,.,,,,ouuhk nuh~cnlo,u, "' u,-- •H>IIC'Clnm ...... .ll.r l n-~1-1)$,I 

I <l~cli1tl' 11m1.:1 th · lll!0,1!1io:~ ol , .D.l 1 • ~ I~ 1-11 -02. which ll""'hl.rs fo1 , l t, , 111ls1lcn,~1111or 1,,r 0111ki,1i: n 111lsc ,1,11c11w111 11 , ,, t"' "mm,mnl 
illil\lCf. \lt,11 ,,,. .• ,1~1111.-~11on I~ n• 11,c hC<I ,,r Ill~ ·u,111 lcdi:.: 111 ,d hdid'. II ""~ ,u ,d ,.., , :,,~il,c,11,,,., 

24Tf4 
ffbils.etl 1-~7\ 



Recommendalion of the GoYeruing Body of the City or Township 

ltecommcnt!ntion ol' 1\1.: g.ovemin!l bo~rd o!' ________________ _ 

On _____________ . th~ g,>\'cming board of thFs muni~ipuHty. af1e.-e,~u111i11otfon of thi~ ~pplieation nnd the fnct~. passed 

,, re,;olu1ion reco1nm<ndin& to ti\~ Bo,ird of Coumy Commissioner,; 1h01 the oppllcutlon be ___________ _ _______ _ 

City Audhor urTown~hip Clerk 

Action by the Board of County Commissioners 

A1>plication w11s ___________ hy pctio" or _____________ County ll<>or~ orC0011ni~~•t>ncrs. 
Appro•td!Rcjcotod 

Ila<ed upon an c~aminaUnn ol the rncts nnd the pro1•isions orNo,th Uakora Ccmury Code§ .S7-23-Q.:I , we approve th i> .ipplicntion. The tu•nl.>lc 

vuluali"n it reduced from S _ __________ to s _________ and lht lnXc.-< nro redurcd accordingly. The Iii~•~. if pnid , 

will be rcrundcd 10 1hc extent of$ ___ _______ _ . Tho Board accept~$ _________ _ fn 1\111 $Ct! lcmcnt ol'\IL~,·~ (or the 

l;L'< 'COi' ___________ . 

We reject thls opplication iu whole or in pan fur the folJowi,1@. ll'D&Dn(s). Wrirten esplnnmion or the rm i,rnok for the 1leci,ion 1111111 be 

ijllnthed, 

l)atcd _________________ ___ _ 

C l)Wll)' Auditor Chnirpcn;on 

Ccrlificatjon uf Coun ty Andito r 
l certify thnt tho:, Oo[)(d ofCouu1y Commisi;lom:rs t011k 1h~ action Stated obnvc and d1c records llf my office nnd lh~ office of1h,~ Couoty l 'rCll•-urer 

sht11 ' lhc followlhg facts as 10 the a.1-ses!lmc.n l and the paymenl or taxes on lhc prop~rl)' described In lhis npplicati\ln. 

Date Pohl Pur mo111 Mnd~ 
Year Taxahlc Value. To. (ifD!lid) Under \Vri1tc11 Protcst1 

~ no 

I ti,rlhcr certily thnt 1hc 111xablc vn luolinn nnd u,c loNc~ ordered nb,tc~ or rellmdc~ by \he Bonr<l nlToumy Commi,-,;ioner arc as follows: 

lleducliou In 'fa~ftblc V~luatloo 

Cuunly Auditor 

i 
... i 
~ 

'I 

e f(l t 
~ >'- ! ('; ~ j .D 
< ... J 
)., 0 :J 
0 "d 

,w 

~ 
. 

c:: JI 
Cl .;! 'E ... ] i 0 QI d · ; C. i ·::i i:t: ;,,, iz § :;: ~ !s e ... 

)., i; i,. .I~ ~ :::I 0 ;; 
~ :, 'i 1:1 ~- ; ~-< Q. -0· C 

'E. '":, '( = t, < ;;; i" "' " ·- u c il ,-
< -< C:, u g ' u 
'o ~· ii: ~ e; 
~ = ~= ~ g; "£ " ~ 13 tS ~ C -t0 



HM4, LLC Property Valuation 

Request to adjust the assessed value is supported by the following values based on the past 

years net revenues from the property. 1:he 2019 numbers are not the best Indicator due to the 

flre loss and only half of a year inoome. 

lhe land value ls apparently based on total acres. About half of the lot is wasted square 
footage due to slope, not buildable. The lot value should be in line with the adjacent properties 

that are owned by JDS Holdings) UP. 

The historical revenues numbers are as follows. The supported value is based on a S·.5% CAP 
rate. 

2017 $227,849 / 5.5% = $4,088,164 

2018 $137,818 / 5.5% =- $2,505,782 

2019 $57,616 f 5.5% ., $1,047,564 

Two yearaverage $3,296,973 

Revenue is based on tax return schedute1 net income with lnterest and depredation added back 

ln. For 2019, $50,000 of prepaid RE taxes is addelI back along with $268,648 of fire mitigation 

and bulldlng demolition costs. 2019 numbers are not a good indicator which is why a two year 

average is used. 



Ferm 8825 
{11.<'1' S•P'""°" 201T) 
O.tQrtm1t111 1;1r h r,.nry 
........ ~ s. ..... 

"'"'" HM4 LLC 

Rental Real Estate Income and Expenses of a 
Partnership or an S Corporation 

► AWh to Form 1085. Fom11066-8, or Form 11205. 
►Go to .., _ _ 1,s,gov/Fom,ss,s ror th& latest Inrorm3Uon . 

1 SlloW the type and edd1es11 or each property, For each rental real e,lale propitrty li•ted, repe,t the number or day$ rented at lair 
rental velUe and daw with DOl$0nal u.e. Sec lnsllUdlons. See paao 2 to llsl arf<f4I0'!al 0Iooertle1,, 

A 

8 

C 

Physical address cf each propeffy-51reet, o1y, 1l~te, 
Z!Pwde 
~2 UNIT - MA1'Dll.N A.PARTt1ENT BUTL01NG 

l1ANDAN !\,?~~·~fEt_-lT f.3_UlL~JNG 
MANDAN ND 58554 

D ··• 

Rftntal Real Estala Income A 

2 Gross rents 2 358 
Rental Real Estate EJ<pan!l89 

3 Ad\re<tlslog .. 3 
4 AUIO end !favel 4 
6 Clean,no end mailltenanoe s 
6 Comm sions, 6 

7 '"surance 7 16 
8 Legal end other p1ofe!ISional , • .,. 8 1 
9 interest 9 150 

10 Repairs 10 51 
11 Taxes 11 

12 Ulil~les 12 44 
13 Wages and salaries 13 
14 Depre,;iation (see lnstruciions) 14 182 
15 Olhe,(llsl) ► .. 

SEE STAT?MENT 4 16 17 

16 Tobi eJtPense; tor each proJl(lrti,. 
466 Add lines 3 through 15 16 

17 Income or (loM-) from each 
-108 property. Subtract line 16 from fine 2 17 

383 

600 

562 
908 
043 
803 

714 

93 9 

917 

516 

133 

Tvpe-Enter COde 1~; 
see page 2 fer ~st 

2 
MULTI-FAM RF.S[DF.NC~ 

Pror>ertl~s 
B 

-

-

Fair Rental Days 

365 

C 

Peraor.al Use Oays 

D 

18a Total gross mnts Add gross mots from line 2, columns A d1,0ugi'I H ._1'-'8a=-i-----"3_,5~8=-....,• 3 .. 8'-3'o-
Tolal expenses. Add tolal e,rponses from Nne 16, columns A through H. ,_1_8_b-+----~4_6~6~~5~1_6~) b 

19 Net ga n (loss) li'cm Form 4797. Part ll, llne 17. ftoo, the disposttlon or propMy from rental real estate adlvllles ....,_1_9-+---------

20a Net Income (loss) from rental teal estate acUvilJes rtom partnerships, eslat~ and Wills In whlc:11 
this pa~Mrshlp or S wrporallon is a panner Q( beneficiary (f,om Schedule K-1 ) ,..z~o~a-+---------

b ldentify below th1> par!Mrshlps, e$lales. or ttu;ts ftom whiel'i 11et lncoo,e (loss) ~ s~own on line 
20a Attach a schedule if more spac,, Is needed. 

t1) Name (2) &,!O)<>' -- -

. ' . .. .. 
21 Net rental estate •ncorne (loss) Combine lines 18e lh1ou9h 208. Enter Iha result he e and on: 

• Form 1055 or 1120S: Sc11edu a I(. line 2: or 
• Fonn 1066-B: PM I. Une 4 

For Papoiwori< Reductlan Act Notice, sea lnslrllcllonD. 
OM 

21 -108 133 

'""' 8825 !RIY 9~11') 



Federal Statements 

Statement 4 - 42 Unit - MANDAN APARTMENT BUILDING - Form 8825, Line 15 - Other 

Description 
MANAGEMENT FEES 
LANDSCAPING 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
SMALL TOOLS~ EQUIPMENT 
SUPPLIES 

TOTAL 

$ 

Amount 
15,929 

466 
43 

622 
857 

s ___ 1_1 ,..,9_1_1 

4 



Fenn 8825 Rental Real Estate Income and Expenses of a 

l:' "ov- llllftl )-0~ <ii' 
Partnership or an S Corporation IIM8No.1~,-0IZ! 

Ol:t>f.ffl<IN.OllnDTttia,o-~ ► Attach to Form 1065 or Fom, 1120S. 
hwl'ilfR~uott..~ ► Go to www.trs.gov1Fonn8825 for the lsles! Information. ,..,,,, I 

IIM4 .LLC ' 
1 Show the type and address 01.,.ch property For H~n ,snlal real estate properly lisled, report !he number al day~ rented al fair 

111n1a1 valiJa and dnvs wlth M,sonal U!.C, See lnsUudions. See oaoe 2 la r.s1 actdlllonal otooonm 
Physical address of each pro~erty-slree1. c:'ly, stale, Type---€tllar code 1 ~: 

Fair Rental Days Parser.al Lise Days ZIP code see pane 2 for list 
42 IJNTT - MANDAr.. APART'ME!NT BUILDING 

A 
MANDAN APART!1F:NT BUILDING 
Ml\NDl\N ND 5855~ i 

MUl,TI-FAM RESIDENCE 365 

e 

C ' ' 
,., , 

' ' 

D ' ' . ' ' ' 

Prooerties 
Rental Real Estate Income A B C 

2 Gros.s rents 2 329, 330 
Rental Real Estate Expenses 

3 Adv&ltisil\9 ~ 

4 Auto and lra,el 4 

5 Cioaning a!KI maintenance 6 
6 Comml!islons 6 

7 !nsurarn:e 7 17 712 
8 Legal and other proressional fees 8 1 750 
9 Interest (see lnstrudlon$) .. 9 146 144 

10 Repalrs 10 50 680 
11 Ta,res 11 69 428 
12 um1tles 12 35 923 
13 W~ges and salaries 13 
14 Oepreclation (see iffstruc:llons) 1• 178 943 
15 Other (llsl) ► 

SEE STJl,TP'!E~T .. 4 16 16 019 

16 Tel31 8"Jll!nses for each propeoty, 
Add lines 3 11>10u9h 15 16 516 599 

17 Income or (loss) rrom eaeh property. 
Subtract line 16 from Hne 2 17 -187 269 1 

18a T olal grosg n.nts. Add gross !lints from nne 2. columns A lh,ough H 18a 

b To!al expenses. Add total expensu from line te, columns A throug~ H 18b 

19 Net gain (IOss) from Form 4797, Part. II. 17. frorr, the dlspcsilllln or property r,om rental ,eal 
eat.ate a.dlv1\les . ' ' • ' I ' 

19 
20a Net Income (loss) 11cm renlal real Bl!tali! adill~IIJS from partnerships, estates. and trusts 1n wh!Ch 

1nis partner.;hlp or S corporation I& a paftl1er or benefidar; (Iron, Schedule K-1) , , , • , 20a 
b lden~ry below the partnelllhlps, estate11, or trusls from Whl!:ll net Income (los11) is shown M llne 

20a, Alla ch a schadule if more spai:e " needed. 
(1) Name. m~'"'.iim{{_...,. 

... 
21 Nel rental rest estate locome (loss) , Combine line£ 18a mrough 20a. Enter the result here and on ' 

• Fonn 1065 or 1120$: Sehedole K. line 2 
For Paperworf<. Reduction Act Not!Cil, see lnslr1'ct lon,. 
OM 

21 

D 

329, 330 
516 599) 

-187 269 

Form 8825 [Ro, 11'1018\ 



Federal Statements 

Statement 4 - 42 Unit - MANDAN APARTMENT BUILDING - Form 8825. Line 15 - Other 

Description 
MANAGEMENT FEES 
SUPPLIES 
PET EXPENSES 

TOTAL 

$ 

Amount 
15,896 

28 
95 

$ 16,019 -----

4 



11111 PM 

Form 8825 Rental Real Estate Income and Expenses of a 
jR6'J N0\rtmblr2Cl1it,) Jo( 1 Partnership or an S Corporation 
llaMJ...,. Of "° T,. ....., ► Attach to Form 10115 or Form 1120S. 
k-ilffl\i!IRMi(IIJ,:,~ ► Go to ww.v,/rs,gov/Form8B25 ror 11111 lato,t lnlonmll/on. 
tloff!O - .. -

HM4. LLC 
1 Show the. type and addres,i of each prope,fy. For each fi!nlal real eslale prapelt; listed, repcrt 11,e number ol days ,coled al fair 

renlel value illld davs ~(h l)et:IO!llll l/SO. See lnalllJCIIDns. S<!o naao 2 tQ Dsl addldonal nrnnortle:s, 

F'h~slcal address ol each p,ope~1ree1, city, al11le, 
ZIP oode 

Type,--Enler code 1-8; 
M!e oaae 2 fo, fisl fair Ren1al Days 

42 UNIT - MANDAN Al?ARTMEN'r BUILOtNG 

A 
MANDAN APAATME:NT BU ILDING 
MANDAN 58554 2. ND 

MULTI-FAM RESIDENCE 365 

8 . . ' '. . .. 

C ' ' 

D ... . ... ... I " 

Promrties 
Renbl Real Estate Income A B C 

2 Gross 1010111 2 192 696 
Rental Real Estat<1 E~penses 

3 Atl111!11islng 3 

4 Aulo end travel 4 
6 Cleaning ~nd m~1n1e11anoa 5 
6 Commissions 6 
7 lnsu,.,nce 7 15 606 
8 Le.gal am! other professional fees a 865 
9 Interest (see inoWdions) 9 101 B57 

" 37 523 10 Repa~ 10 
' 12.7 254 ,, Tal(eS 11 .. . 

12 Ullli!les 
' 

12 11 118 
13 Wages and salarie~ 13 

14 Depredation (see 111sb\ldl011sJ 14 104 631 
1S Olhe, 01st) ► 

SEE ~.TA~E;~Etfl' 6 ... 15 284 170 

16 Total expense.a for each prgperty, 
Add )Ines 3 through 15 16 689 024 

17 Income or [loss) from each PfOperty. 
SUblraCll 111111 16 Imm line 2 17 -496 328 

18a Total gross renlS, Add ~mss rants from nne 2, cofLmns A 1/\rotJgh H . • 18a 

b Total expensa. Add wtal a~peno.e.s Imm line 16, tolumns A through H •.• ' .. 18b 

18 Nm ga,n 0055) from Fem, 4797, Pall 11, ·no 17, l!om the d~•~lon of properly from nmlal real 
e,ital• oclillllles ........ 19 

20a Net Income (loss) from rental real eslale ai;livilie.a from partne19hlps, estates, and truots In which 
ti is partn~p or S IXlfPOlllllon Is a pallner or benelk-; ory (fn,m Schedule K-1) 

" 20a 
b Identify below the partnerships, estates, or lnrsls from v.tilch net income ijoss) is shown on line 

20a. Ana<:1, " schedule If mor11 space 1, rn,aded. 

(1t Name (2) ~ l:leo~ '"''°" 

.. . 
• • • ' l 

21 Nel rental real ealale Income (foss). Combfne lines t8a lhroogh 20a. Enter the re.suit here and on: 
• Fom, 1065 o, 1120$: Sd>e<fule 1<. 11no 2 

For Paperwork ReducUon Act Notice, 8118 lns1ructlont. 
cw. 

21 

0"1B~1~1ll 

--.. . 
---

l'er.;Ma! IJse Days 

.. .. 

. ' 
0 

192 696 
689 024 

30 140 

-466 188 



1:06 PM 
Federal Statements 

Statement 6 • 42 Unit· MANDAN APARTMENT BUILDING· Fann 8825, Line 15 • Other 

Description 
CLEAN UP / MITIGATION EXPENSE 
MANAGEMENT FEES 
PET EXPENSES 
BU LDING DEMOLITION 

TOTAL 

$ 

Amount 
18,648 
15,460 

62 
250,000 

s ___ 2_e 4_,_1_1_0 

6 



Parcel_Numb1 Sale_Amount Assessed_Val Sale~Date Ratio Recording Seller Buyer House_N~ Address 

65-1137000 325000.0 250400.0 4/24/2017 71_1 477054 KERZMAN DARYL & VIRGINIA PETERSON PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 1301 3 ST NW 

65-3199000 296500.0 243900.0 6/1/2017 82.3 477669 MISSOURI VALLEY RENTALS LLC FIFTH & MADISON PROPERTIES LLC 210 3 STNE 

65-3530000 197500.0 142600.0 611/2017 72.2 477647 MISSOURI VALLEY RENTALS LLC FIFTH & MADISON PROPERTIES LLC 804 SAVE NW 

65-3640000 330000.0 215700.0 6/1/2017 65-4 477671 MISSOURf VALLEY RENT LLC FIFTH & MADISON PROPERTIES LLC 600 9STNW 

65-2952000 225000.0 215400.0 10/2.0/2017 95.7 480377 KRAFT RAYMOND A (TRUST) FAIMAN, BRADLEY & NICHOLE 505 6AVENW 

65-2162000 450000.0 360900.0 1216/2017 80,2 480643 RIVINIOUS MERRIL & BEV FEIL, LANDON & JEROMCHECK, JAMES 1509 1 AVE NW 

65-2984000 220000.0 237000,0 1/27/2018 107.7 482081 RALSTON JOYCE FIFTH AND MADISON PROPERTIES LLC 1205 3STNW 

65-1475000 180000.0 230900;0 4/30/2018 128-3 483206 TEXOTA PROPERTIES LLC CLOOSKI PROPERTIES LLP 304 10AVE NE 

65-6101375 12500000.0 11386200.0 6/1/2018 91.1 483775 PLUS FOUR HOLDINGS LLC EWR MANDAN LAKE.WOOD LLC 2303 SHOAL LOOP SE. 

82.3 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: Consider appointments to the Mandan Visitors Committee.  
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The Visitors Committee provides 
recommendations to the City Commission in administering proceeds from the 1 percent 
city restaurant and lodging tax. Funds may be used for capital construction and promotion 
projects to attract visitors to the community to use travel and tourism facilities.  
 
There are four positions up for appointment, including Shannon’s Gangl’s vacant term. 
Representation is sought from both residents and businesses. Letters of interest were 
pursued through an October news release with a requested deadline for responses by Nov. 
1 or until the positions are filled 
 
Member whose terms are expired:  

• Lee Pierce (term: Aug. 2015 - Aug. 2019) 
• Terry Kraft (term: Aug. 2015 – Aug. 2019) 
• Maria Walen (term: Jan. 2016 – Dec. 2019)  

 
Unexpired term, needing filled:  

• Shannon Gangl (term: Aug. 2018 – Aug. 2020)  
 
The Visitors Committee met March 3 to discuss the consideration of recommendations 
for 2020 appointments. People submitting letters of interest are listed below:  

• Maria Walen 
• Clint Boyd 
• Tyler Gangl 
• Karmen Siirtola 
• Terry Kraft (withdrew letter of interest 2/21/2020)  
• Rena Mehlhoff (withdrew letter of interest 2/13/2020)  

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 4, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Consider appointments to Mandan Visitors 

Committee 

New Business No. 4  

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider Visitors Committee appointments 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 
Walen, Boyd, Gangl, and Siirtola were all in attendance.  
 
With the number of folks coming off the committee and new appointments, we would 
advise doing a reset upon the terms as outlined in the recommendation and motion. This 
way not all positions would be up for reappointment at the same time. We did draw 
names from a jar to determine the recommend terms. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Letters of interest received.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
STAFF IMPACT: N/A 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The Visitors Committee recommends appointing Tyler Gangl to 
a two-year term ending Dec. 31, 2021; Maria Walen to a three-year term ending Dec. 31, 
2022; Clint Boyd to a four-year term ending Dec. 31, 2023; and Karmen Siirtola to a 
five-year term ending Dec. 31, 2024.     
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the following appointments to the Visitors 
Committee: Tyler Gangl to a two-year term ending Dec. 31, 2021; Maria Walen to a 
three-year term ending Dec. 31, 2022; Clint Boyd to a four-year term ending Dec. 31, 
2023; and Karmen Siirtola to a five-year term ending Dec. 31, 2024.     
 
 
  



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider Visitors Committee appointments 
Page 3 of 6 
 
Walen LOI:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject : RE: Visitors Committee 
Date: Thursday, October 03, 2019 12:29:08 PM 

Yes, I would like t o serve anot her t erm. 

Thank you, 

Ma ria 

From: Kari N. Moore <kari .moore@cityofma ndan.com> 

Sent: Thursday, October 3, 2019 10:48 AM 

To: Ma ria Walen <manager@comfortinnmandan.com> 

Subject: Visitors Committee 

Hi Ma ria, 

Your t erm on the Visitors Promotion Fund commit tee wi ll exp ire on Dec. 31, 2019. If you are 

interested in serving another term on the committee, please let me know. The re are 2 five-yea r 

terms and 1 four-yea r t erm up fo r reappointment. Attached is the news release that was issued on 

Tuesday, Oct. 1. 

Thank you, 

Kari fv1oore 
Program Coordinator 

Business Development & Communications Department 

r:itv of M;rn rfan 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider Visitors Committee appointments 
Page 4 of 6 
 
Boyd LOI:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To Whom it May Concem. 

I am submitting this letter to indicate my willingness to serve on one of the city boards. I will 
gladly serve on any board where my assistance is needed. but I would prefer the Renaissance Zone 
Committee or the Visitors Promotion Fund Committee. 

My family and I moved to Mandan in January of20 15 and pmchased a home here in May of 2018. 
Though we are not originally from this area. Mandan is our home and we plan to remain here for 
the long tenu . Therefore. I wish to be of service to my conuuunity and help keep Mandan a 
wonderfol place for businesses and families well into the futm·e. 

I have a PhD in Geosciences and bachelor s degrees in geology and biology. I work as the manager 
of the Paleontology Program for the 01th Dakota Geological Survey in Bismarck. In that posit ion 
I oversee the N01th Dakota State Fossil Co llection. organize public fossil digs across No11h Dakota 
during the summer. and supervise various educational outreach programs for schools. professional 
groups, and the general public . Previously. I worked for the National Park Service at Badlands 
Nationa l Park in South Dakota . In both of those positions I sought to serve the public by providing 
beneficial services to my local con111mnity and the general public. 

Thank you for taking the ti.me to consider my request. I look fo1ward to hearing from you once a 
decision is made. 

Sincerely. 

Clint A. Boyd 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider Visitors Committee appointments 
Page 5 of 6 
 
Gangl LOI:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I am writing this letter with the hope tliat I will be considered to serve as a member on the 
Visitors Promotion Fund C01mnittee. I feel that I am uniquely qualified for this position due to 
my background. I have grown up in the hospitality industry and have held virtually every 
position there is within a hotel. I ve washed dishes, set up meeting rooms. cooked for banquets , 
worked at the front desk. and sold rooms and conference space for eight hotels in different 
markets . This has given me a rare perspective on the entire process from booking an event and 
making it come to fruition. I understand the challenges the travel and tourism industry in 
Mandan faces and have ideas to overcome th em. Fmthermore. I see myself spending my entire 
career within the hospitality industiy which wi.11 be an asset to this committee as I \ ·ill 
continuously be able to bring unique and first-hand perspectives regarding travel and tourism 
within the city. 

I have two main reasons for my interest in this committee. The first reason is that I want to 
become more involved in my c01mnunity and help it grow and thrive any way that I can. The 
second reason is that I understand the challenges that the Mandan travel and tourism industry 
faces. and I want to be pait of the solution i.n overcoming them. It is no secret that we are often 
overshadO\.ved by Bismarck, and when I am selling my hotel the most common objection that 
comes up is "\ ·e don 't want to come to Mandan. we want to be in Bismarck." I want to be pati 
of making Mandan every bit as enticing as Bismarck and if I am fortunate enough to be chosen 
to serve on this committee, I will dedicate my ti.me and effo1t to making us every bit as enticing 
of a market as Bismarck. 

Sincerely. 

Tyler Gangl 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider Visitors Committee appointments 
Page 6 of 6 
 
Siirtola LOI:  
 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

My name is Karmen Siirtola. I assumed ownership o f the TP Motel on July l , 2016. If 
you' ve driven by, I think you ma y have noticed we have been busy making some 
improvements to the grounds as well as parts of the build ing . My team 's ma in focus, 
however, has been a focused effort on our guest rooms in order to provide clean, 
a fforda ble lodg ing with decor that has seen a fa celift and a welcoming a mbience for 
our guests. Manda n Pride a nd Hospita lity are our calling card . 

I have work experience in banking as well as a ll sorts of custo mer service positions. 
have a lso ow ned other businesses besides the motel. 

I would like to bring my experience to the Visitors and Promotion Fund Committee. 
During my time a t the TP, I have many times thought of ways that we can hold our 
head high a s a community. And other ways in whic h we c a n improve the experience 
of a nyone visiting our tow n based on some of the very things this committee oversees. 

It would be my pleasure to serve not only as a business ow ner but also as a c itizen o f this 
great farm/ranch community. Our pride shows in so many wa ys. I' d like to help it show 
even more! 

Thank you for your time, 

Karmen Siirtola 



   
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To inform the City Commission about the status of 
the Memorial Highway reconstruction project planning as we near the completion 
of the preliminary engineering effort.  

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: As we near the end of the preliminary engineering 
effort, staff thought it was a good time to bring forward an update on the project to 
commission. Craig Mizera, the Project Manager with HDR, will present some of the more 
relevant project information.  
 
At a future meeting, we will need to bring forward a DOT required decision document for 
City Commission review and approval which will include a couple of major scoping 
decision items.    
 
ATTACHMENTS:    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal   
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  The City Attorney was forwarded as part of the full agenda packet.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  None, for information.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: None, for information.  

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 13, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering 

Director/Craig Mizera, HDR 
SUBJECT: Memorial Highway Planning Presentation  

New Business No. 5 
 

WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   To approve the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications 
and Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement District No. 215, 
Project No. 2019-05 (Midtown East), 215A Project 2020-04 (Public Works Parking Lot) 
and 215B Project 2020.05 (Grounds Maintenance Parking Lot). 

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  At the December 3rd, 2019 City Commission 
approved the resolution creating the district, approved the engineer’s report, approved the 
feasibility report and approved the resolution of necessity for SID 215.  Commission on 
January 7th found the protests insufficient and elected to move forward with this project. 
 
On March 3rd , 2020 City Commission approved the resolution creating the district, 
approved the engineer’s report, approved the feasibility report and approved the 
resolution of necessity for SID 215A. 
 
Also on March 3rd , 2020 City Commission approved the resolution creating the district, 
approved the engineer’s report, approved the feasibility report and approved the 
resolution of necessity for SID 215B. 
 
If approved today, we would advertise to bid March 27 and April 3 with the bid opening 
on April 14th.  We would bring to commission to consider awarding on April 21st. The 
majority of the project construction is planned for 2020 with some tasks in 2021.    
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1) Resolution Approving Plans and Specifications SID 215 

MEETING DATE:   March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 12, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: Consider approving the Resolution approving 

Plans & Specifications and Resolution directing 
advertisement for bid for Street Improvement 
Districts No. 215 (Midtown East) 215A (Public 
Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds 
Maintenance Parking Lot). 

REVISED 3-17-2020 New Business No. 6 
 

 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 2 of 18 
 

2) Resolution Directing Advertisement for Bid SID 215 
3) Resolution Approving Plans and Specifications SID 215A 
4) Resolution Directing Advertisement for Bid SID 215A 
5) Resolution Approving Plans and Specifications SID 215B 
6) Resolution Directing Advertisement for Bid SID 215B 
7) Note: Plans and specifications available upon request  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The total project cost that would be divided among district 
participants if no other funding support, is estimated at $5,547,800. With Municipal 
Infrastructure Funds (formerly Prairie Dog Funds) buy down at a rate of 20%, that 
amount would be reduced by $1,109,560 and would become $4,438,239. Water and 
sewer improvements would not be part of the assessment costs as per our traditional 
funding formula. To pay for those water and sewer needs is an estimated $2,540,102.50. 
Below is a table that outlines the project funding that was approved at the December 3rd 
City Commission meeting.  
 

 
 
In addition to those project elements and estimated costs at our December 3rd meeting as 
outlined above, we agreed to add to the project to pave the parking lots at the Public 
Works Facilty as well as the Public Works’ Grounds Maintenance building. Work for 
these locations is being handled under districts 215A and 215B respectively. The total 
estimate for both parking lots is $1,330,000. All of these costs would go directly to the 
city and be paid for by the City’s share of special assessments fund. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Significant time and effort working alongside Moore Engineering on 
this project and answering the public’s questions.  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Our agenda information has been forwarded as part of the full packet 
to the City Attorney for review.  
 

FUNDING 
MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE FUND 
MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE FUND 
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 
$ 1,109,560 20% OF TOTAL STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
$ 997,355 WATER AND SEWER 
$ 800,000 2020 BUDGET 
$ 742,748 ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR WATER AND SEWER 
$ 4,438,239 
$ 8,087,902 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 3 of 18 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution approving plans and specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement District No. 215, 215A 
and 215B. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the Resolution approving plans and 
specifications and Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement 
District No. 215, 215A and 215B. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 4 of 18 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 215 

PROJECT # 2019-05 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street 

Improvement District No. 215 (Project # 2019-05) of said City be and the same 

are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, except as 

modified by this Board in accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall 

file the same in his office, open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 17th day of March, 2020 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 5 of 18 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 215 PROJECT 2019-05 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows: 

 1.  The City Administrator, Deputy Auditor and City Engineer shall meet at the 

time and place specified in the notice authorized in paragraph 2 hereof, for the 

purpose of opening sealed bids for the work and material needed for the 

improvement project to be made in Street Improvement District No. 215 (Project # 

2019-05) of the City of Mandan, as more fully described and referred to in the 

resolution creating said improvement district passed and approved by the Board on 

December 3, 2019, and in the plans and specifications for said improvement now on 

file in the office of the City Engineer. 

 

2.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause notice of 

advertisement for bids to be published once each week for two consecutive weeks in 

the Mandan News, the official newspaper, the first of such publications to be at least 

fourteen days before the date specified for receipt of bids, which notice shall be in 

the following form: 
  
                                               
 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR 
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 215, 215A & 215B 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 
 
 Notice is hereby given, that the City of Mandan, North Dakota will receive 
sealed bids at the office of the City Administrator until Tuesday, April 14, 2020, at 
10:00 a.m., local time for the purpose of furnishing of materials, labor and skill 
needed for the construction of asphalt streets and alleys, concrete curb and gutter, 
street lighting improvements and related work in accordance with the plans and 
specifications for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 (Project # 2019-05),No. 215A 
(Project 2020-04) and No. 215B (Project 2020-05) for the City of Mandan.  The 
Projects consist of constructing Storm Sewer, Water Main Replacement, Sanitary 
Sewer Extension, Sidewalk Improvements, Curb and Gutter Replacement, Street 
Improvements and Parking Lot Improvements. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 6 of 18 
 
 
 Contractors and vendors desiring plans and specifications for personal use 
may secure digital copies from www.questcdn.com for a fee of $25.00.  These 
documents may be downloaded by selecting this project from the “Bid Documents” 
tab and by entering Quest Project Number #6906533 on the “Search Projects” page.  
For assistance and the free membership registration, contact QuestCDN at 
(952)233-1632 or info@questcdn.com.  Paper copies of the bid documents may be 
obtained from the City of Mandan Engineering office, 205 2nd Avenue Northwest, 
Mandan, North Dakota 58554 upon non-refundable payment of $50.00 for each set. 
If Plans are mailed out and additional fee of $15.00 will be added for postage and 
handling. 
 
 The issuing Office for the Bidding Documents is:  Moore Engineering, 
Inc.;2911 North 14th Street, Suite 301, Bismarck, ND  58503; Josh Feil; 701-751-
8375; joshua.feil@mooreengineeringinc.com. 
 
 The bid proposals must be submitted to the City Administrator by 10:00 a.m., 
local time, April 14, 2020 and shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for Street 
Improvement District No 215, 215A and 215B.  Bids shall be delivered or mailed to: 
City Administrator, City of Mandan, 205 2nd Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554.  Bids 
will be opened and read aloud in the City Commission Meeting Room at 10:00 a.m., 
local time, on April 14, 2020. 
All bidders are invited to be present at the public opening of the Bids. 
 
 All Bidders must be licensed for the highest amount of their Bids, as provided 
by Section 43-07-07 of the North Dakota Century Code.  The Bidder shall include a 
copy of his license or certificate of renewal thereof enclosed in the required bid bond 
envelope as required pursuant to Section 43-07-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, as amended.  
  
 Each bid shall be accompanied by a separate envelope containing a bidder’s 
bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the highest amount of the bids as required 
by Section 48-01.2-05, North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and executed by 
the Bidder as principal and by a surety, conditioned that if the principal’s bid is 
accepted and the contract awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten days 
after Notice of Award, shall execute and effect a contract in accordance with the 
terms of the bid, and a Contractor’s Bond as required by law.  No bid may be read or 
considered if it does not fully comply with the requirements of Section 48-01.2-05 of 
the North Dakota Century Code and any deficient bid must be resealed and returned 
to the bidder immediately. 
 
 Bids shall be made on the basis on cash payment for the work to be done.  
All work under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a 

http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 7 of 18 
 
written order from the Board of City Commissioners, or no later than ten (10) days 
after written notice to proceed has been received from the City. 
 
 Construction work will be substantially completed by October 16, 2020 with 
final completion date of July 15, 2021. 
  
           Liquidated damages will be assessed per calendar day if any completion 
dates are exceeded per Section 106-2 of City of Mandan specifications. 
   
           Should the contractor fail to complete all of the work in a District according to 
the above date, or within such additional time as may have been granted by formal 
extensions of time approved by the City Engineer, there shall be deducted from any 
money due the contractor, the above mentioned sum for each calendar day the 
completion of the Work is delayed. Liquidated damages will continue to accumulate 
until the City Engineer determines winter weather prevents further construction.  
Liquidated damages will restart on the first day of construction in the Spring of 2021 
and continue to accumulate until final project acceptance.  The Contractor and his 
surety shall be liable for any excess.  Such payments shall be deducted from the 
final payment and shall be charged as liquidated damages and not as a penalty. 
 
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020, at  
5:30 PM, local time, to review the Bids submitted.  
  
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020, at 
5:30 PM, local time, to consider the engineer’s recommendation, and to award the 
contract to the successful Bidder.  The contract will be awarded on the basis of the 
low Bid submitted, on eligible areas, by a responsible and responsive Bidder deemed 
most favorable to the City’s interest. 
 
 The City of Mandan reserves the right reject any or all bids, to waive any 
informality or irregularity, to hold all bids for a period of Sixty (60) days after the date 
fixed for the opening thereof, and to accept the Bid deemed most favorable to the 
best interest of the City of Mandan. 
 
  Dated this 17th day of March, 2020 
       City of Mandan, North Dakota 
       BY: James Neubauer 
                                                                              City Administrator 
 
Publication Dates:   March 27 & April 3, 2020” 
 
 3.  Each and all of the terms and provisions of the foregoing notice are hereby 

adopted as the terms and conditions for the award of said contract. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 8 of 18 
 
 

 4.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020 

at 5:30 pm, local time, to review the bids submitted. 

 

5.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020 

at 5:30 pm, local time, to consider the engineer’s recommendation, and to award the 

contract to the successful bidder, subject to the Board finding that filed protests are 

insufficient to bar the work. 

 

     _________________________________  
                 President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________                             
City Administrator 
 
Passed: March 17th, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 9 of 18 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 215A 

PROJECT # 2020-04 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street 

Improvement District No. 215A (Project #2020-04) of said City be and the same 

are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, except as 

modified by this Board in accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall 

file the same in his office, open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 17th day of March, 2020 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 10 of 18 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 215A PROJECT 2020-04 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows: 

 1.  The City Administrator, Deputy Auditor and City Engineer shall meet at the 

time and place specified in the notice authorized in paragraph 2 hereof, for the 

purpose of opening sealed bids for the work and material needed for the 

improvement project to be made in Street Improvement District No. 215A (Project # 

2020-04) of the City of Mandan, as more fully described and referred to in the 

resolution creating said improvement district passed and approved by the Board on 

March 3, 2020, and in the plans and specifications for said improvement now on file 

in the office of the City Engineer. 

 

2.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause notice of 

advertisement for bids to be published once each week for two consecutive weeks in 

the Mandan News, the official newspaper, the first of such publications to be at least 

fourteen days before the date specified for receipt of bids, which notice shall be in 

the following form: 
  
 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR 
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 215, 215A & 215B 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 
 
 Notice is hereby given, that the City of Mandan, North Dakota will receive 
sealed bids at the office of the City Administrator until Tuesday, April 14, 2020, at 
10:00 a.m., local time for the purpose of furnishing of materials, labor and skill 
needed for the construction of asphalt streets and alleys, concrete curb and gutter, 
street lighting improvements and related work in accordance with the plans and 
specifications for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 (Project # 2019-05),No. 215A 
(Project 2020-04) and No. 215B (Project 2020-05) for the City of Mandan.  The 
Projects consist of constructing Storm Sewer, Water Main Replacement, Sanitary 
Sewer Extension, Sidewalk Improvements, Curb and Gutter Replacement, Street 
Improvements and Parking Lot Improvements. 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 11 of 18 
 
 Contractors and vendors desiring plans and specifications for personal use 
may secure digital copies from www.questcdn.com for a fee of $25.00.  These 
documents may be downloaded by selecting this project from the “Bid Documents” 
tab and by entering Quest Project Number #6906533 on the “Search Projects” page.  
For assistance and the free membership registration, contact QuestCDN at 
(952)233-1632 or info@questcdn.com.  Paper copies of the bid documents may be 
obtained from the City of Mandan Engineering office, 205 2nd Avenue Northwest, 
Mandan, North Dakota 58554 upon non-refundable payment of $50.00 for each set. 
If Plans are mailed out and additional fee of $15.00 will be added for postage and 
handling. 
 
 The issuing Office for the Bidding Documents is:  Moore Engineering, 
Inc.;2911 North 14th Street, Suite 301, Bismarck, ND  58503; Josh Feil; 701-751-
8375; joshua.feil@mooreengineeringinc.com. 
 
 The bid proposals must be submitted to the City Administrator by 10:00 a.m., 
local time, April 14, 2020 and shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for Street 
Improvement District No 215, 215A and 215B.  Bids shall be delivered or mailed to: 
City Administrator, City of Mandan, 205 2nd Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554.  Bids 
will be opened and read aloud in the City Commission Meeting Room at 10:00 a.m., 
local time, on April 14, 2020. 
All bidders are invited to be present at the public opening of the Bids. 
 
 All Bidders must be licensed for the highest amount of their Bids, as provided 
by Section 43-07-07 of the North Dakota Century Code.  The Bidder shall include a 
copy of his license or certificate of renewal thereof enclosed in the required bid bond 
envelope as required pursuant to Section 43-07-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, as amended.  
  
 Each bid shall be accompanied by a separate envelope containing a bidder’s 
bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the highest amount of the bids as required 
by Section 48-01.2-05, North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and executed by 
the Bidder as principal and by a surety, conditioned that if the principal’s bid is 
accepted and the contract awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten days 
after Notice of Award, shall execute and effect a contract in accordance with the 
terms of the bid, and a Contractor’s Bond as required by law.  No bid may be read or 
considered if it does not fully comply with the requirements of Section 48-01.2-05 of 
the North Dakota Century Code and any deficient bid must be resealed and returned 
to the bidder immediately. 
 
 Bids shall be made on the basis on cash payment for the work to be done.  
All work under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a 
written order from the Board of City Commissioners, or no later than ten (10) days 
after written notice to proceed has been received from the City. 

http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 12 of 18 
 
 
 Construction work will be substantially completed by October 16, 2020 with 
final completion date of July 15, 2021. 
  
           Liquidated damages will be assessed per calendar day if any completion 
dates are exceeded per Section 106-2 of City of Mandan specifications. 
   
           Should the contractor fail to complete all of the work in a District according to 
the above date, or within such additional time as may have been granted by formal 
extensions of time approved by the City Engineer, there shall be deducted from any 
money due the contractor, the above mentioned sum for each calendar day the 
completion of the Work is delayed. Liquidated damages will continue to accumulate 
until the City Engineer determines winter weather prevents further construction.  
Liquidated damages will restart on the first day of construction in the Spring of 2021 
and continue to accumulate until final project acceptance.  The Contractor and his 
surety shall be liable for any excess.  Such payments shall be deducted from the 
final payment and shall be charged as liquidated damages and not as a penalty. 
 
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020, at  
5:30 PM, local time, to review the Bids submitted.  
  
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020, at 
5:30 PM, local time, to consider the engineer’s recommendation, and to award the 
contract to the successful Bidder.  The contract will be awarded on the basis of the 
low Bid submitted, on eligible areas, by a responsible and responsive Bidder deemed 
most favorable to the City’s interest. 
 
 The City of Mandan reserves the right reject any or all bids, to waive any 
informality or irregularity, to hold all bids for a period of Sixty (60) days after the date 
fixed for the opening thereof, and to accept the Bid deemed most favorable to the 
best interest of the City of Mandan. 
 
  Dated this 17th day of March, 2020 
       City of Mandan, North Dakota 
       BY: James Neubauer 
                                                                               City Administrator 
 
Publication Dates:   March 27 & April 3, 2020” 
 
 3.  Each and all of the terms and provisions of the foregoing notice are hereby 
adopted as the terms and conditions for the award of said contract. 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 13 of 18 
 
 4.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020 

at 5:30 pm, local time, to review the bids submitted. 

 

5.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020 

at 5:30 pm, local time, to consider the engineer’s recommendation, and to award the 

contract to the successful bidder, subject to the Board finding that filed protests are 

insufficient to bar the work. 

 

     _________________________________  
                 President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________                             
City Administrator 
 
Passed: March 17th, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 14 of 18 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 215B 

PROJECT # 2020-05 
 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street 

Improvement District No. 215B (Project #2020-05) of said City be and the same 

are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, except as 

modified by this Board in accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall 

file the same in his office, open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 17th day of March, 2020 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 15 of 18 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 215B PROJECT 2020-05 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows: 

 1.  The City Administrator, Deputy Auditor and City Engineer shall meet at the 

time and place specified in the notice authorized in paragraph 2 hereof, for the 

purpose of opening sealed bids for the work and material needed for the 

improvement project to be made in Street Improvement District No. 215B (Project # 

2020-05) of the City of Mandan, as more fully described and referred to in the 

resolution creating said improvement district passed and approved by the Board on 

March 3, 2020, and in the plans and specifications for said improvement now on file 

in the office of the City Engineer. 

 

2.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause notice of 

advertisement for bids to be published once each week for two consecutive weeks in 

the Mandan News, the official newspaper, the first of such publications to be at least 

fourteen days before the date specified for receipt of bids, which notice shall be in 

the following form: 
  

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR 
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 215, 215A & 215B 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 
 
 Notice is hereby given, that the City of Mandan, North Dakota will receive 
sealed bids at the office of the City Administrator until Tuesday, April 14, 2020, at 
10:00 a.m., local time for the purpose of furnishing of materials, labor and skill 
needed for the construction of asphalt streets and alleys, concrete curb and gutter, 
street lighting improvements and related work in accordance with the plans and 
specifications for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 (Project # 2019-05),No. 215A 
(Project 2020-04) and No. 215B (Project 2020-05) for the City of Mandan.  The 
Projects consist of constructing Storm Sewer, Water Main Replacement, Sanitary 
Sewer Extension, Sidewalk Improvements, Curb and Gutter Replacement, Street 
Improvements and Parking Lot Improvements. 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 16 of 18 
 
 Contractors and vendors desiring plans and specifications for personal use 
may secure digital copies from www.questcdn.com for a fee of $25.00.  These 
documents may be downloaded by selecting this project from the “Bid Documents” 
tab and by entering Quest Project Number #6906533 on the “Search Projects” page.  
For assistance and the free membership registration, contact QuestCDN at 
(952)233-1632 or info@questcdn.com.  Paper copies of the bid documents may be 
obtained from the City of Mandan Engineering office, 205 2nd Avenue Northwest, 
Mandan, North Dakota 58554 upon non-refundable payment of $50.00 for each set. 
If Plans are mailed out and additional fee of $15.00 will be added for postage and 
handling. 
 
 The issuing Office for the Bidding Documents is:  Moore Engineering, 
Inc.;2911 North 14th Street, Suite 301, Bismarck, ND  58503; Josh Feil; 701-751-
8375; joshua.feil@mooreengineeringinc.com. 
 
 The bid proposals must be submitted to the City Administrator by 10:00 a.m., 
local time, April 14, 2020 and shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for Street 
Improvement District No 215, 215A and 215B.  Bids shall be delivered or mailed to: 
City Administrator, City of Mandan, 205 2nd Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554.  Bids 
will be opened and read aloud in the City Commission Meeting Room at 10:00 a.m., 
local time, on April 14, 2020. 
All bidders are invited to be present at the public opening of the Bids. 
 
 All Bidders must be licensed for the highest amount of their Bids, as provided 
by Section 43-07-07 of the North Dakota Century Code.  The Bidder shall include a 
copy of his license or certificate of renewal thereof enclosed in the required bid bond 
envelope as required pursuant to Section 43-07-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, as amended.  
  
 Each bid shall be accompanied by a separate envelope containing a bidder’s 
bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the highest amount of the bids as required 
by Section 48-01.2-05, North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and executed by 
the Bidder as principal and by a surety, conditioned that if the principal’s bid is 
accepted and the contract awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten days 
after Notice of Award, shall execute and effect a contract in accordance with the 
terms of the bid, and a Contractor’s Bond as required by law.  No bid may be read or 
considered if it does not fully comply with the requirements of Section 48-01.2-05 of 
the North Dakota Century Code and any deficient bid must be resealed and returned 
to the bidder immediately. 
 
 Bids shall be made on the basis on cash payment for the work to be done.  
All work under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a 
written order from the Board of City Commissioners, or no later than ten (10) days 
after written notice to proceed has been received from the City. 

http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 17 of 18 
 
 
 Construction work will be substantially completed by October 16, 2020 with 
final completion date of July 15, 2021. 
  
           Liquidated damages will be assessed per calendar day if any completion 
dates are exceeded per Section 106-2 of City of Mandan specifications. 
   
           Should the contractor fail to complete all of the work in a District according to 
the above date, or within such additional time as may have been granted by formal 
extensions of time approved by the City Engineer, there shall be deducted from any 
money due the contractor, the above mentioned sum for each calendar day the 
completion of the Work is delayed. Liquidated damages will continue to accumulate 
until the City Engineer determines winter weather prevents further construction.  
Liquidated damages will restart on the first day of construction in the Spring of 2021 
and continue to accumulate until final project acceptance.  The Contractor and his 
surety shall be liable for any excess.  Such payments shall be deducted from the 
final payment and shall be charged as liquidated damages and not as a penalty. 
 
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020, at  
5:30 PM, local time, to review the Bids submitted.  
  
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020, at 
5:30 PM, local time, to consider the engineer’s recommendation, and to award the 
contract to the successful Bidder.  The contract will be awarded on the basis of the 
low Bid submitted, on eligible areas, by a responsible and responsive Bidder deemed 
most favorable to the City’s interest. 
 
 The City of Mandan reserves the right reject any or all bids, to waive any 
informality or irregularity, to hold all bids for a period of Sixty (60) days after the date 
fixed for the opening thereof, and to accept the Bid deemed most favorable to the 
best interest of the City of Mandan. 
 
  Dated this 17th day of March, 2020 
       City of Mandan, North Dakota 
       BY: James Neubauer 
                                                                               City Administrator 
 
Publication Dates:   March 27 & April 3, 2020” 
 
 3.  Each and all of the terms and provisions of the foregoing notice are hereby 

adopted as the terms and conditions for the award of said contract. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans & Specifications and 
Resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement Districts No. 215 
(Midtown East)., 215A (Public Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds Maintenance 
Parking Lot). 
Page 18 of 18 
 
 4.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020 

at 5:30 pm, local time, to review the bids submitted. 

 

5.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020 

at 5:30 pm, local time, to consider the engineer’s recommendation, and to award the 

contract to the successful bidder, subject to the Board finding that filed protests are 

insufficient to bar the work. 

 

     _________________________________  
                 President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________                             
City Administrator 
 
Passed: March 17th, 2020 
 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   Consider the approval of plans and specifications and 
resolution directing advertising for bids for Street Improvement District No. 218, Project 
No. 2019-12 (Northwest Area). 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: At our last City Commission meeting, our office 
brought forward a request to approve resolutions of necessity and to create the district. In 
order to meet scheduling goals, and because we are providing in-house engineering 
services for this project, we are now requesting the approval of plans and specs as well as 
the advertisement for bid, concurrent with the protest period. 
 
After hearing from residents and City Commission, our staff had some discussions on 
what adjustments we could make to the work details or assessment distribution formula. 
The changes between last meeting and now include:  

• A reduction of the segment of Lewis Road, west of 37th Avenue NW, to be 
reconstructed. We believe that it will all need to be reconstructed in the not too 
distant future, but similar to the approach to other segments in this district with 
pavement that is not that old, we will apply a chip seal as part of this project and 
will continue to assess for the timing of a future reconstruction project.  

 
• An elimination of the chip seal scope as part of the Old Red Trail overlay portion 

of the project. As previously mentioned, this part of the project is planned in 
order to bridge to the federal funds that we expect near the year 2026. As such, 
chip sealing is not as valuable as it would be for a project that we expect the 
pavement to last for 20 years.  

 

MEETING DATE:   March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 12, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: Consider the approval of plans and specifications 

and resolution directing advertising for bids for 
Street Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 
2019-12 (Northwest Area). 

New Business No. 7 
 

 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider the approval of plans and specifications and resolution directing 
advertising for bids for Street Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 2019-12 
(Northwest Area). 
Page 2 of 7 
 

• A splitting of the 40th Avenue chip seal scope so that half of the cost goes to the 
properties to the east and half to the west. This segment of road is basically 
adjacent to back yards on either side of it with each of those sides taking access 
from the other road. As such, upon further review, our office agrees that it is 
most fair to assess to each side.   

 
Letters went out to each property owner on March 12th with their individual lot 
assessment estimates based on the previously mentioned adjustments. A 30 day protest 
period started March 6, 2020.  We will accept letters of protest in our office until 4:30 
April 6, 2020. Concurrently, we are asking approval to advertise for bid with today’s 
item. We would bring the determination of sufficiency of protests to our April 7th meeting 
and if determined insufficient, we would open bids April 9th for consideration at our April 
21st City Commission meeting. We would construct most of the project in 2020 with 
minor tasks to complete in 2021.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1) Resolution Approving Plans & Specifications 
2) Resolution Directing Advertisement for Bid 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The total project cost that would be divided among district 
participants if no other funding support, is estimated at $2,247,000. With Municipal 
Infrastructure Funds (formerly Prairie Dog Funds) buy down at a rate of 20%, that 
amount would be reduced by $449,000 and would become $1,798,000.  
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Significant time and effort working on this project.  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All Commission documents have been forwarded to City Attorney 
for review.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve resolution approving plans and specifications and the 
resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement District No. 218, 
Project No. 2019-12  (Northwest Area). 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: Move to approve the resolution approving plans and 
specifications and the resolution directing advertisement for bid for Street Improvement 
District No. 218, Project No. 2019-12  (Northwest Area). 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider the approval of plans and specifications and resolution directing 
advertising for bids for Street Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 2019-12 
(Northwest Area). 
Page 3 of 7 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 218 

PROJECT # 2019-12 
 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street 

Improvement District No. 218 (Project #2019-12) of said City be and the same 

are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, except as 

modified by this Board in accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall 

file the same in his office, open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 17th day of March, 2020 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider the approval of plans and specifications and resolution directing 
advertising for bids for Street Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 2019-12 
(Northwest Area). 
Page 4 of 7 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 218 PROJECT 2019-12 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows: 

 1.  The City Administrator, Deputy Auditor and City Engineer shall meet at the 

time and place specified in the notice authorized in paragraph 2 hereof, for the 

purpose of opening sealed bids for the work and material needed for the 

improvement project to be made in Street Improvement District No. 218 (Project # 

2019-12) of the City of Mandan, as more fully described and referred to in the 

resolution creating said improvement district passed and approved by the Board on 

March 3, 2020 and in the plans and specifications for said improvement now on file 

in the office of the City Engineer. 

 

 2.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause notice of 

advertisement for bids to be published once each week for two consecutive weeks in 

the Mandan News, the official newspaper, the first of such publications to be at least 

fourteen days before the date specified for receipt of bids, which notice shall be in 

the following form: 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider the approval of plans and specifications and resolution directing 
advertising for bids for Street Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 2019-12 
(Northwest Area). 
Page 5 of 7 
 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR 
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 218 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 
 
 Notice is hereby given, that the City of Mandan, North Dakota will receive 
sealed bids at the office of the City Administrator until April 9, 2020 at 10:00 a.m., 
local time for the purpose of furnishing of materials, labor and skill needed for the 
new construction of storm sewer mains, asphalt streets, concrete curb and gutter 
and street lights and related work in accordance with the plans and specifications for 
Street Improvement District No. 218 (Project  # 2019-12),  for the City of Mandan.  
The Work consists of all labor, skill, and materials required to properly construct the 
improvement. 
 
 Contractors and vendors desiring plans and specifications for personal use 
may secure digital copies from www.questcdn.com for a fee of $25.00.  These 
documents may be downloaded by selecting this project from the “Bid Documents” 
tab and by entering Quest Project Number #6906883 on the “Search Projects” page.  
For assistance and the free membership registration, contact QuestCDN at 
(952)233-1632 or info@questcdn.com.  Paper copies of the bid documents may be 
obtained from the City of Mandan Engineering office, 205 2nd Avenue Northwest, 
Mandan, North Dakota 58554 upon non-refundable payment of $50.00 for each set. 
If Plans are mailed out and additional fee of $15.00 will be added for postage and 
handling. 
 
 The bid proposals must be submitted to the City Administrator by 10:00 a.m., 
local time, Tuesday, April 9, 2020 and shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for 
Street Improvement District No 218.  Bids shall be delivered or mailed to: City 
Administrator, City of Mandan, 205 2nd Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554.  Bids will 
be opened and read aloud in the City Commission Meeting Room at 10:00 a.m., 
local time, on April 9, 2020.  All bidders are invited to be present at the public 
opening of the Bids. 
 
 All Bidders must be licensed for the highest amount of their Bids, as provided 
by Section 43-07-05 of the North Dakota Century Code.  The Bidder shall include a 
copy of his license or certificate of renewal thereof enclosed in the required bid bond 
envelope as required pursuant to Section 43-07-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, as amended.  
  
 Each bid shall be accompanied by a separate envelope containing a bidder’s 
bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the highest amount of the bids as required 
by Section 48-01.2-05, North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and executed by 
the Bidder as principal and by a surety, conditioned that if the principal’s bid is 
accepted and the contract awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten days 
after Notice of Award, shall execute and effect a contract in accordance with the 
terms of the bid, and a Contractor’s Bond as required by law.  No bid may be read or 

http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider the approval of plans and specifications and resolution directing 
advertising for bids for Street Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 2019-12 
(Northwest Area). 
Page 6 of 7 
 
considered if it does not fully comply with the requirements of Section 48-01.2-05 of 
the North Dakota Century Code and any deficient bid must be resealed and returned 
to the bidder immediately. 
 
 Bids shall be made on the basis on cash payment for the work to be done.  
All work under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a 
written order from the Board of City Commissioners, or no later than ten (10) days 
after written notice to proceed has been received from the City. 
 
 Work shall be completed on or before the following dates with liquidated 
damages assessed as follows: 
 
 Construction of the gravel base, curb, gutter and base lift of asphalt is to be 
completed no later than October 31, 2020.  Liquidated damages for these items will 
start if the October 31, 2020 deadline is not met.  The remaining work will have a 
completion date of July 15, 2021. 
 
 Liquidated damages will be assessed per calendar day if any completion 
dates are exceeded per Section 106-2 of City of Mandan specifications. 
   
           Should the contractor fail to complete all of the work in a District according to 
the above date, or within such additional time as may have been granted by formal 
extensions of time approved by the City Engineer, there shall be deducted from any 
money due the contractor, the above mentioned sum for each calendar day the 
completion of the Work is delayed, for each District. Liquidated damages will 
continue to accumulate until the City Engineer determines winter weather prevents 
further construction.  Liquidated damages will restart on the first day of construction 
in the Spring of 2021 and continue to accumulate until final project acceptance.  The 
Contractor and his surety shall be liable for any excess.  Such payments shall be 
deducted from the final payment and shall be charged as liquidated damages and 
not as a penalty. 
 
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020, at  
5:30 PM, local time, to review the Bids submitted, consider the engineer’s 
recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful Bidder.  The contract 
will be awarded on the basis of the low Bid submitted, on eligible areas, by a 
responsible and responsive Bidder deemed most favorable to the City’s interest. 
 
 The City of Mandan reserves the right reject any or all bids, to waive any 
informality or irregularity, to hold all bids for a period of thirty (30) days after the date 
fixed for the opening thereof, and to accept the Bid deemed most favorable to the 
best interest of the City of Mandan. 
 
  Dated this 20th day of March, 2020 
       City of Mandan, North Dakota 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Consider the approval of plans and specifications and resolution directing 
advertising for bids for Street Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 2019-12 
(Northwest Area). 
Page 7 of 7 
 
       BY: /s/ James Neubauer               
                                                                           City Administrator” 
 
Publication Dates:  March 20 & March 27, 2020 
 
 
 3.  Each and all of the terms and provisions of the foregoing notice are hereby 

adopted as the terms and conditions for the award of said contract. 

 

 4.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, April 21st, 2020 

at 5:30 pm, local time, to review the bids submitted, consider the engineer’s 

recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful bidder, subject to the 

Board finding that filed protests are insufficient to bar the work. 

 

     _________________________________  
                 President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________                             
City Administrator 
 
Passed: March 17, 2020 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To move forward with the project to repair sidewalks, 
driveways, and other concrete items throughout the City. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: This is an annual sidewalk construction project that 
is for the removal and replacing of existing sidewalks or aprons in need of repair.  
Residents may elect to have sidewalk and/or apron work done to their existing sidewalk 
and/or apron that is adjacent to their property under this project, and to have that work 
assessed to their property.  Sidewalks and/or aprons for new construction however are not 
eligible to participate.  Work includes any concrete item within the public right-of-way 
that needs to be done.  Last year this sidewalk project totaled approximately $74,064.19  
in construction costs. That includes the work that Public Works completed using the 
contract prices and with the work completed through the Engineering Department for 
improvements related to private properties.   
 
Taking into account that Public Works is looking at utilizing this contract to repair some 
8” curb and gutter, and that we have some sidewalk gaps that need to be connected where 
there are parcels that do not have sidewalk, we are estimating the project at $75,032.50 
for 2020.  
  
We sent out 106 letters to contractors that have done work in the city to invite them to a 
meeting to discuss this project and to answer any questions they may have in order to 
prompt the most interest for this project.  The meeting will be held on March 18th, 2020..   
 
Pending approval today, we would advertise the project on March 20 and 27, open bids 
April 14 and bring back our recommendations to the City Commission for award of bid 
on April 21. 
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020  
PREPARATION DATE: March 12, 2020  
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning  
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE  
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director  
SUBJECT: Consider the approval of plans and specifications, 

Engineers Report, and authorize the call for bids 
for the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement 
Project 2020-02. 

 

New Business No. 8 
 

WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020  
Subject:  Consider the approval of plans and specifications, Engineers Report, and 
authorize the call for bids for the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2020-
02. 
Page 2 of 8 
 
ATTACHMENTS:     1. Engineer’s Estimate 
   2. Resolution Approving Plans and Specifications 
                              3. Resolution Approving Engineer’s Report 
                               4. Resolution Directing Advertisement for Bids 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    Minimal, all work under this project is special assessed to the 

benefitting property. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:     The Engineering staff will be performing the construction 

administration for this project. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: This office supports moving forward with this project. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the resolution approving plans and 
specifications, approve the resolution approving engineer’s report and approve the 
resolution directing advertisement for bids for the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk 
Improvement Project 2020-02. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020  
Subject:  Consider the approval of plans and specifications, Engineers Report, and 
authorize the call for bids for the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2020-
02. 
Page 3 of 8 
 
 

 
 

MUNICIPAL SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT 

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE 

March 17, 2020 
PROJECT NO. 2020-02 

TO THE HONORABLE PRESIDENT AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS 
CITY OF MANDAN, MANDAN , NORTH DAKOTA 

I 

GENTLEMEN: 

I HEREWITH SUBMIT AN ESTIMATE OF THE PROBABLE COST OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
MUNICIPAL SIDEWALK PROJECT NO. 2020-02 IN THE CITY OF MANDAN, N.D. 

BID ITEM ITEM APPROX! UNIT PRICI AMOUNT 
NO. NO. QUANTITY 

1 601 4" CONCRETE SIDEWALK 4,500 SF $6.00 $27,000.00 
2 601 6" CONCRETE SIDEWALK 750 SF $6.50 $4,875.00 

3 602 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY 1,600 SF $6.50 $10,400.00 

4 603 6" CURB AND GUTTER 500 LF $20.00 $10,000.00 

5 601 4" HANDICAP CURB RAMPS 40 SF $12 .00 $480.00 

6 601 4" CONCRETE STEPS 10 SF $40.00 $400.00 
7 601 3/4" FELT EXPANSION MATERIAL 300 LF $2.00 $600 .00 
8 202 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION 100 CY $30.00 $3,000.00 

9 1504 CONCRETE REMOVAL 3,500 SF $2 .00 $7 ,000.00 

10 1503 SAW CUTTING 550 LF $6.00 $3 ,300 .00 
11 1505 ADJUST WATER CURB STOP 2 EA $45.00 $90 .00 
12 1506 ADJUST WATER VALVE BOX 2 EA $45.00 $90.00 
13 1507 BLACK DIRT AND SEED 25 SY $20.00 $500.00 
14 1203 SOD 5 SY $35.00 $175.00 
15 201 TREE ROOT REMOVAL (2" TO 6") 2 EA $50 .00 $100.00 
16 201 TREE ROOT REMOVAL (OVER 6" TO 12" 2 EA $75 .00 $150.00 
17 201 TREE ROOT REMOVAL (OVER 12") 2 EA $100.00 $200.00 
18 501 COLD WEATHER PROTECTION- CURB & GUTTER 30 LF $0.75 $22.50 
19 501 COLD WEATHER PROTECTION- CONRETE PAVEMENT 300 SF $0.50 $150.00 
20 1513 8" CONCRETE 500 SF $7.00 $3,500.00 
21 1513 REMOVE & REPLACE 8" CURB & GUTTE 100 LF $30.00 $3,000.00 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $75,032.50 I 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020  
Subject:  Consider the approval of plans and specifications, Engineers Report, and 
authorize the call for bids for the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2020-
02. 
Page 4 of 8 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR MUNICIPAL SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT # 2020-02 
 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in 

Project # 2020-02 of said City be and the same are hereby approved, ratified and 

confirmed as the plans and specifications in accordance with which said 

improvement project will be constructed, except as modified by this Board in 

accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall file the same in his office, 

open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 17th day of March, 2020. 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020  
Subject:  Consider the approval of plans and specifications, Engineers Report, and 
authorize the call for bids for the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2020-
02. 
Page 5 of 8 
 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ENGINEER'S REPORT AND 
AUTHORIZING PREPARATION OF THE DETAILED PLANS 
AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTR CTION OF THE 

IMPROVEMENT IN MUNICIPAL SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 2020-02 

BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Co1mnissioners of the City of Mandan. 01th 

Dakota, as follows : 

I . That the report of the City Engineer with respect to the general nature. purpose, and 

feasibility of the proposed improvement and the estimate of the probable cost of the work to be 

done in Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2020-02, as required by section 40-22-10 of 

the 01th Dakota Centmy Code, and hereto filed in the office of the City Administrator, is 

hereby accepted and approved and the proposed improvement project within sa id District is 

hereby detennined and declared to be feasib le. 

2. The probable costs of the of the improvement project are estimated to be as follows : 

3. 

a. Construction costs: 

b. Other costs including necessary and reasonable 

change orders; engineering, fiscal agents ' and 

attorneys ' fees; cost of publication of legal notices: 

printing of wa1rnnt bonds; and all expenses incmTed 

111 the making of the improvement and levy of 

assessments therefor: 

C. Total estimated costs of the improvement: 

The Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare detailed plans and 

specifications for the project to be constructed. 

4. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

Dated this 17th day of March, 2020 

President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 

City Administrator 

$75,03 2.50 

$ ,503.25 

$82,535 .75 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020  
Subject:  Consider the approval of plans and specifications, Engineers Report, and 
authorize the call for bids for the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2020-
02. 
Page 6 of 8 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
FOR MUNICIPAL SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 2020-02 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows: 

 1.  The City Administrator and City Engineer shall meet at the time and place 

specified in the notice authorized in paragraph 2 hereof, for the purpose of opening 

sealed bids for the work and material needed for the improvement project to be 

made in Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2020-02 of the City of Mandan, as 

more fully described and referred to in the plans and specifications for said 

improvement now on file in the office of the City Engineer. 

 2.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause notice of 

advertisement for bids to be published once each week for two consecutive weeks in 

the Mandan News, the official newspaper, the first of such publications to be at least 

twenty-one days before the date specified for receipt of bids, which notice shall be in 

the following form: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020  
Subject:  Consider the approval of plans and specifications, Engineers Report, and 
authorize the call for bids for the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2020-
02. 
Page 7 of 8 
 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR 
2020 MUNICIPAL SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT #2020-02 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 
 

Notice is hereby given, that the City of Mandan, North Dakota, will receive sealed 
bids at the Office of the City Engineer, City Hall, until Tuesday. April 14, 2020, at 11:00 
a.m., local time, for the purpose of the construction and repair of sidewalks, curb and 
gutters, and all other work related to the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 
2020-02.  The work consists of all labor, skill and materials required to properly construct 
the improvement. 
 

Contractors and vendors desiring plans and specifications for personal use may 
secure digital copies from www.questcdn.com for a fee of $25.00.  These documents 
may be downloaded by selecting this project from the “Bid Documents” tab and by 
entering Quest Project Number #6905821 on the “Search Projects” page.  For 
assistance and the free membership registration, contact QuestCDN at (952)233-1632 
or info@questcdn.com.  Paper copies of the bid documents may be obtained from the 
City of Mandan Engineering office, 205 2nd Avenue Northwest, Mandan, North Dakota 
58554 upon non-refundable payment of $50.00 for each set. If Plans are mailed out and 
additional fee of $15.00 will be added for postage and handling. 
 
The Contractor shall include a copy of his license or certificate or renewal thereof 
enclosed in the required bid bond envelope as required pursuant to Section 43-07-12 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, as amended.  Unless a bidder obtains a contractor’s 
license for the full amount of its bid within twenty days after it is determined the bidder is 
the lowest and best bidder, the bid must be rejected and the contract awarded to the 
next lowest, best, and licensed bidder.   
 

Each bid shall be accompanied by a separate envelope containing a bidder’s 
bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the amount of the bids as required by Section 
48-01.1-05, North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and executed as provided by law.  
The bid bond shall be conditioned that if the principal’s bid is accepted and the contract 
awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten days after notice of award shall execute 
a contract in accordance with the terms of the bid and a contractor’s bond as required 
by law and the regulations and determinations of the city’s governing body. 
 

Bids shall be made on the basis of cash payment for the work to be done.  All 
work under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a written 
order from the Board of City Commissioners, or no later than ten (10) days after written 
notice to proceed has been received from the city. 
 

All work shall be completed no later than December 31, 2019.  If the contractor 
fails to complete all the work within this time, or such additional time as has been 
granted for excusable delays, there shall be deducted from any money due the 
contractor the sum of One Hundred Dollars for each calendar day the completion of the 
work is delayed.  Such deducted amounts shall be charged as liquidated damages and 
not as a penalty. 
 

The bid proposals shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for the 2020 
Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project #2020-02".  Bids shall be delivered or mailed 

http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020  
Subject:  Consider the approval of plans and specifications, Engineers Report, and 
authorize the call for bids for the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2020-
02. 
Page 8 of 8 
 
to: City Engineer, 205 2nd Avenue NW, Mandan, ND  58554.  Bids will be opened and 
read aloud in the City Commission Meeting Room at 11:00 a.m., local time, on Tuesday 
April 14, 2020.  All bidders are invited to be present at the public opening of the bids.  No 
bid may be read or considered if it does not fully comply with the requirements of NDCC 
'48-01.1-05 and any deficient bid submitted must be resealed and returned to the bidder 
immediately.   
 

The Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, North Dakota, will meet 
at the City Hall in said city on Tuesday, April 21, 2020 at 5:30 p.m., local time, to review 
the bids submitted, consider the engineer’s recommendation, and to award the contract 
to the successful bidder, subject to the Board finding filed protests are insufficient to bar 
the work. The contract will be awarded on the basis of the low bid submitted by a 
responsible and responsive bidder deemed most favorable to the City’s interest. 
 

The Board of City Commissioners reserves the right to hold all bids for a period 
of thirty (30) days after the date fixed for the opening thereof, and to reject any or all bids 
and to waive irregularities whenever it is in the best interest of the City of Mandan. 

 
Dated this 17th day of March, 2020. 

 
 City of Mandan, North Dakota 
 BY:  James Neubauer              
 City Administrator 

 
Publication Dates:   March 20 & March 27, 2020” 
 
 3.  Each and all of the terms and provisions of the foregoing notice are hereby 
adopted as the terms and conditions for the award of said contract. 
 

 4.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, April 21, 2020 at 

5:30 pm, local time, to review the bids submitted, consider the engineer’s 

recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful bidder. 

      
_________________________________                   
President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________                             
City Administrator 
 
Passed: March 17, 2020 
 
 
 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1335 related to zoning application procedures.    
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The proposed zoning text amendment surrounds 
application procedures for zoning applications in the City of Mandan.  Presently, 
application procedures are located throughout the Mandan Code of Ordinances and not 
easily identifiable.  The application procedures have been created in conjunction with the 
Zoning Ordinance Workgroup, which is comprised of several departments, two planning 
and zoning commissioners, the Morton County Planning Director, and City legal staff.  
The amendments are being proposed for the following reasons: 
 
1) Clarity of procedure is important to the applicant, city staff overseeing and 
facilitating the process, and general public to ensure the integrity of due process. 
 
2) Consolidating procedures of land use applications related to zoning creates 
efficiency for staff by reducing the amount of labor resources required to explain said 
procedure to prospective applicants. 
 
3) Future staff may more easily understand the various land use application 
procedures related to zoning if it is clearly outlined in a step-by-step procedure. 
 
4) Various nuances of each land use application procedure are more easily compared 
when consolidated in one Section and share the same organizational structure. 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval of Ordinance 
1335 as presented in Exhibit 1.   
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 2, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Second and Final Consideration of Ordinance 1335 

related to Zoning Application Procedures 

Resolutions and Ord. No. 1 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Second and Final Consideration of Ordinance 1335 related to Zoning 
Application Procedures 
Page 2 of 2 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – DRAFT Ordinance 1335 related to Zoning Application Procedures 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Ordinance 1335 has been reviewed and approved by both City 
Attorney Brown and Assistant City Attorney Amy Oster.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of 
Ordinance 1335 as presented in Exhibit 1. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1335 related to zoning application procedures as presented in Exhibit 1.  
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 1335 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Sec. 101-1-13 related to Amendments, 
Amend and Re-enact Sec. 105-1-5 related to Special Uses, Amend and Re-enact 
Sec. 105-1-12 related to Board of Adjustment, and Remove Sec. 105-3-1 related 

to Applicability of Standards of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 

WHEREAS, Clarity of procedure is important to the applicant, city staff overseeing and 
facilitating the process, and general public to ensure the integrity of due process; and 

WHEREAS, Consolidating procedures of land use applications related to zoning creates 
efficiency for staff by reducing the amount of labor resources required to explain said procedure 
to prospective applicants; and  

WHEREAS, Future staff may more easily understand the various land use application 
procedures related to zoning if it is clearly outlined in a step-by-step procedure; and 

WHEREAS, Various nuances of each land use application procedure are more easily 
compared when consolidated in one Section and share the same organizational structure.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the 
City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

Section 1.  Sec. 105-1-5 is Amended and Re-enacted. 

Sec. 105-1-5. - Special usesUse Standards. 

(a)  Purpose. In order to carry out the purposes of this chapter, the board of city commissioners 
finds it necessary to require that certain uses, because of unusual size, safety hazards, 
infrequent occurrence, effect on surrounding area or other reasons, include additional 
standards to ensure the health, safety, and overall harmony on and surrounding be reviewed 
by the planning and zoning commission prior to the board voting on whether or not to approve 
the use at a specific site.  

 (b)  Application submittal. An application for a special use shall be submitted to the city planner. 
Whenever possible, applications should be submitted electronically. 

(c)  General provisions. The uses listed in this section are conditional uses that require increased 
investigation before considering approval. 

(1)  The planning and zoning commission must conduct a public hearing on such application, 
notice of the time and place of which hearing has been given in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city at least ten days prior to the date of such hearing. 

(2)  Notices must be mailed at least ten days prior to the hearing to all property owners within 
500 feet of the boundary of the proposed project. 

EXHIBIT 1



 

(3)  In order to give a favorable recommendation, the planning and zoning commission must 
consider the following:  

a.  The proposed use is in harmony with the purpose and intent of this chapter;  
b.  The proposed use is not in conflict with the adopted comprehensive plan of the city;  
c.  The proposed use will not adversely affect the health and safety of the public and the workers 

and residents in the area;  
d.  The proposed use will not be detrimental to the use or development of adjacent properties or 

of the surrounding neighborhood; and  
 e.  The proposed use meets all appropriate regulations for the district in which it will be located.  
(4)  The planning and zoning commission may require the submission of additional plans, special 

studies or reports during review of the application.  
(5)  The planning and zoning commission may recommend special requirements for the proposed 

use. The reasons for the special requirements must be documented.  
(6)  Once the planning and zoning commission has acted, the city commission must hold a public 

hearing and then act to ratify the recommendation of the planning commission, modify the 
recommendation of the planning commission or reject the application.  

(db)  Airports and heliports. An airport may be permitted as a special use in an A agricultural 
district in the extraterritorial zone and a heliport may be permitted as a special use associated 
with a medical facility within the zoning jurisdiction of the city, provided that:  
(1)  The area is sufficient to meet the federal requirements for the class of airport or heliport 

proposed;  
(2)  There are no existing flight obstructions, such as towers, chimneys, or other tall 

structures, or natural obstructions outside the boundaries of the proposed airport or 
heliport which would fall within the approach zone to any of the proposed runways or 
landing strips of the airport or heliport;  

(3)  There is sufficient distance between the end of each useable landing strip and the airport 
boundary to satisfy the requirements of the federal aviation administration or any other 
appropriate authority. In cases where air rights or easements have been acquired from the 
owners of abutting properties, in which approach zones may fall, satisfactory evidence 
thereof shall be submitted with the application;  

(4)  Any building, hangar or other structure shall be at least 100 feet from any street or 
property boundary;  

(5)  Adequate space for off-street parking has been provided. A traffic study must be 
submitted to document the need for the number of spaces proposed; and  

(6)  The application for authorization of an airport or heliport shall be accompanied by plans 
meeting the requirements of the FAA, other regulatory agencies and the city.  

(ec)  Cemetery. A cemetery, mausoleum, or columbarium may be permitted in an industrial or 
A district as a special use, provided that:  
(1)  No graves shall be located less than 100 feet distant from any property line;  



 

(2)  There shall be a strip at least 75 feet in width adjacent to all boundaries of the cemetery 
landscaped and maintained as a green area;  

(3)  In any cemetery in which there will be permitted monuments and grave markers rising 
above the surface of the ground, the green area shall include a dense evergreen hedge at 
least six feet in height; and  

(4)  No mausoleum, columbarium, or cemetery chapel shall be erected within 200 feet of 
any boundary of the lot or parcel on which it is located.  

(fd)  Golf driving range or miniature golf course. A golf driving range or miniature golf course 
may be permitted in an A or industrial district as a special use, provided that:  
(1)  The area within 500 feet of all boundaries of the lot is not developed in residences to a 

greater density than one family per acre;  
(2)  Any flood-lights used to illuminate the premises are so directed and shielded as to 

prevent the direct lighting area from extending beyond the property boundary;  
(3)  When the area within 500 feet of the property boundary is undeveloped, any approval 

is limited to one year and must be renewed annually. If residential development exceeding 
a density of one dwelling unit per acre is approved within this 500-foot area, the approval 
for this use may be withdrawn unless all property owners within the 500-foot area sign 
written consents to allow the use to continue on a year to year basis.  

(ge)  Fire or emergency medical response. A facility providing fire and/or emergency medical 
response services may be permitted in any zoning district as a special use, provided that:  
(1)  Ingress and egress from the street shall be so designed and constructed as to provide 

safe traffic movement. A demand activated traffic control signal for emergency vehicle 
egress from the site may be required,  

(2)  Sufficient parking shall be provided to accommodate the maximum number of personnel 
per shift plus at least two visitor spaces; and,  

(3)  If the use is approved, landscaping, signage and design of the building exterior shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Mandan Architectural Review Commission.  

(hf)  Day care center. A day care center is a facility providing services to more than 12 children 
or any number of adults. A day care center requires a special use approval and must comply 
with the following criteria:  
(1)  The facility must receive state approval before an occupancy permit can be issued;  
(2)  For a facility catering to children, each building shall provide not less than 35 square 

feet of interior play area per child;  
(3)  For a facility catering to children, a fenced outdoor play area of not less than 75 square 

feet per child shall be provided that is located no closer than ten feet to an adjoining 
residential lot;  

(4)  For a facility catering to adults, there shall be an outdoor lawn area and covered porch 
offering either active recreation or passive activities for groups or individuals;  

(5)  As a minimum, onsite parking shall be provided at the ratio of one space per manager 
and employee per shift plus one space for each 12 clients; and  



 

(6)  Drop off and pickup of clients shall be in an area off the public street that is separate 
from parking spaces.  

(ig)  Correctional facility. A correctional facility may be permitted in an industrial or A district 
as a special use, provided that:  
(1)  The facility fronts on an arterial street;  
(2)  There are no churches, schools or residentially developed property within 500 feet;  
(3)  The primary illumination field for exterior lighting shall not extend beyond the property 

boundary;  
(4)  No building shall be closer than 35 feet to any property line; and  
(5)  As a minimum, onsite parking shall be provided at a ratio of one space for each 

employee per shift plus one space per four inmates.  
(jh)  Drug or alcohol outpatient treatment or counseling facility. A drug or alcohol outpatient 

treatment or counseling facility may be permitted as a special use in a regional commercial, 
industrial or A district and must comply with the following criteria:  
(1)  The facility fronts on an arterial street;  
(2)  As a minimum, onsite parking shall be provided at a ratio of one space for each 

employee per shift plus one space per two clients per hour;  
(3)  Hours of operation are limited to between 6:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.;  
(4)  The facility is no closer than 1,000 feet to a school, daycare facility or residentially 

developed property; and  
(5)  The facility is no closer than 500 feet to an establishment selling alcohol.  

(k)  [Reserved.]  

(Code 1957, § 14-0210; Code 1994, § 21-03-08; Ord. No. 534, § 1, 1976; Ord. No. 535, § 4, 
1976; Ord. No. 610, § 1, 1979; Ord. No. 636, § 2, 1981; Ord. No. 657, § 2, 1982; Ord. No. 923, § 
3, 7-17-2001; Ord. No. 963, § 7, 6-17-2003; Ord. No. 1223, § 7, 11-3-2015; Ord. No. 1299, §§ 3, 
4, 4-16-2019; Ord. No. 1320, § 1, 9-3-2019)  

 
Section 2.  Sec. 105-1-12 is Amended and Re-enacted.  
 

Sec. 105-1-12. - Board of Adjustment.  
(a)  The board of city commissioners may create a board of adjustment as authorized by 

N.D.C.C. or may perform the functions themselves.  
(b)  The board of adjustment is an administrative board whose powers and duties are limited 

generally by state laws and particularly by the powers and duties set forth in this section. 
The board of adjustment shall not have the power to amend this chapter on zoning, nor to 
permit nor prohibit any actions which accomplish an amendment of this chapter on 
zoning, nor to permit any action nor fail to prohibit any action which would violate this 
chapter. However, it is the declared intent of this section that any actions taken by the 



 

board of adjustment, in full compliance with the provisions of this section, shall be 
deemed to be administrative actions and shall not be interpreted as unauthorized 
amendments to the chapter. In addition to the powers provided by law, the board of 
adjustment shall have the following powers and duties:  

(1)  Variances. On appeal from an order, requirement, decision or determination made by 
an administrative official, the board of adjustment may vary or adjust the strict application 
of any of the requirements of this chapter in the case of an exceptionally irregular, narrow, 
shallow or steep lot or other exceptional physical or topographical condition, by reason 
of which the strict application of the provisions of the chapter would result in unnecessary 
hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the land or building 
involved, but in no other case. 

 a.  On appeal from an order, requirement, decision or determination made by an 
administrative official, the board of adjustment may vary or adjust the strict application 
of any of the requirements of this chapter in the case of an exceptionally irregular, narrow, 
shallow or steep lot or other exceptional physical or topographical condition, by reason 
of which the strict application of the provisions of the chapter would result in unnecessary 
hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the land or building 
involved, but in no other case.  

b.  No adjustment in the strict application of any provisions of this chapter shall be granted 
by the board of adjustment unless it finds that:  

1.  There are special circumstances or conditions, fully described in the findings of the board, 
applying to the land or buildings for which the variance is sought, which circumstances 
or conditions are peculiar to such land or building, and do not apply generally to land or 
buildings in the neighborhood, and have not resulted from any act of the applicant taken 
subsequent to the adoption of this chapter, whether in violation of the provisions of the 
chapter, or not;  

2.  For reasons fully set forth in the findings of the board, the circumstances or conditions 
so found are such that the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would deprive 
the applicant of the reasonable use of said land or building, and the granting of the 
variance is necessary for the reasonable use of the land or building, and that the variance 
as granted by the board is the minimum variance that will accomplish the relief sought 
by the applicant;  

3.  The grant of the variance will be in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this 
chapter, and not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public 
welfare.  

(2)  Conditional variance. In granting any variance, the board of adjustment shall prescribe 
any conditions applying thereto that it may deem necessary or desirable to carry out the 
general purposes of this chapter or preserve the neighborhood or general welfare from 
injury.  

(3)  Allocation of unlisted uses. Upon application of a property owner, or upon a request of 
the building official or other administrative official or of any official, agency or board of 
the city, or on its own initiative, the board of adjustment shall add to any use group 



 

established by section 105-1-4, any other similar use which conforms to the conditions 
set forth in the special finding required and listed in this subsection:  

a.  Such use is not listed in any other use group, nor is it listed individually as a permitted 
use.  

b.  Such use is more appropriate in the use group to which it is added than in any other use 
group.  

c.  Such use conforms to the basic characteristics of the use group to which it is added as set 
forth in the general description of the use group.  

d.  Such use does not adversely affect the character of any of the districts in which the use 
group to which it is added is permitted.  

e.  Such use is not likely to create any more traffic than the other uses listed in the use group 
to which it is added, nor does it create any more offensive noise, vibration, dust, heat, 
smoke, odor, glare, health or safety hazard or other objectionable influence than the 
minimum amount normally resulting from the other uses listed in the use group to which 
it is added.  

f.  When any use has been added to any use group in accordance with the procedure set forth 
in this section, such use shall thereafter be deemed to be permitted in any district in which 
such use group is permitted, and to be prohibited from any district in which such use 
group is prohibited. Such use shall be added to the use group in the published text of this 
chapter at the first convenient opportunity, with a notation indicating that the addition 
was made in accordance with this section.  

(4)  Renewal of certificate of occupancy for nonconforming use. The board of adjustment 
shall have the power to renew a certificate of occupancy for nonconforming use in 
accordance with the provisions of section 105-1-1. In granting such renewal, the board of 
adjustment shall determine that the temporary continuation will not be injurious to the 
neighborhood, nor to the public welfare, and that there are unusual circumstances or 
conditions which would create an unnecessary hardship on the applicant for extension if 
such extension were refused. The board of adjustment may refuse to grant an extension 
to the certificate of occupancy for a nonconforming use if application for such extension 
is received by the board of adjustment less than 15 days prior to the expiration of the 
original certificate of occupancy.  

(5)  Renewal of automatically revoked building permit. Upon appeal by any person holding 
a building permit automatically revoked by the provisions of this Code, the board of 
adjustment shall hear and determine whether or not such revoked building permit will be 
renewed. The board of adjustment shall authorize such renewal only where it specifically 
finds:  

a.  Construction of the building has, in fact, been started.  
b.  Substantial expenditures have been made for such construction.  
c.  The plans for the building and actual construction of the building are in full compliance 

with the zoning ordinances in effect at the date of issuance of the building permit and in 
full compliance with the building code and any other city ordinances.  



 

 (6)  Special uses. The board of adjustment shall, on application, hear a request for a special 
use in accordance with the provisions of section 105-1-5. The board of adjustment shall 
grant a permit for such special use if and only if it finds that such use is in full conformity 
with all standards relating thereto as specified in section 105-1-5, and with any other 
conditions, regulations and standards specified elsewhere in this chapter and applicable 
to said special use.  

(76)  Off-street parking. The board of adjustment shall, upon application, hear and decide 
any question relating to the decrease of required off-street parking or off-street loading 
spaces, as set forth in section 105-1-6.  

(78)  Airport zoning. The board of adjustment shall have all powers and duties granted to it 
by this chapter relating to airport zoning regulation.  

(89)  Recommendations to planning and zoning commission. The board of adjustment is 
authorized to recommend to the city planning and zoning commission, for study or action, 
any changes or amendments to the text or district zoning maps that the board finds 
desirable. The planning and zoning commission shall consider such recommendations 
and may prepare appropriate amendments for the consideration of the board of city 
commissioners to carry out said recommendation.  

(910)  Special permit for large-scale development. The board of adjustment shall hear and 
pass upon an application for a special permit for a large-scale development in accordance 
with the provisions of section 105-4-5.  

(101)  Miscellaneous powers and duties. The board of adjustment shall have such other 
powers and duties as may be authorized by this chapter, or any amendment thereto.  

(112)  Rules. The board of adjustment is authorized to establish such rules of procedure, not 
in conflict with any provisions of the laws of this state, this chapter, or any other ordinance 
of the city, as it may deem necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.  

(Code 1957, § 14-0224; Code 1994, § 21-06-02) 

 
Section 3.  Sec. 105-1-13 is Amended and Re-enacted.   
 
Sec. 105-1-13. - Zoning Application ProceduresAmendments.  

 Whenever the public necessity, convenience, general welfare or good zoning practice 
requires, the board of city commissioners may amend, supplement or change the regulations in the 
zoning ordinance, or the zoning boundaries or classification of property on the zoning map, as set 
forth in this chapter.  

(a)  Initiation of amendments. A proposed amendment may be initiated by the board of city 
commissioners upon its own motion, or upon receipt of a request therefor from the 
planning and zoning commission, or upon receipt of a petition therefor from any 
interested person or their agents.  

(b)  Report by planning and zoning commission; public hearing. The board shall require a 
report from the planning and zoning commission on a proposed amendment before taking 
final action thereon. The planning and zoning commission shall thereupon make a 



 

tentative report and hold a public hearing thereon with notice the same as required for a 
public hearing by the board of city commissioners, before submitting its final report. Such 
final report shall be submitted within 90 days of the referral of the proposed amendment 
to the planning and zoning commission unless the board is agreeable to an extension of 
time.  

(c)  Action by board of city commissioners; public hearing. After the receipt of the required 
final report on any amendment from the planning and zoning commission, or in the event 
of the failure of the planning and zoning commission to so report within 90 days following 
the time of referral of the proposed amendment to the planning and zoning commission, 
the board shall hold a public hearing, after which the board may make a final 
determination on the proposed amendment. A hearing shall be granted to any person 
interested at the time and place specified.  

(a) General Provisions.  
 

(1) Purpose.  The following Section outlines the requirements and procedures for land 
use applications that fall within the purview of Chapter 105.  Specific application and 
procedural requirements for planned unit developments and large-scale developments 
shall follow those provided within Sec. 105-4-3 and Sec. 105-4-5 respectively.  
 

(2) Definitions.  For the meanings of zoning terms or words not found in Section 101-1-3 
related to definitions, the city staff shall rely upon the latest A Planners Dictionary, 
edited by Michael Davidson and Fay Dolnick, American Planning Association and 
Planning Advisory Service, for interpretation purposes.   

 
(3) Complete Application.  A complete application shall include the following: 

 
a. Development application as established by the Engineering and Planning 

Department. 

b. Fee, as established by the board of city commissioners. 
 

c. Site plan. 
 

d. Letter of intent containing: 
 

1. A summary of the purpose for the application; and 

2. How negative externalities resulting from the change in land use will 
be addressed. 

e. Additional submittals as required by the respective land use application that 
falls within the purview of this Section. 



 

f. Additional plans, studies, or other information as may be required from time 
to time from the Planning and Zoning Commission or city staff. 

(4) Period of Review.  The planning office shall review a submitted application within 
ten (10) business days to determine whether an application is complete.  If the 
application is determined to be a complete application, the planning office shall notify 
the applicant or applicant representative of the determination and the application shall 
be considered accepted.  If the application is determined to be incomplete, the 
planning office shall notify the applicant or applicant representative of the missing 
components necessary to consider the application complete.   

 

(b) Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment.  Whenever the public necessity, convenience, 
general welfare, or good zoning practice requires, the board of city commissioners may 
amend, supplement, or change the zoning boundaries or classification of property on the 
zoning map as set forth in this Section. 

(1) Initiation of Amendments. A proposed zoning map amendment as described in 
Section 105-2-2 may be initiated by the board of city commissioners upon its own 
motion, or upon receipt of a request therefor from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, or upon receipt of a petition therefor from any interested person or their 
agents. 

(2) Additional Submittals.  A zoning ordinance map amendment application shall include 
the following additional submittals: 

a. Map or written statement evidencing conformity with the future land use map 
of the City of Mandan Land Use and Transportation Plan and/or any 
corresponding goals, objectives, policies, and other information contained 
therein.  Evidence of conformity shall include:   

1. Where the requested zoning district(s) aligns with the future land use 
map designation(s); OR 
 

2. Where two or more future land use map designations apply to an area 
that is part of the application for a zoning ordinance map amendment 
and only one future land use map designation aligns with the requested 
zoning district, the applicant shall outline how the application also aligns 
with the goals, objectives, policies, and other information contained 
within the City of Mandan Land Use and Transportation Plan; OR 

 



 

3. If no future land use designations apply to the area that is part of the 
zoning ordinance map amendment, the applicant shall be required to 
successfully amend the future land use map as outlined in this Section.    

b. An ESRI shapefile (.shp) of the zoning ordinance map amendment area 
projected in spatial reference well-known ID (WKID) 102721.  

c. Map of area, including the subject property and surrounding three-hundred 
(300) feet.  The map shall include the current and proposed zoning of the 
subject property and neighboring property’s current zoning, including street 
names and base aerial imagery for reference.  If the nearest road is greater 
than three-hundred (300) feet from the subject property, the map shall be 
scaled back to incorporate the nearest street intersection for reference but is 
not required to include zoning information for properties outside the three-
hundred (300) foot surrounding area.       

(3) Complete Application Received.  A complete application shall be received no less 
than 30 days prior to the desired planning and zoning commission meeting date.   

(4) Public Hearing Noticing Requirements.  Notice of the hearings described in 
subsections 5 and 6 must be published once a week for two successive weeks before 
the time set for the hearing in the official newspaper of the city.  Property owners 
within three-hundred (300) feet of the boundary of the area of the proposed 
amendment shall be notified by mail.  The property owner notice requirement shall be 
considered to be met if reasonable effort is made to contact applicable property 
owners, even if some are inadvertently omitted from notification.  The notice must 
contain the following items:  

a. The time and place of the hearing.  

b. A description of any property involved in any zoning change, by street 
address if streets have been platted or designated in the area affected.  

c. A description of the nature, scope, and purpose of the proposed regulation, 
restriction, or boundary.  

d. A statement of the times at which the application will be available to the 
public for inspection and copying at the office of the city auditor or his/her 
designee. 

(5) Planning and Zoning Public Hearing Required.  The planning and zoning commission 
shall hold a public hearing to review the application for a zoning ordinance map 
amendment.  The planning and zoning commission may recommend approval, 
recommend approval with restrictions, recommend denial, or table the public hearing 



 

to a future date.  A recommendation shall include or reference findings of fact related 
to the application and forwarded to the board of city commissioners.  A motion to 
table the application to a future date shall be limited to no longer than 60 days.   

(6) City Commission Public Hearing Required – First Consideration.  The board of city 
commissioners shall hold a public hearing no sooner than is possible to follow the 
public hearing noticing requirements.  The public hearing shall be the first 
consideration of the ordinance.  The board of city commissioners may approve, 
approve with restrictions, deny, or table the public hearing to a future date.  A 
decision shall include or reference findings of fact related to the application.  A 
motion to table the application to a future date shall be limited to no longer than 60 
days.  A decision to deny the application is final and no second consideration is 
required.  If substantial changes to the zoning map amendment are required the public 
hearing shall be repeated and follow the public hearing noticing requirements.            

(7) City Commission Public Meeting Required – Second Consideration.  The board of 
city commissioners shall hold a public meeting no sooner than ten (10) days 
following the first consideration of the zoning ordinance map amendment.  The 
zoning ordinance map amendment shall not substantially differ from that presented at 
the preceding public hearing.  The board of city commissioners may, at their 
discretion, hear public testimony related to the application.  The board of city 
commissioners may approve, approve with restrictions, deny, or table the public 
hearing to a future date.  A decision shall include or reference findings of fact related 
to the application.  A motion to table the application to a future date shall be limited 
to no longer than 60 days.  A decision to deny the application is final.    

(8) Required Vote for Passage.  If a protest against an amendment is signed by the 
owners of twenty percent or more: 

a. Of the area of the lots included in such proposed change; or 

b. Of the area adjacent, extending one-hundred-fifty (150) feet from the area to 
be changed, excluding the width of streets,  

the amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of four of the 
five members of the governing body of the city.   

(9) Restrictions.  Zoning ordinance map amendments which list allowable uses shall not 
be construed to be permission to conduct uses in perpetuity.  Listed allowable uses 
shall be further limited by any zoning ordinance text amendment that affects, 
excludes, alters, or relates to a use contained in said list.  The required land use 
application procedure shall be followed per Chapter 105 DISTRICT 
REGULATIONS (ZONING) at the time of initiation of any use.     



 

(10) Evaluative Criteria.  In order to provide a favorable recommendation by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission or final decision by the board of city 
commissioners, the following must be considered: 

a. How the proposed zoning district aligns with the City of Mandan Land Use 
and Transportation Plan and other plans as may be adopted by the board of 
city commissioners.  Alignment includes: 

1. Fulfilling the goals, objectives, and policies of the future land use plan; 

2. Fulfilling the goals, objectives, and policies of other plans as may be 
adopted by the city; and 

3. Fulfillment of the zoning-future land use crosswalk where one is 
adopted by the planning and zoning commission. 

(c) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  Whenever the public necessity, convenience, 
general welfare or good zoning practice requires, the board of city commissioners may 
amend, supplement, or change the regulations in the zoning ordinance as set forth in this 
Section. 

(1) Initiation of Amendments. A proposed zoning text amendment may be initiated by 
the board of city commissioners, Planning and Zoning Commission, the planning 
office, or any interested person or their agent.   

(2) Additional Submittals.  A zoning text amendment application shall include the 
following additional submittals: 

a. Summary of the goal(s) intended to be achieved by the amendment; and 

b. Word document with tracked changes enabled, showing all mark-up of the 
existing ordinance and proposed changes. 

(3) Complete Application Received.  A complete application shall be received no less 
than 30 days prior to the desired planning and zoning commission meeting date.   

(4) Public Hearing Noticing Requirements.  Notice of the hearing must be published once 
a week for two successive weeks before the time set for the hearing in the official 
newspaper of the city.  The notice must contain the following items:  

a. The time and place of the hearing.  

b. A description of the nature, scope, and purpose of the proposed regulation, 
restriction, or boundary.  



 

c. A statement of the times at which the application will be available to the 
public for inspection and copying at the office of the city auditor or his/her 
designee. 

(5) Planning and Zoning Public Hearing Required.  The planning and zoning commission 
shall hold a public hearing to review the application for a zoning ordinance text 
amendment.  The planning and zoning commission may recommend approval, 
recommend approval subject to changes, recommend denial, or table the public 
hearing to a future date.  A motion to table the application to a future date is limited 
to no longer than 60 days.   

(6) City Commission Public Hearing Required – First Consideration.  The board of city 
commissioners shall hold a public hearing no sooner than is possible to follow the 
public hearing noticing requirements.  The public hearing shall be the first 
consideration of the ordinance.  The board of city commissioners may approve, 
approve subject to changes, deny, or table the public hearing to a future date.  A 
motion to table the application to a future date shall be limited to no longer than 60 
days.  A decision to deny the application is final and no second consideration is 
required.  If substantial changes to the ordinance are required the public hearing shall 
be repeated and follow the public hearing noticing requirements.            

(7) City Commission Public Meeting Required – Second Consideration.  The board of 
city commissioners shall hold a public meeting no sooner than ten (10) days 
following the first consideration of the zoning ordinance text amendment.  The 
zoning ordinance text amendment shall not substantially differ from that presented at 
the preceding public hearing.  The board of city commissioners may, at their 
discretion, hear public testimony related to the application.  The board of city 
commissioners may approve, approve subject to changes, deny, or table the public 
hearing to a future date.  A motion to table the application to a future date shall be 
limited to no longer than 60 days.  A decision to deny the application is final.  

(8) Evaluative Criteria.  In order to provide a favorable recommendation by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission or final decision by the board of city commissioners, the 
following must be considered: 

a. How the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment serves the public 
interest; and 

b. How the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment aligns with the goals, 
objectives, and policies outlined in the City of Mandan Land Use and 
Transportation Plan and other plans as may be adopted by the board of city 
commissioners. 



 

(d) Conditional/Special Use Permit.  In order to carry out the purposes of this chapter, the 
board of city commissioners finds it necessary to require that certain uses, because of 
unusual size, safety hazards, infrequent occurrence, effect on surrounding area or other 
reasons, be reviewed by the planning and zoning commission prior to the board voting on 
whether or not to approve the use at a specific site. 

(1) Additional Submittals.  A special or conditional use permit application shall include 
the following additional submittals: 

a. An answer with explanation for each of the following questions: 

1. Will the proposed use be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained 
so as to be compatible in appearance with the existing or intended 
character of the neighborhood?  

2. Will the proposed use involve activities, processes, materials, equipment, 
or conditions of operation that will be incompatible with the 
neighborhood due to the production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, 
or odors?  

3. Will the hours of operation of the proposed use be different than the 
adjacent uses?  

4. Will the proposed use require exterior lighting of a type and intensity 
greater than the adjacent uses?  

5. Will the site of the proposed use have sufficient area to provide the 
parking required for the use?  

6. Will the proposed use require adjustments to the normal lot size, height, 
and setback requirements of the district?  

(2) Complete Application Received.  A complete application shall be received no less 
than 30 days prior to the desired planning and zoning commission meeting date.   

(3) Public Hearing Noticing Requirements.  Notice of the hearing must be published at 
least ten (10) days before the time set for the hearing in the official newspaper of the 
city.  Property owners within five-hundred (500) feet of the boundary of the area of 
the proposed conditional use shall be notified by mail.  The property owner notice 
requirement shall be considered to be met if reasonable effort is made to contact 
applicable property owners, even if some are inadvertently omitted from notification.  
The notice must contain the following items:  

a. The time and place of the hearing.  

b. A description of the nature, scope, and purpose of development requiring a 
special use permit.   



 

c. A statement of the times at which the application will be available to the 
public for inspection and copying at the office of the city auditor or his/her 
designee. 

(4) Planning and Zoning Public Hearing Required.  The planning and zoning commission 
shall hold a public hearing to review the application for a special use permit.  The 
planning and zoning commission may recommend approval, recommend approval 
with conditions, deny, or table the public hearing to a future date.  A recommendation 
to approve or approve with conditions shall include or reference findings of fact 
related to the application and forwarded to the board of city commissioners.  
Conditions of approval shall be related and roughly proportional to mitigate negative 
externalities affecting nearby property owners and the general public and to fulfill the 
intent of the adopted plans of the City.  A decision to table the application to a future 
date shall be limited to no longer than 60 days.  A decision to deny is final.     

(5) City Commission Ratification of Approval Required.  If the planning and zoning 
commission recommends to approve or approve with conditions and no appeal is filed 
as provided in this Section, the action by the board of city commissioners may be by 
consent.  The board of city commissioners may approve, approve with conditions, 
deny, or table the item to a future date.  Conditions of approval shall be related and 
roughly proportional to mitigate negative externalities affecting nearby property 
owners and the general public and to fulfill the intent of the adopted plans of the City.  
A motion to table the item to a future date shall be limited to no longer than 60 days.  
A decision to deny is final.   

(6) Evaluative Criteria.  In order to provide a favorable recommendation by the planning 
and zoning commission or final decision by the board of city commissioners, the 
following must be considered: 

a. The proposed use is in harmony with the purpose and intent of this chapter;  

b. The proposed use is not in conflict with the adopted comprehensive plan of 
the city;  

c. The proposed use will not adversely affect the health, safety, and general 
welfare of the public and the workers and residents in the area;  

d. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the use or development of 
adjacent properties or of the surrounding neighborhood;  

e. The proposed use meets all appropriate regulations for the district in which it 
will be located; 



 

f. The proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a 
natural, scenic, or historic feature of importance to the community; 

g. The proposed use includes adequate screening or buffering to compensate for 
any departure that the proposed use has from existing adjacent uses; and 

h. The proposed use includes adequate provisions for those individuals who are 
mobility impaired.   

(7) Permit Expiration.  Conditional/special use approval is valid for one year.  Should a 
building permit not be issued within one year of receiving special/conditional use 
approval from the city commission, the approval will lapse.  An extension may be 
granted by the board of city commissioners upon receipt of a written request prior to 
the one-year expiration.   

 
(e) Zoning Variance.  On appeal from an order, requirement, decision, or determination 

made by an administrative official, the board of city commissioners may vary or adjust 
the strict application of any of the requirements of this chapter in the case of an 
exceptionally irregular, narrow, shallow, or steep lot or other exceptional physical or 
topographical condition, by reason of which the strict application of the provisions of the 
chapter would result in unnecessary hardship that would deprive the owner of a 
reasonable use of the land or building involved, but in no other case.     

(1) Additional Submittals.  A zoning variance application shall include the following 
additional submittals: 

a. Detailed statement including the following: 

1. The circumstances or conditions applying to the land or buildings for 
which the variance is sought;  

2. How the applicant is deprived of a reasonable use of said land or 
building;  

3. How the grant of a variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or 
otherwise detrimental to the public welfare; and   

4. The minimum variance that will accomplish the relief sought.  

(2) Complete Application Received.  A complete application shall be received no less 
than 30 days prior to the desired planning and zoning commission meeting date.   

(3) Public Hearing Noticing Requirements.  Notice of the hearing must be published at 
least ten (10) days before the time set for the hearing in the official newspaper of the 
city.  Property owners within one-hundred-fifty (150) feet of the boundary of the area 



 

of the proposed variance shall be notified by mail.  The property owner notice 
requirement shall be considered to be met if reasonable effort is made to contact 
applicable property owners, even if some are inadvertently omitted from notification.  
The notice must contain the following items:  

a. The time and place of the hearing.  

b. A description of the nature, scope, and purpose of the variance request.    

c. A statement of the times at which the application will be available to the 
public for inspection and copying at the office of the city auditor or his/her 
designee. 

(4) Planning and Zoning Public Hearing Required.  The planning and zoning commission 
shall hold a public hearing to review the application for a variance.  The planning and 
zoning commission may recommend approval, recommend approval with conditions, 
recommend denial, or table the public hearing to a future date.  A recommendation 
shall include or reference findings of fact related to the application and forwarded to 
the board of city commissioners.  Conditions of approval shall be related and roughly 
proportional to mitigate negative externalities affecting nearby property owners and 
the general public and to fulfill the intent of the adopted plans of the City.  A motion 
to table the application to a future date shall be limited to no longer than 60 days.   

(5) City Commission Public Hearing Required.  The board of city commissioners shall 
hold a public hearing no sooner than is possible to follow the public hearing noticing 
requirements.  The board of city commissioners may approve, approve with 
conditions, deny, or table the public hearing to a future date.  Conditions of approval 
shall be related and roughly proportional to mitigate negative externalities affecting 
nearby property owners and the general public and to fulfill the intent of the adopted 
plans of the City.  A motion to table the application to a future date shall be limited to 
no longer than 60 days.  A decision to deny the variance is final.   

(6) Evaluative Criteria.  No adjustment in the strict application of any provisions of this 
chapter shall be recommended by the planning and zoning commission or granted by 
the board of city commissioners unless it finds that: 

a. There are special circumstances or conditions, fully described in the findings 
of the board, applying to the land or buildings for which the variance is 
sought, which circumstances or conditions are peculiar to such land or 
building, and do not apply generally to land or buildings in the neighborhood, 
and have not resulted from any act of the applicant taken subsequent to the 
adoption of this chapter, whether in violation of the provisions of the chapter, 
or not;  



 

b. For reasons fully set forth in the findings of the board, the circumstances or 
conditions so found are such that the strict application of the provisions of this 
chapter would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of said land or 
building, and the granting of the variance is necessary for the reasonable use 
of the land or building, and that the variance as granted by the board is the 
minimum variance that will accomplish the relief sought by the applicant; and 

c. The grant of the variance will be in harmony with the general purposes and 
intent of this chapter, and not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise 
detrimental to the public welfare. 

(f) Future Land Use Map/Plan Amendment.   

(1) Initiation of Amendments. A proposed future land use map/plan amendment may be 
initiated by the board of city commissioners upon its own motion, or upon receipt of a 
request therefor from the Planning and Zoning Commission, or upon receipt of a 
petition therefor from any interested person or their agents.  The amendments are 
limited to the planned land uses for a subject property and do not include amendments 
to other components of the Land Use and Transportation Plan or other plans that have 
been adopted by the city.      

(2) Additional Submittals.  A future land use map amendment application shall include 
the following additional submittals: 

a. An explanation of how the application aligns with the goals, objectives, 
policies, and other information contained within the City of Mandan Land Use 
and Transportation Plan and other plans adopted by the city; and 

b. How any amendment, if approved, would not further create potential for 
disharmonious adjacent land uses; and  

c. An ESRI shapefile (.shp) of the future land use map amendment area and 
projected in spatial reference well-known ID (WKID) 102721.  

(3) Complete Application Received.  A complete application shall be received no less 
than 30 days prior to the desired planning and zoning commission meeting date.   

(4) Public Hearing Noticing Requirements.  Notice of the hearing must be published once 
a week for two successive weeks before the time set for the hearing in the official 
newspaper of the city.  Property owners within five-hundred (500) feet of the 
boundary of the area of the proposed amendment shall be notified by mail.  The 
property owner notice requirement shall be considered to be met if reasonable effort 
is made to contact applicable property owners, even if some are inadvertently omitted 
from notification.  The notice must contain the following items:  



 

a. The time and place of the hearing.  

b. A description of any property involved in any future land use map 
amendment, by street address if streets have been platted or designated in the 
area affected.  

c. A description of the nature, scope, and purpose of the proposed regulation, 
restriction, or boundary.  

d. A statement of the times at which the application will be available to the 
public for inspection and copying at the office of the city auditor or his/her 
designee. 

(5) Planning and Zoning Public Hearing Required.  The planning and zoning commission 
shall hold a public hearing to review the application for a future land use map 
amendment.  The planning and zoning commission may approve, deny, or table the 
public hearing to a future date.  The adoption of the amendment shall be by a 
resolution of the commission carried by the affirmative votes of not less than two-
thirds of the members thereof.  An attested copy of the amendment shall be certified 
to the governing body of the municipality, if approved.  A decision shall include or 
reference findings of fact related to the application.  A motion to table the application 
to a future date shall be limited to no longer than 60 days.  A decision to deny the 
land use amendment or failure to approve the amendment by the affirmative of at 
least two-thirds of the members is final. 

(6) City Commission Public Hearing Required.  The board of city commissioners shall 
hold a public hearing no sooner than is possible to follow the public hearing noticing 
requirements.  No change or addition to the master plan or any part of it as adopted by 
the planning commission shall be made by the governing body until the proposed 
change or addition shall have been referred to the planning commission for report 
thereon and an attested copy of the commission's report is filed with the governing 
body. The failure of the planning commission to report within thirty days after the 
date of the request for the report by the governing body shall be deemed to be an 
approval by the commission of the additions or changes. If the additions or changes 
are disapproved by the commission, a two-thirds vote of the entire governing body   
shall be necessary to pass any ordinance overruling such disapproval. The board of 
city commissioners may approve, deny, or table the public hearing to a future date.  A 
motion to table the application to a future date shall be limited to no longer than 60 
days.  A decision to deny the land use amendment is final.   

(7) Evaluative Criteria.  In order to provide a favorable decision, the following must be 
considered: 



 

a. Does the proposed amendment align with the goals, objectives, policies, and 
other information contained within the City of Mandan Land Use and 
Transportation Plan and other plans adopted by the city; and 

b. Will the amendment, if approved, further create potential for disharmonious 
adjacent land uses; and 

c. Does the amendment contribute toward the general purpose of guiding and 
accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted, and harmonious development of the 
municipality and its environs, which, in accordance with present and future 
needs, best will promote the amenities of life, health, safety, morals, order, 
convenience, prosperity, and general welfare as well as efficiency and 
economy in the process of development, including adequate provision for 
light and air, distribution of population, good civic design and arrangement, 
wise and efficient expenditure of public funds, the adequate provision of 
public utilities and other public requirements, the improvement and control of 
architecture, and the general embellishment of the area under its jurisdiction.  

(g) Request for Reconsideration.   

(1) Request for Reconsideration.  The applicant who originally initiated the application 
may file a one-time appeal with the city planner within thirty (30) days of the final 
decision for land use applications contained in Chapter 105.  The request shall be of 
reconsideration of a final decision by the board of city commissioners.   

(2) Complete Application.  The request for reconsideration shall include a complete 
summary of the reasons for the request, including any new evidence or information if 
applicable. Public Hearing Noticing Requirements.  Public and neighboring property 
owner noticing of the hearing must follow the public hearing noticing requirements of 
the respective land use application for the hearing body for which a final decision is 
rendered.  The property owner notice requirement shall be considered to be met if 
reasonable effort is made to contact applicable property owners, even if some are 
inadvertently omitted from notification.  The notice must contain the following items:  

a. The time and place of the hearing;  

b. A description of any property involved in the request, by street address if 
streets have been platted or designated in the area affected;  

c. A description of the nature, scope, and purpose of the proposed regulation, 
restriction, or boundary; and  



 

d. A statement of the times at which the application will be available to the 
public for inspection and copying at the office of the city auditor or his/her 
designee. 

(3) Public Hearing Required.  The board of city commissioners shall hold a public 
hearing no sooner than is possible to follow the public hearing noticing requirements 
of the respective land use application of the hearing body for which a final decision is 
rendered.  The board of city commissioners may approve, approve with conditions, 
deny, or table the public hearing to a future date.  Conditions of approval shall be 
related and roughly proportional to mitigate negative externalities affecting nearby 
property owners and the general public and to fulfill the intent of the adopted plans of 
the City.  A motion to table the application to a future date shall be limited to no 
longer than 60 days.  A decision rendered for the request for reconsideration is final, 
and any further appeals must be made to the district court.   

If a request for reconsideration results in reversing a denied zoning ordinance map or 
text amendment, the zoning ordinance map or text amendment will be considered an 
approval of the first consideration, and a second consideration is required subject to 
the procedures outlined in this Section.         

(Code 1957, §§ 14-0223, 14-0226; Code 1994, §§ 21-06-01, 21-07-01, 21-07-02)  

State Law reference— Board of adjustment and appeals, N.D.C.C. § 40-47-07 et seq.; 
amendments to zoning ordinances, N.D.C.C. § 40-47-05.  

 

Section 3.  Sec. 105-3-1 related to applicability of standards is removed.     
 
 Sec. 105-3-1. -– Reserved.Applicability of standards.  

(a)  When making computations to determine compliance with these standards, where appropriate, the 
result shall be rounded to the nearest whole number. Where a standard sets a minimum requirement, 
the computation shall not be rounded.  

(b)  Conditional uses are to be evaluated on the following criteria to the extent applicable to the proposed 
conditional use:  

(1)  Does the proposed use meet the goals and objectives for the area as expressed in the adopted 
comprehensive plan?  

(2)  Will the proposed use be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be compatible 
in appearance with the existing or intended character of the neighborhood?  

(3)  Will the proposed use be served adequately by essential facilities and services including streets, 
police and fire protection, drainage, refuse disposal, potable water and sanitary sewer services, 
emergency services and schools?  

(4)  Will the proposed use not create additional requirements for public facilities and services at public 
cost and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community?  

-_---



 

(5)  Will the proposed use involve activities, processes, materials, equipment or conditions of 
operation that will be incompatible with the neighborhood due to the production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, glare or odors?  

(6)  Will the proposed use have vehicular approaches to the property which do not create traffic 
congestion or interfere with traffic on surrounding public streets?  

(7)  Will the proposed use result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic, or historic 
feature of importance to the community?  

(8)  Will the proposed use depreciate surrounding property values?  

(9)  Will the hours of operation of the proposed use be different than the adjacent uses?  

(10)  Will the proposed use require exterior lighting of a type and intensity greater than the adjacent 
uses?  

(11)  Will the site of the proposed use have sufficient area to provide the parking required for the 
use?  

(12)  Will the proposed use require adjustments to the normal lot size, height and setback 
requirements of the district?  

(13)  Has adequate provision been made for those individuals who are mobility impaired?  

(14)  Will screening or buffering be required to compensate for any departure that the proposed use 
has from existing adjacent uses?  

(c)  When recommending approval of a conditional use, the planning and zoning commission may specify 
certain design parameters to be applied to the approval.  

(d)  Conditional uses approved by the planning and zoning commission shall be ratified by the city 
commission.  

(e)  Should any person object to the approval by the planning and zoning commission of a conditional 
use, they may file an appeal as provided for in Chapter 101, Article 3.  

(f)  If an appeal is filed and the appeal is scheduled for consideration by the city commission, the action 
on the appeal by the city commission shall be taken after holding a public hearing.  

(g)  If no appeal of a planning and zoning recommendation for a conditional use is received, the action by 
the city commission may be by consent.  

(h)  Conditional use approval is valid for one year. Should a building permit not be issued within one year 
of receiving conditional use approval from the city commission, the approval will lapse.  

(Ord. No. 1242, § 5, 12-20-2016)  

 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________ 
James Neubauer, 



 

City Administrator 
 
Planning and Zoning:                                                                         January 27, 2020 
First Consideration:       March 3, 2020 
Second Consideration and Final Passage:    March 17, 2020 
 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of a resolution to sell real property by 
non-exclusive listing agreement and extend the listing agreement with Oaktree Realtors.   

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The listing agreement with Oaktree Realtors is 
nearing its expiration for the first batch of properties listed for sale around this time last 
year.  
 
The resolution in Exhibit 1 would extend the listing agreement date to March 19, 2021 
for all thirty (30) properties presently listed for sale.       
 
To date, the City has sold several properties amounting to over $23,000 in revenue and so 
far resulting in the construction of a new infill residence off of 14th Ave NW.   
 
The sale of non-essential property via listing in the MLS appears to be working well at 
this time and it is recommended that the listing agreement be extended.     
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Resolution to Transfer Real Property by Nonexclusive Listing Agreement – 
Extension 
Exhibit 2 – Listing Agreement Extension 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Positive – Future property tax collections will provide revenue on 
properties currently not producing any tax revenue.       
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal – Each offer will require approval by City Commission.  
Staff time will include summarizing the offer and presenting to City Commission.    
 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 
PREPARATION DATE: March 6, 2020 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM,  
SUBJECT: Resolution to Transfer Real Property by 

Nonexclusive Listing Agreement - Extension  

Resolution and Ord. No. 2 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 17, 2020 
Subject: Resolution to Transfer Real Property by Nonexclusive Listing Agreement - 
Extension 
Page 2 of 2 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  The resolution and contract have been reviewed and approved by 
Attorney Brown.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department, Public Works, and 
Assessing Departments recommend approval of this resolution.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the resolution as presented in Exhibit 1 and 
enter into the contract as presented in Exhibit 2.     
 
 
  



RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER REAL PROPERTY BY 
NONEXCLUSIVE LISTING AGREEMENT 

Board of City Commissioners 
City of Mandan, North Dakota 

WHEREAS, The City has acquired numerous parcels throughout the years; and 

WHEREAS, Certain property has been identified to have no public value; and 

WHEREAS, The time for staff to establish a separate bid and answer inquiries 
related to each property is unmanageable given existing staff responsibilities; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2-4-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan, 
North Dakota provides the option to list property for sale through a real estate broker; and 

WHEREAS, Utilizing a real estate broker will more efficiently place property 
back into private ownership to begin collecting property tax revenue 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of City Commissioners 
of the City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, that, beginning March 17, 2020 
and effective through March 19, 2021, the following shall apply: 

1. The commission rate is 6% of the gross selling price of the respective
property.  The commission may be split 50/50 with another real estate broker.
The minimum commission will be $250 to be split 50/50 by the listing and
buying agent.

2. The City of Mandan reserves the right to reject any and all offers determined
to be insufficient.

3. The property listed in the attached table titles, ” RESOLUTION TO
TRANSFER REAL PROPERTY BY NONEXCLUSIVE LISTING
AGREEMENT” and dated March 17, 2020 shall be listed for sale through the
real estate broker, Oaktree Realtors:

President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 

City Administrator 

EXHIBIT 1



MLS# PARCEL ID STREET ADDRESS List Price
401983 65-5263151 0000 29th St SE 5,000.00$       
401984 65-5263155 0000 Bayside Dr SE 1,000.00$       
401985 65-3302000 0000 5th St NW 10,000.00$         
401989 65-1162000 205 14TH AVE NW 10,000.00$         
401990 65-1161000 207 14TH AVE NW 10,000.00$         
401991 65-1160000 209 14TH AVE NW 10,000.00$         
401992 65-1159000 211 14TH AVE NW 10,000.00$         
401993 65-2595500 306 5TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
401994 65-2596000 308 5TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
401995 65-1451500 308 8TH AVE NE 16,000.00$         
401996 65-2588000 309 6TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
401997 65-1439000 309 8TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
401998 65-2597000 310 5TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
401999 65-2587000 311 6TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
402000 65-3179000 410 3RD AVE NE 15,000.00$         
402001 65-3261000 500 3RD AVE NE 15,000.00$         
402002 65-3260000 501 4TH AVE NE 20,000.00$         
402003 65-3262000 504 3RD AVE NE 10,000.00$         
402004 65-3263000 506 3RD AVE NE 20,000.00$         
402005 65-3337000 601 4TH AVE NW 12,500.00$         
404306 652971000 0000 2nd St NW 5,000.00$          
404317 653286000 604 1st Ave NE 1,000.00$          
404312 654434500 35A Horseshoe Bend NW 1,000.00$          
404310 654425500 26A Roughrider Cl W 1,500.00$          
404311 654429500 30A Roughrider Cl NW 1,500.00$          
404318 654406500 8A Wagonwheel Cl NW 500.00$        
404309 654423500 24A Roughrider Cl W 2,500.00$          
404313 654435500 36A Horseshoe Bend NW 1,000.00$          
404315 654402500 4A Wagonwheel Cl NW 500.00$        
404307 654410000 0000 Roughrider Cl E 500.00$        

RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER 
REAL PROPERTY BY 

NONEXCLUSIVE LISTING 
AGREEMENT

Date: March 17, 2020

I 



������ �	�
�� ���
�������� ������ ����� �� ���������

��� �  �!"

#��$"�!% ����"��
����� 	
� 	� ��� �		��
� �	���� ��&��'"� &�(" )""� ���" )% ����"�

*����� ���
���� ��������
� ������
� �
��	�  ���
��	
� ��� �!�"��� �	 �!���+,

�#-"��" "�!"� �&��'"� �! !&" ����� �����"

 ���
�
#��  �������	
 $����

����� ���
��
#�� ������

.

������
�%��� 	
 &�����
���������
�'�'  �����
�'�' ��������

�	
��
��
�

�	
��
��
�( ��)	*� $����

+�� �	
����	
��
�/0 �������'
�/1 �$$�����-
�/2 3��$"�!���
�/4 �!&"�

,-�-.�/,
�	
��
��
�(

14&�
45&�
61&�
�����

��
�

 �!" #"��"�7

��&"�8-"� �-����'  �!"7

������
0
#��  �������	
 $����

01	 �� !��� �����
 -. �	!�� ����� �
����
� ��� �������2

+��
 �!" #"��"�7

��-" #���" .

�"--��' �����"

�"--��' �'"�!

�-����'  �!"7
#���!9�-����' ���!� #��� )%
�"--"�7
�%$" �� �������'7

���
�� 3����
�
���
��� �	 �� )����

�:�"�*�, ��'��!8�"*�, �";8��"� ��� �<!"�����= #���" �&��'"= ���9�� >�!&���:�+ ����"�?� ��'��!8�" �� �";8��"� ��� >�!&���:��+

�:�"� ��'��!8�"  �!"

�:�"� ��'��!8�"  �!"

���!��' �'"�! 
��"  �!"

����"�� ��'��!8�"  �!"
�"(��"� @91/04

�������	 ��
��	 ���
������������ ���� ���
��� �� �������� ������ 
� ���� !�"� #���$ 
�%�$ !������� &��'( ������)��������)���

 see attached 03/04/2020

City of Mandan Lots, Mandan, N  58554
X

03/19/2021

Oaktree REALTORS, 2021 East Main Avenue Bismarck ND 58501 701-226-5942 City of Mandan
Darren Schmidt

EXHIBIT 2

• 
• 

-

~ 
-

~ 
~ 

-
..__ 

-
-

Darren Schmidt



MLS# PARCEL ID STREET ADDRESS List Price
401983 65-5263151 0000 29th St SE 5,000.00$           
401984 65-5263155 0000 Bayside Dr SE 1,000.00$           
401985 65-3302000 0000 5th St NW 10,000.00$         
401989 65-1162000 205 14TH AVE NW 10,000.00$         
401990 65-1161000 207 14TH AVE NW 10,000.00$         
401991 65-1160000 209 14TH AVE NW 10,000.00$         
401992 65-1159000 211 14TH AVE NW 10,000.00$         
401993 65-2595500 306 5TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
401994 65-2596000 308 5TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
401995 65-1451500 308 8TH AVE NE 16,000.00$         
401996 65-2588000 309 6TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
401997 65-1439000 309 8TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
401998 65-2597000 310 5TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
401999 65-2587000 311 6TH AVE NE 10,000.00$         
402000 65-3179000 410 3RD AVE NE 15,000.00$         
402001 65-3261000 500 3RD AVE NE 15,000.00$         
402002 65-3260000 501 4TH AVE NE 20,000.00$         
402003 65-3262000 504 3RD AVE NE 10,000.00$         
402004 65-3263000 506 3RD AVE NE 20,000.00$         
402005 65-3337000 601 4TH AVE NW 12,500.00$         
404306 652971000 0000 2nd St NW 5,000.00$               
404317 653286000 604 1st Ave NE 1,000.00$               
404312 654434500 35A Horseshoe Bend NW 1,000.00$               
404310 654425500 26A Roughrider Cl W 1,500.00$               
404311 654429500 30A Roughrider Cl NW 1,500.00$               
404318 654406500 8A Wagonwheel Cl NW 500.00$                  
404309 654423500 24A Roughrider Cl W 2,500.00$               
404313 654435500 36A Horseshoe Bend NW 1,000.00$               
404315 654402500 4A Wagonwheel Cl NW 500.00$                  
404307 654410000 0000 Roughrider Cl E 500.00$                  

I 


	Agenda
	Minutes
	PH1 - Land Use Plan Amendment, First Consideration of
Ordinance 1336 related to a Zoning Amendment,
and Preliminary Plat for Longhorn 2nd Add.
	PH2 - Preliminary Plat for Lakewood 9th Add. Replat of
Lot 1, Block 4
	PH3 - Ordinance 1314 related to
Outdoor Seating
	C2i - Budget transfer FD
	C2ii - Budget transfer Assessing
	C2iii - Budget transfer Municipal Court
	C2iv - Budget transfer Building Inspections
	C2v - Budget transfer Growth Fund
	C2vi - Budget transfer Human Resource
	C2vii - Budget transfer Administration
	C2viii - Budget transfer Utility Billing
	C2ix - Budget transfer Finance Dept. 
	C2x - Budget transfer Public Works
	C2xi - Budget transfer Engineering & Planning Dept. 
	C2xii - Budget transfer Water Treatment Facility
	C2xiii - Budget transfer Wastewater Facility
	C2xiv - Budget transfer IT 
	C2xv - Budget transfer Police Dept. 
	C3 - AFG Grant application 
	C4 - Pay bills to MMPL & Downtown Parks 
	C5 - Minor Plat of Zander Addt.
	C6 - Main Street Initiative (MSI) Community Action
Plan & Partners in Planning Grant Opportunity
	C7 - Challenge Grant Application 
	C8 - Mandan Youth Commission
	NB1 - Abatement appl. Infinity Ventures, Inc. 
	NB2i - Abatement appl. JDS Holdings
	NB2ii - Abatement appl. JDS Holdings 
	NB3 - Abatement appl. HM4
	NB4 - Mandan Visitors Committee appointments
	NB5 - Memorial Hwy. Presentation
	NB6 - Resolution approving
Plans & Specifications and Resolution directing
advertisement for bid for Street Improvement
Districts No. 215 (Midtown East) 215A (Public
Works Parking Lot) and 215B (Grounds
Maintenance Parking Lot)
	NB7 - Resolution directing advertising for bids for 
Street Improvement District No. 218, Project No. 
2019-12 (Northwest Area).
	NB8 - Approve plans and specifications, 
Engineers Report, and authorize the call for bids 
for the 2020 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement 
Project 2020-02.
	RO1 - Final consideration Ord. 1335
	RO2 - Resolution to Transfer Real Property - 
Nonexclusive Listing Agreement - Extension

	Community Name or Location: City of Mandan
	Date Action Plan Approved by City: 03/17/2020
	HVC: Yes
	21: Yes
	SEI: Yes
	1 Plan: MAIN STREET LANE REALLOCATION & CURB EXTENSIONS: The west end of Main Street will be reconfigured from four to three lanes with parking added to the south side of the street. Changes will reduce vehicular speeding while improving the pedestrian experience. The project includes curb bulb-outs and streetscape improvements on the north side of Main at intersections between Collins and 4th avenues. The project was awarded $750,000 from the Urban Grant Program through the NDDOT as part of the governor’s Main Street Initiative to improve walkability and vitality of downtown districts. Concrete repairs and traffic signal upgrades will coincide with the project.
	1 Plan Date: Oct. 31, 2020
	2 Plan: MORTON MANDAN PUBLIC LIBRARY & DOWNTOWN PARK ENHANCEMENTS: A $3 million donation from Energy Transfer is kick-starting an addition and upgrades to the library at 609 W Main St. and the adjacent Dykshoorn and Heritage parks. Improvements will likely be made in phases over the next 2-3 years. The proposed library addition includes community meeting space and public restrooms. Park features are planned to draw community members beyond events and summer concerts. The City Commission approved moving forward with design and bid documents. The plan is to bid the project this spring with hopes of a late-summer groundbreaking.
	2 Plan Date: 12/31/2022
	3 Plan: DOWNTOWN AREA STREET & SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS: NDDOT awarded Mandan another $2.4 million urban grant in 2019 to help with reconstruction of streets and sidewalks in the downtown area. Streetscape improvements were also included in the application. Planning will commence in 2020 with construction likely to occur in 2021 or 2022. Pavement on many avenues in the area is in poor condition and there are sidewalk conformance issues for people with disabilities.  More street repair and maintenance surfaced as the top way to improve Mandan in a 2019 community survey.
	3 Plan Date: 10/31/2022
	4 Plan: YOUTH COMMISSION REACTIVATION: The City Commission created the MYC in 2012. It was active for a few years and then became dormant. Following discussions with representatives from Mandan Public Schools, the City Commission appointed a new group of 10 middle and high school students in March 2020.  The MYC is intended to give young people a direct channel to provide input into Mandan’s growth and development, work on projects that are important to them and encourage a lifelong commitment to public service. This group will meet approximately four times a year during school hours.
	4 Plan Date: 12/31/2020
	5 Plan: RENAISSANCE ZONE RENEWAL: Established in 2005, Mandan's program boundaries include 28 blocks along most of Main Street plus a few blocks to the north in the heart of the downtown area. We will be updating the development plan, goals and qualifying criteria in 2020 for City Commission and state consideration of a request to extend the program by an additional 5 years while also adding up to 9 blocks as allowed by additional legislative updates. Mandan has benefited from 73 projects completed to date involving 39 commercial buildings rehabbed or newly constructed, 32 lease projects and 2 home rehabs resulting in a 3.5X increase in the value of subject properties.
	6 Plan Date: 08/31/2020
	Persons Responsible for Implementation and Monitoring: City Administrator Jim Neubauer, City Planning and Engineering Director Justin Froseth, City Planning Director John Van Dyke, and City Business Development & Communications Director Ellen Huber.
	Submitted By: Ellen Huber, Business Development & Communications Director
	Telephone Number: 701-667-3485
	Date: 03/17/2020


